e NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS s

1. ACTIVITIES

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited (“The Bank”) is a licensed bank
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office at
38 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Bank, through its branches and subsidiaries, provides a range of
banking, financial and related services.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016 comprise the Bank and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) and the Group’s interests in associates.

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

New and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the group.
None of these developments have had a material effect on how the
group’s results and financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented.

The group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

= financial instruments classified as trading, designated at fair
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale (see Note
2(9));

- derivative financial instruments (see Note 2(g)); and

- owned properties (see Note 2(j)).

In addition, the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities carried at
amortised cost that are designated as hedged items in a fair value

hedge are adjusted for fair value changes attributable to the hedged
risk.
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2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are stated at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell (see
Note 2(k)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have a significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 48.

Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, its investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any (see
Note 2(n)).
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2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Bank has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

The investment in an associate in the Philippines is not equity
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements as it is
considered by the directors to be immaterial to the Group. It is
stated at cost less impairment losses in the Group’s and the
Bank’s statement of financial position. The result of this associated
company is included in the Group’s and the Bank’s profit or loss to
the extent of dividends receivable.

The investment in an associate in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”) is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method. It is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee’s net identifiable assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post-acquisition change in the Group’s share of the associate’s net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment, if any
(see Notes 2(n)). The Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the associate and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post tax items of the associate’s other comprehensive
income is recognised in the Group’s other comprehensive income.

If the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate,
the Group’s interest would be reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. The Group’s interest in the associate is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity method.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associate, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, its investments in both
associates are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any (see
Note 2(n)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree; over
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2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill (continued)

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and
is tested annually for impairment (see Note 2(n)). In respect of
associates, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the
carrying amount of the interest in associates and the investment
as a whole is tested for impairment whenever there is objective
evidence of impairment (see Note 2(n)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Financial instruments

(i) Initial recognition
The Group classifies its financial instruments into different
categories at inception, depending on the purpose for which
the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The
categories are: fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale
financial assets and other financial liabilities.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, which
normally will be equal to the transaction price, plus in case of a
financial asset or financial liability not held at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset or issue of financial
liability. Transaction costs on financial assets and financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed immediately.

The Group recognises financial assets and financial liabilities
on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or
available-for-sale financial assets is recognised using trade
date accounting. From these dates, any gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities are recorded.
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O TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Categorisation

Fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading, and those designated at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition.

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or financial
liabilities which are acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of trading, or are part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking. Derivatives that do not qualify for
hedge accounting (Note 2(i)) are accounted for as trading
instruments.

Financial instruments are designated at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition when:

- the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and
reported internally on a fair value basis;

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise;

- the asset or liability contains an embedded derivative
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required under the contract; or

- the asset or liability contains an embedded derivative
the separation of which from the financial instrument is
clearly not prohibited.

Financial assets and liabilities under this category are carried
at fair value. Changes in the fair value are included in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. Interest income, interest
expense and dividends from instruments in this category
are recorded in interest income, interest expense and other
operating income respectively. Upon disposal or repurchase,
the difference between the net sale proceeds or the net
payment and the carrying value is included in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Categorisation (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market, other than (a) those that the Group intends to
sell immediately or in the near term, which will be classified
as held for trading; (b) those that the Group, upon initial
recognition, designates at fair value through profit or loss or
as available-for-sale; or (c) those where the Group may not
recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than
because of credit deterioration, which will be classified as
available-for-sale. Loans and receivables mainly comprise
advances to customers, placements with banks and other
financial institutions, and certain debt securities.

Debt securities classified as loans and receivables are not
quoted in an active market. Investment decisions for such
debt securities are subject to the same credit approval
processes as loans, and the Group bears the same customer
risk as it does for loans extended to those customers. These
debt securities include subordinated debt instruments and
senior debt instruments issued by borrowers.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less impairment losses, if any
(see Note 2(n)).

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
which the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity, other than (a) those that the Group, upon initial
recognition, designates at fair value through profit or loss or
as available-for-sale; and (b) those that meet the definition of
loans and receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less impairment
losses, if any (see Note 2(n)).

If, as a result of a change in intention or ability, it is no longer
appropriate to classify an investment as held-to-maturity, it is
reclassified as available-for-sale and remeasured at fair value.

Fubon Bank & R1T

2. EEEFEE®
(9) &I Buw

(i)

DA (1)

B R EW IR

B3R K e Yk 08 A AL E X A R
NReERE A RRTISRENIE
PTESBMEE  BEFABE@@AER
BT AN A A HA N Y 6 1 4 [
DEBIERZRE  (O)RIIIATER
REHEAEEIEEABBABRIAR
BAFEEBEKAIHLE  se)A&
) 7] Bk A UL B A BB D VIR R A T
BoERAHEEEE BTEHE
Rz BB A RE M 48 AL B8 5
ZEBE BRREWREBEXESRE
MR PR ENERRE RN ET
REMSREEZ KT URET
BIFES o

DERERRERFIANESHE S
WENERETHRE - ZFEBHE
FABRRERE EIEHERNE
SEEMEFER - AEBEAAES
RARZEEPROERNERES
R o WREBESBREAERA
BITOREBEETALEELEBEHT
Ao

BER R EWFIERAER R 5%
BEREEE(A0H ) BIRE KA
FIBR (R HMIEE2(n)) °

FEIERE
FEIHRE 256 BT #EE
NREeERAEEIHA - BAE
B AR R R =2 eIk
MTESRMEE  BEIEE@AEE
RUEHERRIEE REBERIAR
BMAFEELAEEE  RO)FE
ESRAERFIREZ 2AA -

B2 ERATEREMNEFER
FBEEE(E ) &I K A5
BR(RMEE2(N)) °

fied B8 2 1) =X BE 77 A B T A B B S
REDERFEIE - MAENSR
AAUREELIZAFEEEHT

=
=z -°



O TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(i)

Categorisation (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are either designated as available-for-sale or are
not classified in any of the other three categories above. They
include financial assets intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time, but which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or changes in the market environment.

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity, except for interest income,
impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses on
monetary items such as debt securities which are recognised
in profit or loss. Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest rate method.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured, and derivatives that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such equity instruments are
carried at cost less impairment losses, if any (see Note 2(n)).

When available-for-sale financial assets are sold, gains or
losses on disposal comprise the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the accumulated
fair value adjustments previously recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than trading liabilities and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is ideally based on
their quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period
without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.
Financial assets are priced at current bid prices, while financial
liabilities are priced at current asking prices.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a quoted
market price on a recognised stock exchange, a price from a
broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded financial instruments
is used. If the market for a financial instrument is not active,
the fair value of the instrument is estimated using a valuation
technique that provides a reliable estimate of the price which
could be obtained in an actual market transaction.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(9) Financial instruments (continued)

(i) Fair value measurement principles (continued)

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated
future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates
and the discount rate used is a market rate at the end of
the reporting period applicable for an instrument with similar
terms and conditions. Where other pricing models are used,
inputs are based on market data at the end of the reporting
period.

(iv) Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
where the financial asset together with substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership, have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

(v) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(vi) Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid
(combined) instrument that includes both a derivative and a
host contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of
the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-
alone derivative. Embedded derivatives are separated
from the host contract and accounted for as a derivative
when (i) the economic characteristics and risks of the
embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic
characteristics and risks of the host contract; and (ii) the
hybrid (combined) instrument is not held at fair value through
profit or loss.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host contract
is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies
for the relevant financial instrument. The embedded derivative
is classified as a derivative financial instrument in the financial
statements.

(h) Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Securities sold subject to a simultaneous agreement to repurchase
these securities at a certain later date at a fixed price (repurchase
agreement) are retained in the financial statements and measured
in accordance with their original measurement principles. The
proceeds from the sale are reported as liabilities and are carried at
amortised cost.
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O TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

(continued)

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse
repurchase agreements) are reported as receivables and are carried
at amortised cost.

Interest earned on reverse repurchase agreements and interest
incurred on repurchase agreements is recognised as interest
income and interest expense respectively, over the life of each
agreement using the effective interest rate method.

Hedging

Hedge accounting recognises the offsetting effects on profit or
loss of changes in the fair values of the hedging instruments and
the hedged items. The Group assesses and documents whether
the financial instruments that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged items
attributable to the hedged risks both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis. Under HKAS 39 hedge accounting is classified
into three categories: (a) fair value hedges; (b) cash flow hedges
and (c) net investment hedges. The Group only applies hedge
accounting for fair value hedging of certain fixed rate available-for-
sale investments and certificates of deposit issued.

The Group discontinues prospectively hedge accounting when (a)
the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised;
(b) the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting; or
(c) the Group revokes the designation.

(i) Fair value hedge
A fair value hedge seeks to offset risks of changes in the fair
value of recognised assets and liabilities that will give rise to a
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

The hedging instruments are measured at fair value, with
fair value changes recognised in profit or loss. The carrying
amounts of the hedged items are adjusted by the changes
in fair value attributable to the risk being hedged. These
adjustments are recognised in profit or loss to offset the effect
of gains or losses on the hedging instruments.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised, the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting or the Group revokes designation of the hedge
relationship any adjustment up to that point, to a hedged
item for which the effective interest rate method is used, is
amortised to profit or loss as part of the recalculated effective
interest rate of the item over its remaining life.
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2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

0

Hedging (continued)

(i)  Hedge effectiveness testing
In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group carries
out prospective effectiveness testing to demonstrate that
it expects the hedge to be highly effective at the inception
of the hedge and throughout its life. Actual effectiveness
(retrospective effectiveness) is also demonstrated on an
ongoing basis.

The documentation of each hedging relationship sets out
how the effectiveness of the hedge is assessed. The method
which the Group adopts for assessing hedge effectiveness will
depend on its risk management strategy.

The Group utilises both cumulative dollar offset method and
regression analysis as the effectiveness testing methodologies
for retrospective testing. For prospective effectiveness, the
hedging instruments must be expected to be highly effective
in achieving offsetting changes in fair value attributable to
the hedged risk during the period for which the hedge is
designated and is typically demonstrated through matching of
critical terms. For actual effectiveness, the hedging instrument
should demonstrate that it is highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair value attributable to the hedged risk. The
Group considers that where changes in fair value offset each
other in the range of 80 percent to 125 percent the hedge is
highly effective.

Property and equipment

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings are held under leasehold
agreements and, in the absence of reliable information to allow
separation of the land and buildings components under the leases
the land and buildings are accounted for as properties.

These leasehold land and buildings are stated at their revalued
amount, being their fair value at the date of the revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation. Revaluations are performed
with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of
these assets does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of the reporting period.

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties are generally
dealt with in other comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the premises revaluation reserve. The only
exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to profit
or loss to the extent that it exceeds the amount held in the
reserve in respect of that same asset immediately prior to the
revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited to
profit or loss to the extent that a deficit on revaluation in
respect of that same asset had previously been charged to
profit or loss.
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O TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()]

(k)

Property and equipment (continued)

Subsequent expenditure relating to a fixed asset that has already
been recognised is added to the carrying amount of the assets
when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of
the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing
asset, will flow to the Group. All other subsequent expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of fixed
assets are determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the premises revaluation
reserve to retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of items
of property and equipment using the straight line method over the
estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no less than 2% per annum after the date of
completion.

- Furniture and equipment is generally depreciated over periods
of between three to ten years.

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Assets held for sale

An asset is classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that its
carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and the asset is available for sale in its
present condition.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement
of the assets is brought up-to-date in accordance with the
accounting policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until disposal, the assets (except
for certain assets as explained below), are recognised at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far as
the financial statements of the Group are concerned are deferred
tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits and financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures). These assets, even if held for sale, would continue to
be measured in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in
Note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in
profit or loss. As long as an asset is classified as held for sale, the
asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U

(m)

Leases and hire purchase contracts

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of leased assets
Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee are classified as finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as operating
leases.

(i) Finance leases

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the net investment in the lease is included in the
statement of financial position as advances to customers.
Hire purchase contracts having the characteristics of finance
leases are accounted for in the same manner as finance
leases. Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy for impairment (see Note 2(n)).

(iii)  Operating leases

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease terms, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be delivered from
the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregated net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Repossessed assets

During the recovery of impaired advances to customers, the Group
may take repossession of assets held as collateral through court
proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers.
Where it is intended to achieve an orderly realisation of the
impaired assets and the Group is no longer seeking repayment
from the borrower, repossessed assets are reported in “Accrued
interest and other assets” and the relevant loans and advances are
derecognised. The Group does not hold repossessed assets for its
own use.

Repossessed assets are initially recorded at the lower of the
amount of the related loans and advances and fair value less
costs to sell at the date of exchange. They are not depreciated or
amortised.

Impairment losses on subsequent remeasurement are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gains on subsequent remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss subject to a cap at the amount of related
loans and advances at the date of exchange.
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O TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s assets are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence that assets are
impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following loss events which has
an impact on the future cash flows of assets:

Financial assets:

Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;

A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

It becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

Significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
borrower;

Disappearance of an active market for financial assets
because of financial difficulties; and

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

Non-financial assets:

During the period, an asset’s market value has declined
significantly more than would be expected as a result of the
passage of time or normal use;

Significant changes with an adverse effect on the Group
have taken place during the period, or will take place in the
near future, in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment in which the Group operates or in the market to
which an asset is dedicated;

Evidence is available of obsolescence or physical damage of
an asset; or

Significant changes with an adverse effect on the Group have
taken place during the period, or are expected to take place in
the near future, impacting how an asset is used or is expected
to be used. These changes include the asset becoming idle,
plans to discontinue or restructure the operation to which
an asset belongs, plans to dispose of an asset before the
previously expected date, and reassessing the useful life of an
asset as finite rather than indefinite.
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2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets (continued)

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is generally
reduced to the estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge
to profit or loss. For available-for-sale financial assets, the carrying
amount is reduced to the fair value.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
advances to customers, which are measured at amortised cost,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
advances to customers directly and corresponding amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that borrower are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

(i)  Loans and receivables

Impairment losses on loans and receivables are measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets).
Receivables with a short duration are not discounted if the
effect of discounting is immaterial.

The total allowance for credit losses consists of two
components: individual impairment allowances and collective
impairment allowance.

The Group first assesses whether any objective evidence
of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant and collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
then includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss
is or continues to be recognised are not included in any
collective assessment of impairment. Assets that are not
individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment
by grouping together financial assets with similar risk
characteristics.

Individual impairment allowances are based upon
management’s best estimate of the cash flows which are
expected to be received discounted at the original effective
interest rate. In estimating these cash flows management
makes judgments about the borrower’s financial situation
and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral or
guarantees in favour of the Group. Each impaired asset is
assessed on its merits.
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O TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(1)

(i)

Loans and receivables (continued)

In assessing the need for a collective impairment allowance on
individually significant loans which are not impaired and assets
that are not individually significant, management considers
factors such as credit quality, portfolio size, concentrations,
and economic factors. In order to estimate the required
allowance the Group makes assumptions both to define the
way the Group models inherent losses and to determine the
required input parameters based on historical experience and
current economic conditions.

The accuracy of the impairment allowances the Group makes
depends on how well the Group can estimate future cash
flows for individually assessed impairment allowances and
the model assumptions and parameters used in determining
collective impairment allowance. While this necessarily
involves judgment, the Group believes that the impairment
allowances on advances to customers are reasonable and
supportable.

Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of the
expected future cash flows compared to the prior estimates
that can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the write-down, will result in a change in the impairment
allowances on loans and receivables and be charged or
credited to profit or loss. A reversal of impairment losses is
limited to the loans and receivables’ carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

When there is no reasonable prospect of recovery the loan
and the related interest receivable are written off.

Loans and receivables with renegotiated terms are loans that
have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower’s
financial position and where the Group has made concessions
that it would not otherwise consider. Renegotiated loans and
receivables are subject to ongoing monitoring to determine
whether they remain impaired or past due.

Held-to-maturity investments

Impairment on held-to-maturity investments is considered
at both an individual and collective level. If impairment is
identified, the individual impairment allowance is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the asset’s original effective interest rate, where the effect of
discounting is material.

All held-to-maturity investments found not to be individually
impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment
that has been incurred but not yet identified.

B RS Y RE

2. FEEHBERw®
BEEREE)

(n)

(0

(i)

EARENKFHE &)

REHE RBE 2 SREEAN @R
EXREeBITEAZEREER
EHSRERERER  EREAZ
EHNAXBEEERE - @461
B EESES REERZE - Alh
ARG AEERBBEL
QAR 2 & F N A E B ER
RPN &

B IR A 2 ZERE 7848 T AN SR A
B 1E TS (8 51 5 (B B s 2 e i 5t
REBFOARFIBEHREREETE
SR A B BB RS FT IR A AR R
K2 - #ARUERTHE T -
AEBREEFERZREREE
AR5 ©

FEZ&EME - ARG RRRES
MENSERRRELAGENE
FREEE - M8 E 2 n 28R
HERBENEHERE - MG
B RN R R B B TR T B
B ZEEE RGBSR -
FrgE e EBEIREEFER
FHAREBEMRECETNE
PR EYGRIBREEARR -

NEESEREHATKREERE - &
TR N AR B FE MR B & T LA

BEREEMER R Z BN R ER
FIE A AR A BB AR =
fEMESHHERRTSEE EH
Bl BAREE TRV ER - B3
BER Y B R I R IR R R R
ER - NEERELTINRERE
I

2R E

AEE G UME R 4R & /R EEE =S
BREINHRERGHERE - &
HERE - ERRERERAEE
BREEREZEERANNERAN X
(MRFRFZEERN)FRIAAE
BAARRESRENREZ A E
BERTE o

AR EER A LR ENE R
ERHKE SRR G - AT
ERE A EAC HIRERTEE BB
BIER -

Annual Report 2016 fEF %

81



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

B ER A MR

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Held-to-maturity investments (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of impairment losses shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Where there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale
financial asset is impaired, the cumulative unrealised loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognised in profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment
losses in such circumstances are recognised in profit or loss.

Other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following non-financial assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

furniture, fixtures and equipment;

- investments in subsidiaries and associates; and

= goodwill.
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O TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iv) Other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(o) Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(1)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits include salaries, annual
bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits and are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Group. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material these amounts are stated at their present values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

B RS M
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESTHEX®
(p) Employee benefits (continued) (p) EETEF @
(i) Defined benefit retirement scheme (i) TR E
The Group’s net obligation in respect of its defined benefit AEBEBAETHEENRKREIR
retirement scheme is calculated by estimating the amount SFEREEEHE B R AN KRB T H
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for F'EJE’JHEFFJ%%%HXE’]?KX%% £Fm
their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is HE . ZENEITBEUNEEHER
discounted to determine the present value and the fair value of B WHRABEENAFEE -
any scheme assets is deducted. The calculation is performed BT EREEBIBEMERATE
by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. BREEREET - MitEERY
When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the ANEFEER - QIERHEEERI
recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic FE AT R 2R ER 5 81 R SRk R 2R R A Al
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the FEIHFM A N ESLERN =R
scheme or reductions in future contributions to the scheme. B REXAREBEBINEECE
Service cost and net interest expense (income) on the net E)ZFENNESHURA)FzET
defined benefit liability (asset) are recognised in profit or loss EATE SRR [EEKEIH—
as part of “Staff costs”. Current service cost is measured o ZNHA R TS AR AR Th 4% AN B R
as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit %HE%%EEE’]E%@ET' HEIBER
obligation resulting from employee service in the current M £ o fHEHE 8@ F B IR
period. When the benefits of a scheme are changed, or when g - HEEIGERE - BREEEBER
a scheme is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit HEBEF LA - SR AKRES
related to past service by employees, or the gain or loss on HEBNETEE T BREEERE
curtailment, is recognised as an expense in profit or loss at BRAEBK AR EEFE ERE
the earlier of when the scheme amendment or curtailment REERNBZFBERATE - BIK
occurs and when related restructuring costs or termination F BT H (WA FRE T ERRBRE
benefits are recognised. Net interest expense (income) for Y ARG ECREENRENITE
the period is determined by applying the discount rate used ENBEEERANFAEEE)M
to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of BFE IBRRNSEELEGHD
the reporting period to the net defined benefit liability (asset). REBANKEE - BENESD
The discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting 8RB R R B AR R B A KAR
period on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity B THEMEARAEEEANEN
dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations. FFEDREMEERARERESL
Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement BNAMRBIE AR R - EFEHE R
schemes are recognised in other comprehensive income and IEREWRKRER  FEIEEZE
reflected immediately in retained earnings. Remeasurements BTPBRFFATERNEEE(E
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on scheme E)RFAEANNeE) REE LR
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net TENEMEE(TERESATHE
defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the effect of BRFAEEE) FMNEANE
the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest ) o
on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).
(@) Income tax (a) PFTiE#

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

RNEF 2 FEH 815N HAT I8 DA KR T
MEEERBEZES - EDHWRIEM&
LL?)EHE%“F&E\EZ“@JFTE

R MEEERAEMEE KR EXET&E
%ﬁnﬁﬁwzlﬁﬁﬁ HEAERRIN - LR
T BT D RIFER A E M 2 E W
S E R AR o

BPEAR IR Y TR BRI AN R 2 h M SR B A
BN zHBEGENREHREEMKEE
W2 BREHE)  URBEFE R
B2 EFHEE

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.
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O TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and
all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if the Bank
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Bank or the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the related current tax assets and settle the
related current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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B ER A MR

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(1)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the holder) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee to customers,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the guarantee fees
received) is initially recognised as deferred income within other
liabilities.

The deferred income is amortised to profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. The carrying amount of the guarantee issued is
remeasured in accordance with Note 2(r)(ii) if and when:

(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will
call upon the Group under the guarantee; and

(i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in other liabilities
in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Bank has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:
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O TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Revenue recognition (continued)

(1)

(i)

(i)

Interest income

Interest income from interest-bearing financial instruments
is recognised in profit or loss on an accruals basis using the
effective interest rate method. Interest income from trading
assets and financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised on basis of accrued coupon and is
recognised in net interest income.

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating the
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment, call and similar option) but does not
consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees
and points paid or received between parties to the contract
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, together
with transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.
Cash rebates granted in relation to residential mortgage
loans are capitalised and amortised to profit or loss over their
expected life.

Net income from financial instruments designated at
fair value through profit or loss and net trading income

Net income from financial instruments designated as fair value
through profit or loss and net trading income comprise all
gains and losses from changes in fair value (net of accrued
coupon) of such financial assets and financial liabilities, foreign
exchange differences and dividend income attributable to
those financial instruments.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income arises on financial services
provided by the Group including cash management services,
brokerage services, investment banking services, investment
management services and project and structured finance
transactions services. Fee and commission income is
recognised when the corresponding service is provided,
except where the fee is charged to cover the costs of a
continuing service to, or risk borne for, the customer or is
interest in nature. In these cases the fee is recognised as
income in the accounting period in which the costs or risk is
incurred or is accounted for as interest income.

Origination or commitment fees received by the Group which
result in the creation or acquisition of a financial instrument
are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate unless it is a trading asset or liability or a financial
asset designated at fair value through profit or loss. In this
case it is immediately recognised in profit or loss. If the
commitment expires without the Group making a loan, the fee
is recognised as revenue on expiry.
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PR ERE MR

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv) Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase
contracts
Finance income implicit in finance lease and hire purchase
payments is recognised as interest income over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of return on the outstanding net investment in
the leases for each accounting period. Contingent rentals
receivable are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.

(v)  Rental income from operating lease

Rental income received under operating leases is recognised
as other operating income in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals receivable are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

(vi) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is irrevocably
established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Translation of foreign currencies

The Group and the Bank’s functional currency is Hong Kong
Dollars. Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are dealt with in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Hong
Kong dollars using the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

Exchange differences relating to financial instruments held at fair
value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments are
included in net income from financial instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss and net gain/(loss) on derivative financial
instruments, respectively. All other exchange differences relating to
monetary items are presented as gains less losses from dealing in
foreign currencies in profit or loss and are reported within “Other
operating income”. Differences arising on translation of available-
for-sale equity instruments are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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O TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Assets and liabilities
are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting
period. All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity in the foreign
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) aperson, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) an entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

() the entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(i)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Related parties (continued)

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(viij a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

(v) Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

3. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

These consolidated financial statements cover the consolidated
positions of the Bank and all its subsidiaries unless otherwise stated
and the Group’s interest in associates. For information required to be
reported in accordance with the Banking (Disclosures) Rules, the basis
of consolidation is set out in Note (A) to Note (D) in the Unaudited
Supplementary Financial Information on pages 186 to 189.
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4. INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE 4., FNEWARZH

(@) Interest income (@) FEWA
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Listed investments EmERE 600,099 511,187
Other HAh 1,308,806 1,278,701
Interest income on financial assets FiBEBE R AR
that are not measured at fair ATEEZERMEEZ
value through profit or loss FEWA 1,908,905 1,789,888
Interest income on trading assets BIERSRBZEEZFBWMA
— listed - kMW 27 2,196
— unlisted -3k 12,799 10,819
Interest income on financial assets T8 AiliBis e DA R it
designated at fair value through NFBEZEREEZ
profit or loss F B WA 3,151 6,497
1,924,882 1,809,400
(b) Interest expense (b) FEXH
2016 2015
—E-REF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Deposits from customers, banks and BPF - RITRZEREM
other financial institutions and S REIE 2T R
certificates of deposit issued BBEITERE 561,138 582,955
Debt securities issued which are ARAFAZHEEY
wholly repayable within 5 years BEITEBES 12,824 20,732
Other borrowings HAb &R 160,567 113,944
Interest expense on financial liabilities 3JE@BiB1E % LR R
that are not measured at fair value AP EEzERERSZ
through profit or loss FMELZH 734,529 717,631
Interest expense on trading liabilities THEBEBTNEAEZNELXH 2,604 310
Interest expense on financial liabilities T8 AilmiBiE e DA Rt
designated at fair value through NEEBEEzZEREEZ
profit or loss FEZH 19,189 18,225
756,322 736,166
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5. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME AND EXPENSE 5. ERRBEVWARZIH
(a) Fee and commission income (@ BRARMBEWA
2016 2015
—E—REF —ZET—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Fee and commission income arising from:  HA NEBEENERRMESWA :
Credit related services EEX 53,429 67,231
Trade finance services B D RE T 12,440 14,971
Credit card services EARER 142,367 146,585
Securities brokerage and B AL A B BRTS
investment services 26,484 41,164
Insurance services RERZETS 173,363 123,768
Unit trust services ERESER 39,680 51,429
Other fees HihsE A 13,251 12,801
461,014 457,949
Of which: Hr
Fee and commission income arising from: ERARALWAKE :
— Financial assets or financial liabilities — JERBIB RS LA AR
which are not measured ANEEEZEREESK
at fair value through profit or loss =i 203,380 225,332
— Trust and other fiduciary activities — EEREMTEER 1,487 1,220
Fee and commission income arising from trust and other fiduciary KEEEREMTEXERNERLAES
activities relate to fees from asset management activities where the WA > BAREBRRELEFEAEEENIR
Group holds assets or invests on behalf of customers. ERWENEESIEETSEREE -
(b) Fee and commission expense (b) ERARFEEEIH
2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ExT FHET
Handling fees and commission FEERAES 62,090 62,289
Other fees paid HibB2 &M 34,792 42,734
96,882 105,023
Of which: Hep :
Fee and commission expense arising from: &M RkHES L HRKAE
— Financial assets or financial liabilities - JEmAE R AR
which are not measured at fair value ANEEEZSR
through profit or loss EEITHMERE 93,844 101,913
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6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME 6. HzEKWA
2016 2015
—EB-XF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHT
Gains less losses from dealing RBWREEE
— Foreign exchange — HNE (38,754) (5,950)
— Trading assets - BER S ABEE 47,173 53,496
- Other dealing activities* - HihEER 5 14,464 69,960
— Short selling activities -BERS 291 (438)
23,174 117,068
Net hedging income from fair value hedges A {EE%H 2 B g A
Net loss on hedged items attributable ER ¥R B\ b AR B 2 R IE B
to the hedged risk 2R EE (264,694) (38,439)
Net gain on hedging instruments ¥ T A2 F s 302,024 41,759
37,330 3,320
Net gain on financial instruments designated EEAEBIEEURRAFEHE
at fair value through profit or loss ZE@MI Az Rl
Revaluation gain on financial instruments fEEABBIEENRBATFEE
designated at fair value through profit or loss 2T A sEHWE 11,781 4,362
11,781 4,362
Revaluation loss on derivative PTESRI R ZEMEE
financial instruments (54,709) (97,242)
Dividend income from unlisted AHEEFEmeEREEY
available-for-sale financial assets % S A 24,058 26,573
Others HAth 15,549 23,583
57,183 77,664
* Other dealing activities include customer-driven dealing in derivative * EBEMEEXRSOEEFEETLAZET
financial instruments including equity linked notes, options and A BIEREREE  BREREENETF
structured deposit products. FREEMD ©
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7. OPERATING EXPENSES 7. EEXH
2016 2015
—E-REF —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHT
Staff costs EEKA
Contributions to defined contribution scheme TE SR SRET B 17,394 15,226
Current service cost of defined benefit TE BB A& M 5T 2038 B ARG Ak A
scheme (Note 39(a)(v)) (Bt 7£E39(a)(v)) 13,237 11,900
Retirement schemes costs BIRETEIK A 30,631 27,126
Salaries and other staff costs e REMEBKA 542,809 526,784
573,440 553,910
Premises and other fixed assets Y3 R E A0 E E A E
Rental of premises MERS 41,839 38,899
Depreciation (Note 24(a)) W& (Ki5E24(a)) 127,006 121,995
Others Hi 27,398 17,347
Audit fee ZEHE A 3,293 3,388
Other operating expenses Hih&i@x W
Business promotion R 29,523 33,203
Legal and professional fees AEBEREA 22,537 13,157
Communication B 31,054 31,192
Electronic data processing and BETEREENREKESR
computer systems 57,852 61,721
Others H A 42,966 152,193
956,908 1,027,005
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10.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

8. EEHM

RIBEECATMEHIDEIBIER((HEES
MEERD RO E2RRBE 2 ERTFHMAT -

2016 2015
e i —F-5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Basic salaries and other allowances JER 5 I EL b =BG 5,718 5,611
Directors’ fee EEHS 4,971 4,888
Contributions to pension scheme BRIRFTEIE R 285 279
Discretionary bonuses BIBIEAL 2,500 3,000
13,474 13,778
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 9. EFEXREFE
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Impairment losses charged to advances to Bk EFERREEE
customers (Note 19(b)) (FtzE19(b))
— Additions — 0 (233,325) (71,047)
— Releases — B[o] 9,034 12,990
(224,291) (58,057)
NET GAINS ON DISPOSAL OF AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 10. HERAHEESREEFRE
FINANCIAL ASSETS
2016 2015
—B-AF —ZT—RF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
Fax T
Realisation of revaluation surplus previously BERKREEHFERERZ
recognised in the investment revaluation EHEBZ B (fE12)
reserve (Note 12) 2,111 1,504
Net gain/(loss) arising in the current year FRF W (EBE) 51,501 (461)
53,612 1,043
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11. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 11.
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of comprehensive (a)
income represents:

mETHERERANMES

mETHERERAMNBIR

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2016 is calculated at 16.5% ZE-ARFZEBNECHBEIDBEAR
(2015: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. FEZFIERE a;'r;m,ﬁy’rwsz 5% (=&
Taxation for overseas operations is similarly calculated using the —£¢ 16.5%) 5T & o BINEBKTIER

estimated annual effective rates of taxation that are expected to SAEEZEY AFERFEFEEEER
apply in the relevant countries. RE B ERBIEGE -

2016 2015
—E-XxF T —hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax ENHARE - HAEREBH
Tax for the year FRBIE 59,768 84,607
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFEBEER (430) =
59,338 84,607
Current tax - Overseas Tax BERFLIE - S AMBEIE
Tax for the year FRHIE 74 67
Deferred tax IEAER IE
Origination and reversal of temporary R EREA KD
differences (Note 34(b)) (BF5E34(b)) 14,315 6,735
73,727 91,409

(b) HEXHERBEABRRERAE
2 BRI 2 £ iR

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
profit at applicable tax rates

2016 2015
—EB—XF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Profit before taxation [ %5 BT s A 708,370 613,040
Notional tax on profit before taxation, MR FH Al M 2 (st B B IR LA
calculated at the rates applicable to BREBRZRER 2 FERF R
profits in the countries concerned e 116,881 101,152
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEFERTIUMA 2 BB E (12,321) (4,407)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR 2 BITER & 11,370 28,557
Tax effect of temporary differences HRATEFERER
not recognised in prior years TREER MBS
now recognised (16,500) -
Effect on profit of an associate /Ny | =2 (25,777) (33,960)
Overseas withholding taxes FEINEIF 74 67
Actual tax expense BEEHEL L 73,727 91,409
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12. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Available-for-sale financial assets:
Changes in fair value recognised during the year
Amounts transferred to profit or loss:
— net gains on disposals (Note 10)
— impairment losses
Share of changes in fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets held by an associate
Deferred taxation (Note 34(b))

Net movement in the investment revaluation
reserve during the year recognised in other
comprehensive income

Premises:
Surplus on revaluation of premises (Note 24(a))
Share of surplus on revaluation of premises
of an associate
Deferred taxation (Note 34(b))

Net movement in the premises revaluation
reserve during the year recognised in other
comprehensive income

Defined benefit liability:

Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability
(Note 39(a)(v))

Deferred taxation (Note 34(b))

Net movement in the defined benefit liability
during the year recognised in
other comprehensive income

OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. &

AHHESREE !
REFHERZ N FEEES
EER bk I

- F & e (FRE10)

- REEE
FEfE —FRBE & A R 2 AT H &
EIER IR (FHEE34(0))

REFEEREAM 2R SR
ZEREEGRETELE

L/E
WEEH RS (FIRE24(a)
i —REE AR ZMEEE ARG

IEFER T8 (K 3534 (b))

AEER A R EYCERR 2
NEEEHBILY

TEREFALRE

BT EERRMNEEFHE
(FFEES9(@)(V))

IRIEFLIE (F1EE34(b))

AEER A2 ST
EBATIA

I

BRSSP EE
it 2 TE UL 2

2016 2015
—E—RF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TR FHET
60,296 (135,202)
(2,111) (1,504)

404 388
(56,147) 18,861
(10,344) 22,466
(7,902) (94,991)
2016 2015
—B-AF —T-AHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
39,262 69,951
14,661 19,107
1,943 (3,181)
55,866 85,877
2016 2015
—B-AE e
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
22,828 (33,473)
(3,767) 5,523
19,061 (27,950)
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Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s operating
segments which are the components of the Group about which separate
financial information is available and evaluated regularly by the Chief
Executive Officer and Managing Director in deciding how to allocate
resources and in assessing performance.

Operating segments

The Bank and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
banking and related financial services. Reportable segments of the Group
are set out below.

Retail Banking business comprises Consumer Finance activities including
credit card merchant acquiring, provision of credit card advances,
mortgage lending and other consumer lending and Wealth Management
services such as the sales and distribution of insurance products,
investment products and securities brokerage to wealth management
clients and provision of banking services to the mass market segment.

Corporate & Institutional Banking comprises the Local Corporate Banking
business, the Mainland China Banking business and Institutional Banking
business, covering the provision of services including corporate lending,
syndicated loan, trade financing and deposit to large corporate, small
and medium enterprises.

Financial Markets mainly engages in trading foreign exchange and fixed
income securities; the marketing of investment products to non-bank
enterprises and managing the Group’s investment portfolio. Moreover, it
also manages the overall funding, liquidity and interest rate risk positions
arising from the banking activities of the Group.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of segmental analysis, the allocation of revenue
reflects the benefits of capital and other funding resources allocated to
the operating segments by way of internal capital allocation and fund
transfer-pricing mechanisms. To reflect the benefit of joint efforts of two
operating segments on a third party fee-related transaction, operating
income derived from the transaction is split and recorded with jointly
agreed splitting ratio in the relevant operating segments.

Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred by the respective
operating segments. For consistency with internal management
reporting, there is no apportionment of central management overheads
and only wholly and directly attributable costs of support units are
charged to the respective operating segments. Rental charges at market
rates for usage of premises are reflected in “Operating Expense” and
“Inter-segment Expense” for the respective operating segments.

Segment assets mainly include advances to customers less impairment,
investment in securities and financial instruments, inter-bank placements,
current assets and premises attributable to the operating segments.

Segment liabilities mainly include deposits from customers, certificates of
deposit and debt securities issued, inter-bank borrowings, and accruals
attributable to the operating segments.
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 13. 2 EER @)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) DEEE  BEREGB®
In addition to receiving segment information concerning profit BT HHLERPHNBRBRANSENERIN  EEE
before taxation, management is provided with segment information BEIRHEHEMSHTER @ BEVA(BEEY
concerning revenue (including inter-segment lending), interest expense, E‘B%%’R) CFEX W - TE - B REES
depreciation, amortisation, impairment losses and additions to non- EER DB EENFIEIERB DI EE
current segment assets used by the segments in their operations.
Unallocated items mainly comprise the central management unit, APEIEE T ERAFERREEEN - REEIKE
management of strategic investments, premises and property B %?&%%E@M&EM*QEQ@%@E
management and other activities which cannot be reasonably allocated FRE X AIRES o

to specific business segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z-RE+ZA=t-H

Corporate & Reportable
Retail Institutional Financial Segments
Banking Banking Markets Total
FERT LERBBRT SRS WRERIPEE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx TER TEx TAER
Net interest income FFIEMA 398,306 409,846 359,339 1,167,491
Other operating income from external customers R BNAR P EMLERA 456,415 12,455 18,743 487,613
Fee and commission expense ERRAE T (82,730) (670) (9,273) (92,673)
Other operating income HEfn2ERA 373,685 11,785 9,470 394,940
Operating income EEMA 771,991 421,631 368,809 1,562,431
Operating expenses BB (389,042) (85,376) (60,630) (535,048)
Inter-segment expenses BABZL (66,727) (7,104) (2,536) (76,367)
Operating profit before gains and Fatlham KR EBEATEE R
impairment losses 316,222 329,151 305,643 951,016
Impairment losses on advances to customers REEIREER (55,343) (170,846) - (226,189)
Write back of impairment losses on AtHECHEE
available-for-sale financial assets HEBER B - - 30,834 30,834
Impairment losses on other assets HtEEREBE - (1,055) - (1,055)
Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale HETRILESRHEE
financial assets s - - 5,544 5,544
Profit before taxation B A Al 260,879 157,250 342,021 760,150
Operating expenses - depreciation EELH-TE (17,230) (1,897) (2,158) (21,285)
Segment assets PHEE 23,585,544 22,916,357 45,228,269 91,730,170
Segment liabilities DEEE 46,272,846 17,035,032 19,367,602 82,675,480
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

13. o EER @)
PEEE - BERARG )

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-Z-RF+-A=+-H

Corporate & Reportable

Retalil Institutional Financial Segments

Banking Banking Markets Total

TERT CEREERT SRS ARRAIPEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAL TAT TAT TAT

Net interest income ERS WA 345,429 418,562 308,015 1,072,006

Other operating income from external customers  RENAEF R L EWA 444,761 8,699 43,929 497,389

Fee and commission expense ERRESIH (91,941) (132) (7,207) (99,280)

Other operating income Hin 2B WA 352,820 8,567 36,722 398,109

Operating income 2B 698,249 427,129 344,737 1,470,115

Operating expenses BELH (370,318) (85,336) (60,479) (516,133)

Inter-segment expenses BABZH (61,334) (6,536) (2,341) (70,211)
Operating profit before gains and Rethes LR EBBRIEE

impairment losses S 266,597 335,257 281,917 883,771

Impairment losses on advances to customers REEHRESE (46,851) (36,745) = (83,596)

Impairment losses on other assets HEBEREER = (639) = (639)

Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale HEARLECRHEE

financial assets pedlgay - - 1,043 1,043

Profit before taxation BRALRTR A 219,746 297,873 282,960 800,579

Operating expenses - depreciation BETH-E (13,798) (2,603) (2,141) (18,542)

Segment assets NHEE 23,119,298 22,777,920 41,310,969 87,208,187

Segment liabilities AHaE 38,807,020 19,707,413 20,133,566 78,647,999
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Reconciliation of Reportable Segment Revenue, Profit &
Loss, Assets & Liabilities

13. o EER @)

AHRBOIBUA  BANREE  BE
FadzHiR

For the year ended

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
BE-Z—XRE #HE_ZT—1F
t=A=+-B +=-A=t+—H
LHEE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Revenues A
Reportable segment operating income Al RS FEFERA 1,562,431 1,470,115
Elimination of inter-segment operating income  §54) 284 @ U A 4K 35 (102,573) (97,342)
Unallocated revenue RO EUWA 130,017 131,051
Consolidated operating income REEERA 1,589,875 1,503,824
For the year ended
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
BE-Z—XRF #HE-Z—HF
+=—A=+-—H +=—A=+—H
LFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before taxation BRFR A % A
Reportable segment profit before taxation ] BB ¥R 5> BOBR B A s ) 760,150 800,579
Unallocated operating income RO EBLRA 130,017 131,051
Unallocated operating expenses AOEREEST H (448,066) (538,003)
Write back of impairment losses EFEEFURAEEER 2 B#
on advances to customers 1,898 25,539
Impairment losses on available-for-sale HEESREEREBEER
financial assets (6,685) (12,255)
Impairment losses on assets held for sale T#{’EH:'.’EZEEWEEE{% (2,600) (143)
Write back of impairment losses on assets BIEERGEASEEREER
acquired under lending agreements PAEE: 300 400
Share of profits of an associate FE(HEE & A B Al 225,308 205,820
Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale HERHREESREEF WS
financial assets 48,068 -
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of fixed assets HERTEESF(HE), WS (20) 52
Consolidated profit before taxation 42 A TR T A 708,370 613,040
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Reconciliation of Reportable Segment Revenue, Profit &

13. 2 EE R )
RO IBWA - BRREE - EE

102

Loss, Assets & Liabilities (continued) REEZHER@®)
As at

31 December 31 December
2016 2015
R=-T—XRF RZE—RF
+=—A=+—-H +=A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHT

Assets BE
Reportable segment assets A RO EEE 91,730,170 87,208,187
Unallocated advances to customers RAOMEFER - (1,896)
Unallocated fixed assets ROBEEE E 1,422,876 1,338,212
Interests in associates iR NC - X 2,129,493 2,080,585
Unallocated other assets ROBLEME E 365,129 367,550
Consolidated total assets A EEETE 95,647,668 90,992,638

As at

31 December 31 December
2016 2015
R-ZB—REF R-ZE—RHEF
t=A=+—-8B +=-A=+—AH
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FHT

Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities AR BEE 82,675,480 78,647,999
Unallocated other liabilities RO EMEE 1,599,554 1,638,757
Consolidated total liabilities e BEER 84,275,034 80,186,756

Geographical information

Geographical segment information is based on the locations of the
principal operations of the subsidiaries or on the location of the branches
of the Bank responsible for reporting the results or booking the assets,
the location of customers and the location of assets. For the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015, all of the Group’s operating income and
profit before taxation were generated by assets booked by the branches
and subsidiaries of the Bank located in Hong Kong. Except for the share
of profits from an associate in Mainland China, no single country or
geographic segment other than Hong Kong contributes 10% or more
of the Group’s assets, liabilities, profit or loss before taxation, total
operating income or contingent liabilities and commitments.

Major Customers

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no single customer or
a group of customers under common control contributes 10% or more of
the Group’s revenues.

Fubon Bank & #BiR1T
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14.

15.

16.

B A R 5 BT 5
CASH AND SHORT-TERM FUNDS 14. HEREHES
2016 2015
—E—RF —ZET—hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Cash in hand B 112,260 104,369
Balances with the Hong Kong BERhzmEERT2ER])

Monetary Authority (‘HKMA”) #EER 1,092,433 502,977
Balances with banks RITRZE 2 A5 R 552,853 595,355
Money at call and short notice * BN K 2 B AE R 4,262,068 7,475,483

6,019,614 8,678,184
G Money at call and short notice represents deposits of up to a maximum * B 5T R T 50 15 B R B R AT R ik —
of one month maturity from the end of the reporting period. 184 FI 812 775k °
BALANCES WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL 15. MITRAIXERHSRMBIBELR
INSTITUTIONS
2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHT
Placements with banks maturing within: LA HAR B B 2 SR1T R 2GR

— Within 1 month -—EAR 94 =

— 3 months or less but over 1 month - =AU THE—EANLE 2,337,305 414,992

— 1 year or less but over 3 months - —FHFATHE=@ANUE 926,834 470,457

3,264,233 885,449
TRADING ASSETS 16. FERXZRAREE
2016 2015
—E—REF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHT
Trading assets at fair value B FIEESIRZ 1F1EXX 5 it B E
Treasury bills (including Exchange Fund Bills) BES(B2EINEEEZE)

— Unlisted B il 2,310,246 2,279,980
Debt securities BfES

— Listed in Hong Kong -REBLEM - 31,027

— Unlisted -3EtET - 15,403
Total “BE 2,310,246 2,326,410
Trading assets are issued by: FERXRZRGEERNA THEBEIT

- Governments and central banks — B R R AERAT 2,310,246 2,279,980

- Banks - 8R1T - 15,403

— Corporate entities - hEES - 31,027

2,310,246 2,326,410
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

B ER A MR

17.

18.

FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss at fair value

Debt securities BB EH
— Listed outside Hong Kong - RBEBUAIN T

Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss are issued by:

— Corporate entities -EEER

Debt securities have been designated at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition when either the Group holds related derivatives at
fair value through profit or loss and designation therefore eliminates; or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise;
or the debt securities are managed and evaluated on a fair value basis.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The sale to customers of derivatives as risk management products and
the subsequent use of derivatives to manage the resulting positions is
an integral part of the Group’s business activities. Derivatives are also
used to manage the Group’s own exposures to market risk as part of
its asset and liability management process. The principal derivative
instruments used by the Group are interest and foreign exchange rate
related contracts, which are primarily over-the-counter derivatives. The
Group also purchases exchange traded derivatives. Most of the Group’s
derivative positions have been entered into to meet customer demand
and to hedge these and other trading positions or for balance sheet
management. For accounting purposes, derivatives are classified as
either held for trading, qualifying for hedge accounting, or managed in
conjunction with financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss.

(a) Notional amounts of derivatives

Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on
the value of one or more underlying assets or indices. The notional
amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of transactions
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period and do not
represent amounts at risk. The following is a summary of the
notional amounts of each significant type of derivatives entered into
by the Group:

Fubon Bank & #BiR1T

17.

18.

EERBRBESURRLAVEEZE
mMEE

B FAEESRZIEE BB R a
URBAFIEE & @BEE

EERBARE R RN TFIEEZ
R EE R THEEET

2016 2015
—E-REF —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fix FHIT
39,226 40,502
39,226 40,502

B FR IR TER R 1 AiliB RS A R
RFEENGEER - ARBERFARRRRER
ARBAFEENITETA - BERFEEHFERIA
tEOR A T BE S| B & RHER D ¢ SRAERBIARF
EBEEEEE R EZEBES
TTEE®IA
MEFPHENTETANERRRERERNRE
RERITETAERBAFR  AEAEEEH
—IRER o RET AR AT EAR KB PIAS
BmiEER FREEERBEENEF &
D o AEBEMRAIITETAEZRHEFEIN
ERBEH  ZEENTERBIMILETA -
AEENBERZGMEENETA - RAEEX
BAOMITAET AR AU RESTPBERARE
HhZEMEMRXZRRREREEABRM
RIS > B EMME - STET AR BRE
ERZ A% - A BRFEAE P ETHAREREE
BRERARRAFEE SR TAXRET

IR o

(@) PTETEZEETH

HETETRAEREERT —HXZIA
FHEERRBZEENEZERE
B METAZERSBEBETNRES
REOAFREZRHE  MALFRKRSR
RBRERE - ATRAKREILZEEER
MATAETAZRRSR MR ¢



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAREERE ML

18. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 18. fTESRM I E4)
(@) Notional amounts of derivatives (continued) (@ PTEIAEZEZSE @)
2016
ZE-RE
Managed in
conjunction
with financial
instruments
Qualifying for designated at fair
hedge value through Held for
accounting profit or loss trading Total
RETABBESR
URMATLERE
RERER ZERMIA
HAgitk HEETER BERZRR am
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET TFiET T
Exchange rate derivatives EXfTAETA
- Forwards - &5 - - 9,187,367 9,187,367
- Swaps -y i - - 14,699,440 14,699,440
- Options purchased - BAHE - - 759,505 759,505
- Options written - hiLEE - - 759,505 759,505
- - 25,405,817 25,405,817
Interest rate derivatives FEFTETE
- Swaps -4 12,115,532 397,588 5,958,244 18,471,364
12,115,532 397,588 5,958,244 18,471,364
Equity derivatives BRETETR
- Options purchased - B - - 21,076 21,076
— Options written - h i - - 21,076 21,076
- - 42,152 42,152
Total Fik 12,115,532 397,588 31,406,213 43,919,333
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ER A MR

18. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 18. fTESRM I E4)
(@) Notional amounts of derivatives (continued) (@ PTEIAEZEZSE @)
2015
—ZT-h#¥
Managed in
conjunction
with financial
instruments
Qualifying for  designated at fair
hedge value through Held for
accounting profit or loss trading Total
FEEARBRR
NRBEATEE
BEREA ZEBMIA
E2pitk HRAETER KR SRR FoE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAT TAT TAT
Exchange rate derivatives EXfTAETA
- Forwards - &5 = - 13,516,737 13,516,737
- Swaps -y i = = 14,896,879 14,896,879
- Options purchased - BAHE = - 5,819,536 5,819,536
- Options written - S EiE - = 5,819,536 5,819,536
- - 40,052,688 40,052,688
Interest rate derivatives MEHTETAR
- Swaps - 55 8,690,496 378,606 7,371,854 16,440,956
8,690,496 378,606 7,371,854 16,440,956
Equity derivatives BRETETR
- Options purchased - BEARE - - 26,872 26,872
— Options written - hiT - - 26,872 26,872
- - 53,744 53,744
Total k] 8,690,496 378,606 47,478,286 56,547,388
The above amounts are shown on a gross basis without taking into Pl REARREAER - WES REME
account the effect of any bilateral netting arrangements. BB E T E
Derivatives reported as qualifying for hedge accounting represent WEABSEREBE e EAZTAT
hedging instruments designated as hedges under HKAS 39. BEREBER B EREI05RIEE EY

FHZEHTA o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAREERE ML

18. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 18. fTE €@ TI Aw)
(b) Fair values and credit risk weighted amounts of (b) TEIEZAFEEBEREERR
derivatives InEEEE
Credit risk-weighted amount refers to the amount as computed EERMINESTEEEECGRITEEN)
in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong TZRITEBR)RBDTE 2S5 -
Banking Ordinance. The amount depends on the status of the WESHARTIXSEF 2R EEH
counterparty and the maturity characteristics. The risk weights used REME - A EERBRINELL X
range from 0% to 100%. NTF0%ZE100% °
These amounts are shown on a gross basis without taking into ZESBEITET R EEFREETH 2
account the effect of bilateral netting arrangements and are as TR\ REEERAT
below:
2016 2015
ZB-AE —ZT-hF
Credit risk Credit risk
Fair value  Fair value weighted Fair value Fair value weighted
assets liabilities amount assets liabilities amount
AVEE AVEE FERR AYER AYER EEER
&E afE nELE BE =4 mESE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER TAL THL TAL

Exchange rate derivatives ~ [ER{TAT A

- Forwards - &8 540,813 150,356 136,285 660,741 258,683 363,540
- Swaps b 17,150 1,824 37,443 427 10,635 24,146
- Options purchased - A 28,862 - 33,026 264,840 - 335,297
- Options written —h i - 28,862 - - 315,090 -

586,825 181,042 206,754 926,008 584,408 722,983

Interest rate derivatives FIEFTAETA
- Swaps - =1 166,303 262,556 113,424 40,535 378,934 93,479
166,303 262,556 113,424 40,535 378,934 93,479

Equity derivatives BRETETA
- Options purchased - EAE 116 - - 314 = =
- Options written - - 116 - - 314 -
116 116 - 314 314 -
Total @z 753,244 443,714 320,178 966,857 963,656 816,462
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT HR o Bl o

18. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 18. T €M I R

(c) Fair values of derivatives designated as hedging (c) BEEEAREHIAZITETAZ
instruments ATEE
Fair value hedges D FIEEEH
Fair value hedges consist of interest rate swaps that are used to ANFEEHHBERERES TAITE
protect against changes in the fair value of certain of the Bank’s BT RE R E S EHFE TS X
certificates of deposit issued and fixed-rate debt securities held due BE) MR 2 A EEZ AT RIRE -
to movements in market interest rates.
The following is a summary of the fair values of derivatives held for AREBEI N 2B IEEHRERNZTET AR
hedging purposes entered into by the Group: ZAFEERENAT :
2016 2015
ZB-ARE —Z-hfF
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
assets liabilities assets liabilities
AFEE AFEE NFEE NFEE
EE =1 BE B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TER FTARRT FAT FAET
Interest rate derivatives FRFTET A 152,217 252,492 2,551 359,508
(d) Remaining life of derivative instruments (d) TTEIEZFIGRHAR

The following table provides an analysis of the notional amounts of
derivatives of the Group by relevant maturity grouping based on the
remaining periods to settlement at the end of the reporting period.

TERAEE  BRREHRFEER
Wkl ex BARR 2 AR R B BRAR R 5 2 0T &
TRAZRBZDBHIN °

Notional amounts with remaining life of

BATHREHz 854 HE
Over
1 year 1 year to Over
Total or less 5 years 5 years
g —EHUT —FEULERF BENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
2016 —E-RE TER TEx TEx TiEx
Exchange rate derivatives ERfTETA 25,405,817 25,199,547 206,270 -
Interest rate derivatives FEfTAETA 18,471,364 2,078,643 11,281,948 5,110,773
Equity derivatives REETR 42,152 42,152 - -
Total FEk 43,919,333 27,320,342 11,488,218 5,110,773
Notional amounts with remaining life of
BUTHRESE AR
QOver
1 year 1 year to Over
Total or less 5 years 5 years
B8 —EFUT —FEULERE AFEUE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2015 —Z-1f Tz TEx FHL TR
Exchange rate derivatives EEfTATA 40,052,688 35,960,245 4,092,443 -
Interest rate derivatives FZfAETA 16,440,956 1,069,541 11,839,987 3,531,428
Equity derivatives BRETETA 53,744 53,744 = =
Total g 56,547,388 37,083,530 15,932,430 3,531,428
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B TSR 5 B
19. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS LESS IMPAIRMENT 19. EFERRRERE
ALLOWANCES
(@) Advances to customers less impairment allowances: (a) BEFERRRER® :
2016 2015
—E-XEF —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FHT
Gross advances to customers REERERE 43,577,597 42,570,318
Less: Impairment allowances B RERE
— Individual impairment allowances - [ERIRER
(Note 19(b)) (FFzE19(b)) (149,919) (34,470)
- Collective impairment allowance - IRERERE
(Note 19(b)) (FIzE19(b)) (108,839) (40,930)
43,318,839 42,494,918

(b)

Movement in impairment allowances on advances to

customers:

At 1 January 2016
Impairment losses charged
to profit or loss (Note 9)
Impairment losses released back
to profit or loss (Note 9)
Amounts written off
Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years

At 31 December 2016
(Note 19(a))

At 1 January 2015

Impairment losses charged to
profit or loss (Note 9)

Impairment losses released back to
profit or loss (Note 9)

Amounts written off

Recoveries of advances written off
in previous years

At 31 December 2015
(Note 19(a))

OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I

(b) BEFERREREZE

Individual Collective
impairment impairment
allowances allowance

BRI E R A FEBERE
HK$’000 HK$°000
THET FHET
RZE—R"E—H—H 34,470 40,930
R &R 2 EEE
(PF5E9) 165,315 68,010
RIBa= R E 2 R ERE
(F5E9) (8,933) (101)
WERS 58 (46,644) -
BEAFEEMBEERZ
e 5,711 -
RZZ—R"F+=-A=+—H
(Ft7E19(a)) 149,919 108,839
Individual Collective
impairment impairment
allowances allowance
BRI E R RAERERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
R=-E—HF—HA—H 5,226 40,930
R BRIR 2 R EEE
(FfizE9) 71,047 =
RE AR Bl 2 R (E E 18
(P 5E9) (12,990) =
MARE 58 (39,394) -
BEAFEEMBEERZ
I [e 10,581 -
R=—Z—HF+-A=+—8
(MiEE19(a)) 34,470 40,930
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B R R BT EE
19. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS LESS IMPAIRMENT 19. EFERRBERE @
ALLOWANCES (continued)
(c) Advances to customers analysed by industry sector (c) RITEDPENEFER
The following economic sector analysis of gross advances to U TR EREENREBETESTIE
customers is based on the categories and definitions used by the REERAERANERNRESR °
HKMA.

As at 31 December

R+=-—H=+—H
2016 2015
—E—XRF —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
F#ExT FHET
Gross advances for use in Hong Kong EEBFERNERERE
Industrial, commercial and financial TrEs et
— Property development - R 3,756,167 2,037,571
— Property investment - MERE 9,852,120 9,935,016
- Financial concerns - SR 1,346,366 1,143,124
— Stockbrokers - fRE&L A 1,561,154 778,942
— Wholesale and retail trade - R TEE 342,228 318,438
- Manufacturing - Bl 1,244,842 2,125,608
— Transport and transport equipment - B KBRS 311,083 571,346
— Information technology - BRI 377,867 393,513
— Electricity and gas -BARKES 131,656 12,500
— Others - Efth 2,287,477 2,515,544
Individuals EPN
— Loans for the purchase of flats under -BEEEEHEE]
the Home Ownership Scheme, [FAAZZEERETE &
Private Sector Participation Scheme [HEBEEES
and Tenants Purchase Scheme or HEXBMBETEIR
their respective successor schemes BFHNER 12,135 5,933
- Loans for the purchase of other -BEEMEEMED
residential properties B 9,663,115 9,675,134
— Credit card advances - ERARER 1,070,172 1,117,992
— Others - Hfth 4,665,215 3,822,245
36,621,597 34,452,906
Trade finance Bo5mE 3,294,463 3,833,545
Gross advances for use outside Hong Kong £ & i LA ZMs FA #) Bl 5k 4858 3,661,537 4,283,867
Gross advances to customers BEERERE 43,577,597 42,570,318
(d) Impaired advances to customers (d) EFRBEER
2016 % of gross 2015 % of gross
—E-RE advances —Z—FHfF advances
HK$'000 (HEFHEE HK$'000 (HEFBE
TER Aok FAT BA
Gross impaired advances HEERRE 334,282 0.77 222,108 0.52
Individual impairment allowances ABEEZEL @R
made against impaired loans HERE (149,919) (34,470)
184,363 187,638
Amount of collateral held in HEERSEN
respect of impaired loans EHReE 122,717 99,980
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19. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS LESS IMPAIRMENT
ALLOWANCES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Impaired advances to customers (continued)

Collateral mainly comprises mortgage interests over residential
properties with the Group. It does not include any expected
recovery from companies in liquidation and government guarantee
schemes.

Impaired advances are individually assessed loans with objective
evidence of impairment on an individual basis.

Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase
contracts

Advances to customers include the net investment in motor
vehicles and equipment leased to customers under finance leases
and hire purchase contracts having the characteristics of finance
leases. The contracts usually run for an initial period of 3 to 5 years,
with an option for acquiring the leased asset at nominal value. The
total minimum lease payments receivable under finance leases and
hire purchase contracts and their present values at the year end are
as follows:

OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAREERE ML

19. EFEFURBERE @

(d)

(e)

Total minimum lease payments due:
— within 1 year
— after 1 year but within 5 years
— after 5 years

Interest income relating to future periods

Present value of the minimum
lease payments receivable

Collective impairment allowance

Individual impairment allowances

Net investment in finance leases
and hire purchase contracts

REHEEFTRSHIBMRS
- —FUA

- —FARMERFIAAN

- AF IR

BURKHR AR 2 M B

FEW R EAEERZ
HIE

R RER R
ERRER

MEHSEMEBENZ
REHE

The maturity profile of the present value of the minimum lease
payments before impairment allowances is as follows:

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years
After 5 years

—FIAR
—FRIERFIAR
TF AR

ZEEREER @)

ERmEIZEEAKREEZENEMNR
18 ERTERENENEERARK
BUF R B @& o

TR B B SRR 4 M B 2 A TR
BERE T mAEERFEHER -

BREHERABSNZREFRE

BTREFZERBREREBRERERA
MEREFEZHBAOETERZA
BREENREFE - AH—ROEAR
H=ZRF M5 REEEEEMEA
BEZEEE REREHERERES
HEWZ ZEAEERASERNFELE
HZREWNT -

2016 2015
—B-XE —E-HE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
1,963 2,187
5,908 6,699
5,433 6,604
13,304 15,440
(1,319) (1,636)
11,985 13,804

- (159)

11,985 13,645

BERENREESERREHRA
BT :

2016 2015

S i —E—A%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT T#E
1,693 1,820
5,202 5,854
5,090 6,130
11,985 13,804
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B R HIEE
20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 20. AHHEESHEE
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—AhF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Available-for-sale financial BB ESRZ Al 7T E
assets at fair value TEHEE
Treasury bills (including Exchange Fund Bills) BES(BEIINEEEZE)
— Listed outside Hong Kong - REBLAIN ETR 14,860 -
— Unlisted -3kt 1,847,605 1,049,467
Certificates of deposit held FRFE R
— Listed outside Hong Kong - REBLAIN ETR 128,614 263,247
— Unlisted -3kt 1,750,266 2,519,848
Debt securities BIEE S
— Listed in Hong Kong -REBLM 7,329,307 5,398,471
— Listed outside Hong Kong - REBUINET 12,208,778 9,417,345
— Unlisted -3kt 7,612,507 7,617,187
Equity securities IR 5
— Listed in Hong Kong -REB L™ 60 59
— Unlisted -3kt 232,548 246,858
31,124,545 26,512,482
Available-for-sale financial assets AR ESMEERUT
are issued by: HIEZTT
— Governments and central banks - BT AR ERTT 2,906,189 2,035,715
- Public sector entities - NEHE 627,794 637,466
- Banks - 1T 16,937,492 16,645,275
— Corporate entities - hEEE 10,653,070 7,194,026
31,124,545 26,512,482
As at 31 December 2016, debt securities issued by banks include debt RZZE—RE+-_A=+—H  BBITHEE
securities with fair value of HK$1,353.3 million (2015: HK$260.3 million) THEBESBIEAFEEAT,353,300,000
issued by multilateral development banks. As at 31 December 2016, the BT (ZE—FRF : 260,300,000 ) B %2
fair value of debt securities guaranteed by governments was HK$925.3 ERBITRINEEE S R F+=
million (2015: HK$397.1 million). A=+—B BT EREEIENATEES
925,300,000/ 7T (= F —F 4 : 397,100,000
BIT) °
As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s available-for-sale equity R-_FBE—XRNE+_A=+—8 ~&E=FE&F
securities with a fair value of HK$40.9 million (2015: HK$69.7 million) ANFE(EE A40,900,0008 T (ZE— R F !
were individually determined to be impaired on the basis of a significant 69,700,000 7T ) A9 A fi H &R A B HFRAH A
or prolonged decline in fair value below cost. Impairment losses on these B (E AR = B 7O AR 2N 4% (8 Bl & 7E AR
investments of HK$6.7 million (2015: HK$12.3 million) were recognised in B FA - ZZEENREEE6,700,000/
profit or loss during the year. JL(ZZF—FRF : 12,300,000 T ) E R B =
PR ©
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21.

22,

HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Held-to-maturity investments
at amortised cost

Debt securities
— Listed in Hong Kong
— Listed outside Hong Kong
— Unlisted

Certificates of deposit
— Unlisted

Held-to-maturity investments are issued by:
— Banks
— Corporate entities

Fair value of held-to-maturity investments:
— Listed securities
— Unlisted securities

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Unlisted shares, at cost
Advances

Share of net assets
Goodwill

Less: Impairment allowance on unlisted shares
Impairment allowance for advances to
an associate

OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21.

BEGK AR 2 F5 2
FIHRE

B E S
-REBLM

- RBEABIN LT
-t

kR

-t

FEER R EH T I BIEZTT -

- 4847

-XER

BEIGRES ATES -
- rmES
_

22.

S LTREG - REAE
B3

(54 AR

EE

B JE BTG 2B R
H—HBERRERZ
R

B TSR 5 B
BZEIHKRE
2016 2015
—E—RF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T FHT
76,412 76,075
271,524 271,409
1,046,858 1,046,291
155,090 155,006
1,549,884 1,548,781
1,473,472 1,472,706
76,412 76,075
1,549,884 1,548,781
366,027 370,781
1,249,615 1,263,677
1,615,642 1,634,458
REE QAT 2R
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
10,394 10,394
2,038 2,038
2,063,311 2,014,403
66,182 66,182
2,141,925 2,093,017
(10,394) (10,394)
(2,038) (2,038)
2,129,493 2,080,585
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22, INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22. REENT 2R @)

AIZWEAT(HAE EHLLERAEE
RIS HE) T

The associates of the Bank, all of which are unlisted corporate entities,
whose market price is not available, are as follows:

Form of Place of Particulars of  Proportion of
business incorporation issued and ownership Principal
Name of associate structure and operation paid up capital interest activities
FE AR S R BRTRAR
BEQARER EBBEEN  EEBH ZRAFEE  EEREZLA FEEB
Xiamen Bank Co., Ltd ("XBCL”) Incorporated The People’s 1,875,215,099 19.99% Provision of
EFRAIROERAR([EMRT]) AL Republic of China ordinary shares banking and related
HEE A RARE of RMB1 each finance services
1,875,215,099% (Note i)
BREE REFBITR
ARBAT SRR
VE B (B i)
IBA Finance Corporation (“IBAFI") Incorporated The Philippines 50,000,000 40.00% Provision of
EEaiiiAva REE ordinary shares financing and

of PHP1 each

leasing services

50,000,0008% (Note ii)
SREEFEE REHHRAE RS
BRI E B (Pt i)

All the Group’s effective interest over the associates are held by the Bank AREBRBEANANMAEERESRATTEE

directly. A o

Note i: XBCL is an authorised institution incorporated in the PRC. The Bank Ktati: EFTIR7T AR Bt A 7 0 JEFF 1
is entitled to appoint three directors to the board of XBCL which # o RITEHEZF=rEENAEFIR
comprises thirteen directors. In view of the Bank’s shareholding and ITHEES (BT =(UEFHK) - ZR
representation on the Board of Directors, XBCL is accounted for as RITHH5RER R EFSHI LKA E
an associated company as the directors believe they have significant EETABWEAEEFEALE S  FYE
influence. PIERITIER — BB & 2 FIA B ©

Note ii: IBAFI is a financing company incorporated in the Philippines. The Htatii:  IBAFIBRIEEEZF MK ZBIFE RN A] °

Group has not equity accounted for the investments in IBAFI in view
of the immaterial amount involved.

BRI R 2 BEIMTEE - AEEY
HE LA R an ) ZH FIBAFIZ R ESIABRIA
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22.

23.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Summarised financial information of a material associate, adjusted for
any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

Gross amounts of the associates’

Total assets

Total liabilities

Equity

Revenue

Profit from continuing operations

Post-tax profit or loss from discontinued operation
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Dividend received from the associate

Reconciled to the Group’s interests

in the associate
Gross amounts of net assets of the associate
Group’s effective interest
Group’s share of net assets of the associate
Goodwill

Carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22,

REBE QT 2R )

B RS Y RE

—RERBERR M BERBZ(ER S
BRI Z 2L FHER B A MEHRERS

IREEHR)FEENT :
Xiamen Bank Co., Ltd
EfRTRAERAE
2016 2015
—E-XEF —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET T
Bt &N AR 4858
REE 211,253,226 191,648,049
REE 200,664,383 181,570,992
i 10,321,718 10,077,057
Wezs 4,391,121 3,664,819
ST A FE SRR F 1,128,549 997,141
B IS SRR T B - -
Htp 2wl (191,910) 164,666
2HEKEBEE 936,639 1,161,807
U B B R R AR S - -
EAEEREE AR 2 s
{EBR
BN R FEEMLTE 10,321,718 10,077,057
AEEERER 19.99% 19.99%
AEERLHERAFEE 2,063,311 2,014,403
[EES 66,182 66,182
RERE M ISHREFREEE
2,129,493 2,080,585
23. B ATKRE

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class

of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

NT2BEBRIZTE

Fr A KR RIS A E R A

Particulars of

Proportion of

REEXE  BEX
BENMBRARNGE - REAHBEI - A

issued and ownership
Name of Company paid up capital interest Principal activities
ERITRAR
NEIES AR ZF#E BERSL FEEK
Incorporated and operating in Hong Kong  RE B ML & EE
Fubon Credit (Hong Kong) Limited BB (EE)ERAT HK$65,000,000 100%  Provision of
65,000,00075 70 financing services
R SR
FB Securities (Hong Kong) Limited EREH(BB)ERAA HK$8,000,000 100%  Securities broking
8,000,00078 7T EHELR
FB Investment Management Limited BIRREEEAR AR HK$8,000,000 100%  Fund management
8,000,000/ 70 HeER
Fubon Nominees (Hong Kong) Limited Fubon Nominees (Hong Kong) Limited HK$200 100%  Nominee service
200/87T REARB
Fubon Insurance Brokers Limited BHRBERARAR HK$100,000 100%  Insurance broker
100,000/ 7T services

All of the above subsidiaries are directly owned by the Bank.

RBRELARTS

PR LB AR M ATTEEZER -
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24. FIXED ASSETS 24. BEEE
(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) EREIE¥ER
Furniture,
fixtures and
Premises equipment Total
HRil - £B
L/ES ERE #azE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHExT FHExT
Cost or valuation RAE G {E
At 1 January 2016 R=ZF—RF—H—H 3,504,833 679,022 4,183,855
Additions NE - 150,406 150,406
Disposals af— - (13,823) (13,823)
Surplus on revaluation (Note 12) SshAHKME12) 39,262 - 39,262
Elimination of accumulated WEHEEMEZ
depreciation on revalued premises REtine (61,762) - (61,762)
At 31 December 2016 N-E—REF+-_HA=+—H 3,482,333 815,605 4,297,938
Representing: Rk -
Cost B - 815,605 815,605
Valuation - 2016 HE——T—NEF 3,482,333 - 3,482,333
3,482,333 815,605 4,297,938
Accumulated depreciation EESgig-
At 1 January 2016 R-ZZE—XRF—H—H - 460,220 460,220
Charge for the year (Note 7) FRYTE (KiEE7) 61,762 65,244 127,006
Released on disposal H € B [m] - (13,653) (13,653)
Elimination of accumulated HIHEHMEZ
depreciation on revalued premises 2xtif e (61,762) - (61,762)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+-_A=+—H - 511,811 511,811
Accumulated impairment loss EstREESE
At 1 January and RZTE—A"F—A—HK
31 December 2016 +=-—A=+—H 15,733 - 15,733
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2016 N-_ZE—XRE+-_A=1+—H 3,466,600 303,794 3,770,394
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I

B A R 5 BT 5
24. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 24, @EEE(%)
(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued) (a) BREME%ER@®)
Furniture,
fixtures and
Premises equipment Total
R~ £E
ES & k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT T T
Cost or valuation RAEREE
At 1 January 2015 N-_ZE—hE—H—H 3,496,333 596,331 4,092,664
Additions NE = 83,652 83,652
Disposals HE = (961) (961)
Surplus on revaluation (Note 12) BHABKRME12) 69,951 = 69,951
Elimination of accumulated WHEHMEZ
depreciation on revalued premises REtE (61,451) - (61,451)
At 31 December 2015 N-ZE—hE+=-_A=+—H 3,504,833 679,022 4,183,855
Representing: Rk -
Cost KAE - 679,022 679,022
Valuation - 2015 HE-—T—REF 3,504,833 - 3,504,833
3,504,833 679,022 4,183,855
Accumulated depreciation RAItITE
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—hF—H—H - 400,622 400,622
Charge for the year (Note 7) FAHTE (FTeE7) 61,451 60,544 121,995
Released on disposal & B e = (946) (946)
Elimination of accumulated WHEHMEZ
depreciation on revalued premises Ritine (61,451) = (61,451)
At 31 December 2015 R-E—hRF+=-_HA=+—H - 460,220 460,220
Accumulated impairment loss RItBERE
At 1 January and RZZE—HF—A—HBK
31 December 2015 +=—A=+—8H 15,733 - 15,733
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2015 N-_Z—hFE+=-_A=1+—H 3,489,100 218,802 3,707,902
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24. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 24. EEEE®)
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued) (a) EREIE¥ER@)
Had the revalued premises been carried at cost less accumulated HEMYEIRK AR ZRTHITE AR - Bl
depreciation, the carrying amounts would have been: FREEEAS :
2016 2015
—E-XxF T —hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Net book value at 31 December R+ A=+—BNEEFE 827,646 838,262
(b) Fair value measurement of properties (b) MEZAFEET=Z
(i) Fair value hierarchy () DFIEESREE

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s TRIRALER R EARRES

properties measured at the end of the reporting period on MEEFEZYMERATEE W

a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value HARBEBMBRELAFISHEA

hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. FEEAEMAEZ=ZEQFEE

The level into which a fair value measurement is classified EERR - N EEFEMEEZ

is determined with reference to the observability and BRI RA T EERITETARE A

significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as BB ABREEREEREME

follows: E :

Level 1:  Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. — R E R — A AR (A
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for REt 2 B EERE E %X
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement BEEERTS 2R
date AEBRBIHFEZRTF

BE

Level 2:  Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. AR 2 — At A 204% (BD
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, REFEE—RBREZ
and not using significant unobservable inputs. ATERE AR - AR
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market MERATABREER
data are not available ABEB)FEZATE

B TR R AHE
HEARBHEBTISEE 2
9 A BUE

Level 3:  Fair value measured using significant unobservable =4 FEATABEREZGA

inputs BT E AT ER
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24. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(1)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Fair value at
31 December 2016

B RS Y RE

24. B EEE®)
(b) MEZQFEEFTE@®
()  AFEEZRHEE)
Fair value measurements

as at 31 December 2016 categorised into

—AE AVEEHER-B-AFtZA=+-RSEMT

+=B=+—-H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2RV EHETE —& =t =&
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET
Recurring fair value measurement E& %A FEEE
Premises: by E 3,466,600 - - 3,466,600
Fair value at Fair value measurements
31 December 2015 as at 31 December 2015 categorised into
RZZE-h%F AYEEFER-Z-—RET_A=+—-HLENT
+-A=+—H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AT EEHE —& =% =%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT THL THT TR
Recurring fair value measurement TEWHATFEETE
Premises: by E3 3,489,100 - - 3,489,100
During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there REBEE_ZT-—R"ERZZE—HF
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers +ZA=+—HLEFE  —fk=

into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of
the reporting period in which they occur.

All of the Group’s premises were revalued as at 31
December 2016 and 2015. The valuations were carried out
by an independent firm of surveyors, Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited, who have among their staff
Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the location and category of property being
valued.

The revaluation surplus of HK$32.8 million (2015: HK$58.4
million) have been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the premises revaluation reserve, net of
deferred tax.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair
value measurements

The fair value of premises is determined using market
comparison approach assuming sale with immediate vacant
possession and by reference to comparable sales evidence.

A2 A EAEMER - TEEAE

EEALEE =K - REE 2 HK

Eﬁf\ﬁ%%‘éizmﬁﬁiﬁﬁtﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ&m
NP BESREEHOEE -

AEERBEMER-_T—RFRZ
Z-AF+-A=+—H{ELE
fl o AERBIEMITE KT
iﬁif’iﬂﬁﬁ%&?ﬁ%@?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
(R BT REBHEHS
%@EHEEHE%%%EW&%@
ST HRER)ETT -

& 4 & $ 32,800,000 T (= =
—ﬁi:%Ampm%ﬁ»@m%
EERIBRENEMEEREE
HERARENEEGFER R -

(i) =R FEEFEEFEE
Bl R A 25
MENRTFEEDEATSLERS
EREARREHERBEFAEL
RIHEZBRMET °
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24. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b) Fair
(iii)

(iv)

Fubon Bank & #BiF

value measurement of properties (continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements in Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy

The following table provides a reconciliation of the movement
between opening and closing balances of Level 3 properties,
measured at fair value using a valuation technique with
significant unobservable inputs:

Premises

L/E S

At 1 January ®n—A—H

Depreciation for the year REEFIE

Surplus on revaluation — credit BhAR — FFAWE
to premises revaluation reserve EXRE 1

At 31 December BR+=ZA=+—H

Total gains or losses for the year

24,

MRS R EE A

included in other comprehensive HEp kSRR EE
income for assets held at the end Wz sk Eri8 4858

of the reporting period
— Premises: net movement in
premises revaluation reserve

F2D

Total gains or losses for the year

included in profit or loss for assets BRI ARFE W ask

held at the end of the reporting period  E51E42%8

— Operating expenses: - EESH
Depreciation e

- W% MEEGRB

BRI ERRAFEEA

BEEEE®)
(b) MEZLAFEEFTE @

(i)

=Eye=Y:0F0):
TREIERLATEEAZFERAGE
RATERERTAHEGABIEZ
=REPO IR G2 BB
BE

2016 2015
= —T-AHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
3,489,100 3,480,600
(61,762) (61,451)
39,262 69,951
3,466,600 3,489,100
41,205 66,770
(61,762) (61,451)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (v) BE=RAFEETENEF
Valuation technique Unobservable input Range
fh E B i FHBEGRARE gE

Premises Market comparison approach Premium/(discount) on 30% to -30%

characteristic of the
properties
ES Mgt B A YRR RE S (FTiR) 30%%-30%

The fair value of premises held for own use are determined
using market comparison approach to value these properties
in their respective existing states and uses on the market
basis assuming sale with immediate vacant possession
and by making reference to comparable sales evidence.
The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the
properties which include the location, size, shape, view, floor
level, year of completion and other factors collectively. Higher
premiums for properties with better conditions will result in a
higher fair value measurement.

7

FEBRYMEN R FEEREER
Ty A5 L BIARE R R &
HERSEAALBHEFRIRT
SRERERR L AEHEZFDE -
HEZENENSE  BELE -
miE R 28 BE ZETF
HREMEARSE - LR IFHODE
ZBRaEREHRES A FEER

=
2 °



24,

25.

26.

FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(c) The analysis of net book value of premises is as follows:

Held in Hong Kong at fair value RERRATEERE
— Long term leases (over 50 years) - REBHNGEBR+F)
— Medium term leases (10-50 years) - RHAN(+FER+F)

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

In May 2014, the Group transferred two owned properties situated in
Hong Kong with carrying amount of HK$92,669,000 from premises
to assets held for sale following the Bank’s decision to dispose of the
properties. In December 2015, the Group sold one of the properties,
with a carrying amount of HK$47,225,000, at a consideration of
HK$52,000,000. A gain of HK$4,775,000 was recognised in profit the
year ended 31 December 2015. The Group is committed to a plan to sell
the remaining property.

The asset is measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell at the end of each reporting period. The
carrying amount as of 31 December 2016 of HK$42,700,000 (2015:
HK$45,300,000) represents its fair value less costs to sell. The fair value
measurement is categorized as at Level 3 valuation as described in Note
24 (b)(i) and (b)(iv).

Cumulative income recognized in other comprehensive income relating

to assets held for sale is HK$27,995,000 (2015: HK$27,995,000), net of
tax, which represents cumulative revaluation surplus of the property.

GOODWILL

AR AREE
R—H—8

Cost and carrying amounts
At 1 January

Addition upon further investment in an associate A —RIH& R TE —FREZRE -

At 31 December Nt+=—A=+—H

Goodwill of HK$66,182,000 (2015: HK$66,182,000) in respect of the
Group’s interest in an associate has been included in “Interests in
associates” (Note 22).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS Y RE

24. EIEEE®)

(c) MEREMFEMNIHUT :

2016 2015

S —T-n%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
2,045,900 1,996,500
1,420,700 1,492,600
3,466,600 3,489,100

25. HEHEZEE

R_Z—NFRA  AEERATHEEMNRE
78 B BR T (& 5 92,669,000/8 T K /R B ¥ 3
WEHEBAMEEBRERELEZEE - RZZ
—hF+=-—R AEBEHEF—BRAEA
47,225,000 LRI ¥ % - R {8 A52,000,000
BT BLURRE_ZE—FR&+-_A=+—~
1EFJE % M FER 4,775,000 7T 2 W26 » A
EEAFTELERTYE -

BEEREREHAEEEERAFEEAW
EEBRERE)RLERNGE - R=ZF
—R"NF+=—A=+—8 ' EME{E42,700,000
BT (T —F4 : 45,300,000/ 7C) IHE RN E
AFEBERLEXRDS  MEAFEBEFESE
5= B E (0B E24(0) () K (b)(v) Bt ) °

SR AREMEERATRER - HERF
EH & & E27,995,0008 T ( —E—F 4 :
27,995,000 7T ) (FNBREEIE) - HERMER
2EEHALR -

26. BE

2016 2015

S —g-nF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHRT THx
66,182 43,218
22,964

66,182 66,182

FRASER —RBEARZ#ENE 2R
66,182,000 7L (= F — R : 66,182,000/
TU) BIEFE [ & ARz #Eas | (M EE22) -
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27. DEPOSITS AND BALANCES OF BANKS AND OTHER 27. RITRAIERHMERMBB2ERRE
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 153
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT Fi#T
Deposits and balances from banks RITRAZE 27 R R AR 1,259,307 3,284,568
Deposits and balances from the HKMA ReE RZER R &S 8,159 82,423
1,267,466 3,366,991
Amounts due to banks under repurchase O iE A TR IRTTRIZ
agreements (Note 45(f)) ZFRIE (M EE45(f) 9,708,938 8,600,888
10,976,404 11,967,879
28. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS 28. EFFX
2016 2015
—B-AF —ZT—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T
Demand deposits and current accounts EH R AR 13,717,175 11,629,135
Savings deposits EEFX 1,475,743 1,386,006
Call deposits BT 4,901,228 4,518,727
Time deposits TEHITF X 43,469,715 40,851,221
63,563,861 58,385,089
29. TRADING LIABILITIES 29. XZRET2EE
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHxT FHT
Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills/Notes INEESRE EHZER 2,010,295 2,271,493

30. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE 30. EEABEBEZUNMATLEEZS

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS & E
2016 2015
—F—~F —ZT—RF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FHBT
Zero coupon bond issued BEITEEES 406,185 399,334
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30. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE

31.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The zero coupon bond with a face value of HK$520 million and issue
price of 48.076615% was issued by the Bank on 12 April 2007. The
maturity date for the bond is 12 April 2022 but it can be called by 12
April 2017 on the 10th anniversary of issuance. At the same time, the
Bank entered into an interest rate swap to hedge the interest rate risk
associated with the bond. Under the terms of the interest rate swap, the
Bank makes quarterly floating rate interest payments and receives fixed
rate interest income.

The carrying amount of financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss at 31 December 2016 was HK$113.8 million (2015:
HK$120.7 million) lower than the contractual amount at maturity for the
Group.

The zero coupon bond issued is measured at fair value using valuation
techniques based on observable market conditions existing at the end
of the reporting period; however data in respect of the Bank’s credit
risk volatilities and correlations require management’s estimation. The
total loss arising from the change in the fair value of the zero coupon
bond recognised in profit or loss during the year is HK$6.9 million (2015:
HK$16.9 million), of which there is a loss of HK$0.7 million (2015: loss
of HK$2.8 million) recognised during the year attributable to change of
credit spread.

To the extent the Bank’s credit risk volatilities that are not supported
by observable market prices are altered by 10% in either direction the
fair value of the zero coupon bond would either be lower by HK$18,000
(2015: HK$0.4 million) or higher by HK$18,000 (2015: HK$0.4 million).

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED

3 months or less but not repayable on demand
1 year or less but over 3 months
5 years or less but over 1 year

All certificates of deposit issued are measured at amortised cost.

B RS Y RE

30. EEABBESURRAFVEEZE

31.

=fAAATNERAREZRER
—EFHUTHE=EAAL
REHUTHE—FULE

e s

TR ZBZLFNA+ZBEITEZEAER
520,000,000/ T ZBEH @ HITEAREH
{6.248.076615% ° EH N T —F M A
TR ERRETETRESE BT
—tEFEWH A+ AWER - R - AT EE T
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@Zﬂ%@ﬁﬁﬂﬁT—ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%

o BIRZFIERIZHENZ 6K NTEE
g@@ﬂfﬁﬁﬁ + W 1% [ E ) = R

B o

R-TB—RE+-A=+—H 5T ABBEAE
HEARMAFEEzEMEEZ RAAELANE
Bz A& # % #H £ %81K113,800,0007% 7t (=
T—F4 : 120,700,000/ 7T) °

BERTEEEFNBEBERRRE AR ATE
ROMBRANGEEEEZATFEEFSE - A
- BRARITEERREE REENE 2 BEHR
EBEEL(ET - AFEREBETREINTE
&5 /A (& B % 8) B8 4258 56,900,000/
JE(ZZ—FAF :16,900,000/87T) * HAPARF
EREEZ B %88 3HEREE 700,000/ T
(ZZ—FAF : 5182,800,000/7T) °

W3ERBAEMEZ AT EERREEMS
MEEE10%  TEEFHAFEEAERD
18,000/ 7T (ZZ —F4F : 400,000/ 7T ) 8k 32
18,0008 7L (=ZZ— A : 400,000% L) °

ERITERE
2016 2015
—E—RF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT Fi#T
300,000 199,981
1,520,319 410,000
1,014,571 930,537
2,834,890 1,540,518

PR B BT R E D IR AR AN DI BR
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32. DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

S

Zero coupon notes TEEE

The zero coupon notes issued represent the notes issued by the Bank
and are denominated in HKD and USD, and mature at various dates from
2017 to 2022.

All debt securities issued are measured at amortised cost.

33. OTHER LIABILITIES 33.

Net defined benefit liability (Note 39(a)(i))
Accounts payable and other liabilities

[ ARIE R At B A

34. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 34.

FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current tax (recoverable)/provision in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents:

Provision for Hong Kong Profits FANEBNEH
Tax for the year £
Provisional Hong Kong Profits Tax paid B EBEEFEH

Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax
(recoverable)/provision relating to prior years

FBEFEEENEH
QEEDYE S o o

i -
EIGEEETEE R
EEFISREE"

Representing:
Hong Kong Profits Tax recoverable*
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax*

*

The amounts of taxation recoverable and payable are expected to
be settled within 1 year and are included in the “Accrued interest
and other assets” and “Other liabilities” respectively.

124 Fubon Bank & R1T
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32. CRITEBKES

2016 2015

S —T-n%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT THRT
821,482 1,383,814

BOTERRBHEENATEITRE - SWABT
RETHE BT —tFEZ_T__FHET
R B T2 -

BB BITEBEF DR ERR AR

Htt& &\

2016 2015

S —T-n%
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT THRT
56,164 86,041
1,120,950 1,176,590
1,177,114 1,262,631

mEMBRRRZFEB

(a) SEEFHBMR TR (AU E ENE
BiIE) BNEARIH AR

2016 2015
—E-REF —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
59,768 84,607
(87,393) (69,745)
(27,625) 14,862
(438) 15,550
(28,063) 30,412
(28,063) (1,853)

- 32,265

(28,063) 30,412

* A o] R JE R & AR FRET IR — F A
JEIE - WEHE 5 B G FETE [ EaT T
BEREMEEIAL [EMEEIA



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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34. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

34. REMBRARZFABH @)

(b) BEERELEHEEEREGS

RESHBRRENER Z BEEE
E/ ()2 RERBARENZE

during the year are as follows: NN
Depreciation Revaluation
allowances of available-
in excess Defined  Collective for-sale
of related benefit  impairment financial ~ Revaluation
depreciation scheme allowance assets  of premises Other Total
fitel]
EHT EEEA &a AfiHE
E&HE HH HERE SMEEER  MEER it g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T Thx Thr T ThR
At1 January 2015 W-2-R%-A-A (23741) 10412 6,754 (08221 (447,959 (5615 (488,369)
(Charged)credited namiving atthe  WAEERFIR(H1B)/
proft for the year (Note 11(a) BE(FE1E) (3,939) (1,370) - - 114 (1,541) (6,735)
Oreditecd/(chargec) to other REMZEREHEE/
comprehensive income (Note 12) (1) (MizE12) - 5,523 - 22,466 (3,181) - 24,808
At 31 December 2015 R-F-RE+-A=t-H (27679 14,565 6,754 (6755 (£51,025) (7156  (470,29)
At1 January 2016 R=B-AE-A-R 27,679) 14,565 6,754 (5,755)  (451,025) (7.156)  (470,296)
(Charged)/credited in arriving at the RAZERAR(H1%)/
profit for the year (Note 11(a)) BE (HEE11(a) (13,060) (1,175) 11,204 - 114 (11,398) (14,315)
(Charged)/credited to other REf2ERES (NB)/
comprehensive income (Note 12) B (K&12) - (3,767) - (10,344) 1,043 - (12,168)
At 31 December 2016 REE-AETZA=1-A (40,739) 9,623 17,958 (16,099) (448,968) (18,554) (496,779)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised is summarised as CHERAREHBEBEERBERMBMOT -
follows:
2016 2015
—E-REF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Net deferred tax assets RE AR R IR 2B IR
recognised in the consolidated BEFH
statement of financial position 6 22
Net deferred tax liabilities RE MBI R IR 2 IR IR
recognised in the consolidated BEFHE
statement of financial position (496,785) (470,318)
(496,779) (470,296)

(c) Deferred tax assets unrecognised

The Group has no material unrecognised deferred tax asset as at
31 December 2016 (2015: HK$Nil).

(c) RERZEILEHRBERE
R-F—AF+-A=+—A0 ~%H
WEEAABRAZECHBEE(ZZ
—RF:E) e
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35.

SUBORDINATED NOTES ISSUED

35. ORITREZE

2016 2015
—E-XF —ZE—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHT
US$200 million 6.125% subordinated W =T —ZF217200,000,000% 7T
notes issued in 2010 FRBEE6.125%MEERE 1,544,304 1,642,024

Subordinated notes with face value of US$200 million (equivalent
to HK$1,550.9 million) and carrying amount of HK$1,544.3 million
which qualify as supplementary capital were issued by the Bank on 30
November 2010 and mature on 30 November 2020.

If at any time the HKMA determines (having regard to the applicable
regulatory framework) that these subordinated notes no longer
qualify as supplementary capital, the Bank may, on or after 1 January
2013 at its option and subject to the prior written approval of the
HKMA, provide notice to such effect to Noteholders, such notice
being a “Change in Status Notice”. Upon a Change in Status Notice
becoming effective, these subordinated notes shall cease to constitute
subordinated obligations of the Bank and shall thereafter constitute
direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of
the Bank and shall at all times thereafter rank pari passu and without
any preference among themselves. The payment obligations of the
Bank under these subordinated notes shall, save for such exceptions
as may be provided by applicable legislation, at all times thereafter
rank at least equally with all its other present and future unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations including liabilities in respect of deposits.

These subordinated notes bear interest at 6.125% per annum, payable
semi-annually. Upon a Change in Status Notice becoming effective,
the interest rate for these subordinated notes will become 5.625% per
annum, payable semi-annually. These subordinated notes are stated at
amortised cost.

ATR-_E—ZTF+—A=1+HETEES
200,000,000 7t (1 E 1 A1,550,900,0007%
7T ) & BRE{E & 1,544,300,0005% 7T & 75 & Kt
MEREANNBESZE  ZZBERN_S=2F
+—A=1+B835H -

fiE 2B RIMEAIRHERE (K Z BERNE
RER)ARERBETBESERIERNME
K- RIAIR=ZE—=F—A—BHziztk &
EERGLEREAMERERAREREA
BAEMAZE  ZBRAE R EERM] -
R EEBAENR  ARERBE T BE
MATTZEREEE  YREREKRATZE
% EBRM4  FREREERELT LHERE
BREFMBHZERSEan - BRELBREMNE
SEHE o BRBERAR AR E Z BISMERID - &
TTIRBARERE 2 FEAER N LR
M= EMA H MR A MR REEIR R IR E
BE(BRABEERZAB) ZERFHEE -

R ERBRFNE6126% 8 » BFFX
R—IR - M FBANERR - NREREZ
FHRGER5.6256%  FFFEXM—K &
REZHEABERRATIIR -

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. IR

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

—E-RE —Z-TfF
tT=RA=+-H T-A=t-A
Number of Share Number of Share
shares capital shares capital
ROHE RA RHEEA R
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Issued and fully paid: ERTRER:
Ordinary shares EER
As at 1 January and 31 December R—A—BR+=A=+—H 1,641,273,089 4,830,448 1,641,273,089 4,830,448

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at a general meeting of the Bank.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Bank’s residual assets.

R E AR R R B AR AT
ZRERE ERERKE—F - A EARYEA
TZRBEEZERSHA -
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37. RESERVES

38.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Foreign exchange reserve

The foreign exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translations of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 2(t).

Regulatory reserve

The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the
Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision purposes.
Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained
earnings and in consultation with the HKMA.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets,
excluding impairment losses, until the financial assets are
derecognised and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies in Note 2(g).

Premises revaluation reserve

The premises revaluation reserve have been set up and are dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for land
and buildings in Note 2(j).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated cash
flow statement

Cash and balances with banks

Money at call and short notice with
original maturity within three months

Treasury bills with original maturity within
three months

Placements with banks with original
maturity within three months

Re MNRITREZ &%
R =18 A AZ Iz B RERER

OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. #E
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Be
(a)

38.

FR=1EAAREHzBEES

R =18 A A EIHZ 817 R KR

BAREERE ML

SNE A
REBEIMERKERERTE SN EHY
BREMELZMAIEZR  ZHE
IR EE2() T SR EUR R IE

EERE

AR CRITREP) BB E MR EDEE
FENEEBRZEENEM - ZFHEZ
HHNEFRRATER B RRERREF
BN e -

REEMGEE

REEGREREAIRBESREEL
ATEEEEZEREEFLERZR
STEEFRE(TEEREBRE) - THIRH
E2(QHR Z BERIRRERE ©

MEEMLEE

MEE GG TR E2() P i Rig
FHRNZ ST RRPTRIL K ERIE

RERREEE

RERERBRCAEREFAR
£IHH

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
1,757,546 1,202,701
3,951,888 7,475,483
3,020,837 2,210,000
1,893,845 259,985
10,624,116 11,148,169
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38. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of
financial position

Cash and short term funds (Note 14) BeREHES (ME14)
Treasury bills B 5 %5

— Trading assets (Note 16)
— Available-for-sale financial assets
(Note 20)
Placements with banks and other
financial institutions (Note 15)

Amount shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position

Less: Amount with an original maturity
of over three months -

Cash and cash equivalents in the

consolidated cash flow statement HeIEE

39. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(@)

Defined benefit retirement plans

The Group operates a retirement scheme, namely the Fubon Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited Retirement Scheme (“the Scheme”), which
incorporates a defined benefits plan for 23% (2015: 24%) of its full
time employees. The Scheme is administered by trustees who are
independent. The assets of the Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group. The Group has secured Mandatory Provident
Fund (“MPF”) exemption status for the Scheme. The Scheme is
funded by contributions from the Group in accordance with the
trust deed governing the Scheme and based on an independent
actuary’s recommendations. The latest independent actuarial
valuation of the Scheme was at 31 December 2016 and was
prepared by Billy Wong, Fellow of the Society of Actuaries, of
Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited using the projected unit credit actuarial
cost method. The actuarial valuation indicates that the Group’s
obligations under the Scheme are 80.17% (2015: 70.90%) covered
by the plan assets held by the trustee.

The Scheme offers a lump sum at retirement based on final salary
and years of service or employee and employer contributions if
greater. The contribution based benefit is notionally invested in a
“guarantee fund” (for which the Group acts the Guarantor), with no
less than a 5% p.a. return.

Fubon Bank & #BiR1T

38. HERERKRESER 4w

(b)

- FIERSRABEE(MFE16)
- A ESREE (FIF20)
RITHEM BB (FIRE15)

RaMBRRR AT 2

B RBIEA R A =1E A A EEI

HARSRPRAZRENER

39. BE&

(a)

R BN R 2 H AR

2016 2015
—E-xE —E-HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
6,019,614 8,678,184
2,310,246 2,279,980
1,862,465 1,049,467
3,264,233 885,449
13,456,558 12,893,080
(2,832,442) (1,744,911)
10,624,116 11,148,169
EARER

ERRARIATE

REBET-HBEKTE  BARAEH
BIT(BB) BRABIRKE 8 ([ &5
Bl]) BH23%(ZZT—FF : 24%)
2R B R —BTEEBAE o Zat
EHBYZEAETE - ZAtEEEEAN
SEMEESRREAE - AEBEFZE
BEARGIEAER([RES )RR E
7 o ZEt B A AREBERERE Xt 8
MEERE  TUBYEEMNER A
EMELHHR - BRI BIRE
HEMR-_ZE—A"F+_A=+—RH#
7 AEH(EBERARZEERGE
BiEEMAee 8 ) Bt BAEETR
mE - ZREEMERS  ANEBEAZET
ZIFAEZEER  8017%(=ZF—H
F : 70.90%) Al FE BT L AT E A
BB ERISIRE o

et B RN ENME B &R & MR
BEHIBEIHFZBESERE —F2
B ARNBRHZ AN AR ERER—
AIERES (ARBIERERAN) - F
B 3R AMERE%
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39. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 39. EERMKER ()

ERE AR B ()
AT B M A0AE BARR - MR AIAE
ABAEBERERE AN - BEZ

FTEIMRE R IS o AT - ERREF
7B R At ?‘Xi@#&ﬂi%ﬁ*ﬁ@i&ﬁzﬁﬁ

(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (continued) (a)

The Scheme is closed to new entrants except that in exceptional
circumstances new individual entrants are allowed to join at the
Group’s discretion, so that the plan’s size is contained. However,
the defined benefit element and the 5% p.a. guaranteed return

offered on contributions exposes the Group to actuarial risks such [ T e L TFU M =R - RE
as interest rate risk, investment risk and longevity risk. e &E?ﬂ
(i) The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement ()  REE B ERERN L
of financial position are as follows: 20T :
2016 2015
—EB—XRE —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Present value of wholly or partly EREEE D BB
funded obligations AYEIRE (283,198) (295,693)
Fair value of Scheme’s assets ZatBlEEN R TEE 227,034 209,652
Net liabilities recognised in the (RE I ISARR R TR
consolidated statement %1;@%5(% #£33)
of financial position (Note 33) (56,164) (86,041)

LB EN —F DRSNS —

A portion of the above liability is expected to be settled

after more than one year. However, it is not practicable to
segregate this amount from the amounts payable in the
next twelve months, as future contributions will also relate
to future services rendered and future changes in actuarial
assumptions and market conditions.

The Scheme follows a tri-annual funding valuation schedule
when at each funding valuation, the contributions for the
following three years are set. The last funding valuation was
as of 31 December 2015 and it was assessed at that valuation
that the entity contributes 14.2% of member’s salary. The
funding valuation as of 31 December 2016 is being carried out
by the Scheme actuary, in which the 2017 contribution level
will be reviewed.

In addition to the above, the Group acts as the “Guarantor”
to meet the 5% year return on the defined contribution
benefits. The annual contribution relating to this obligation
is determined annually (based on the Scheme’s return in the
1 July = 30 June financial year). The Guarantor contribution
determined for the 1 July 2016 — 30 July 2017 financial year is
HK$9,665,000 which will be made in the first half of 2017.

FREE - A - BEZEBERARK
TARNESBET OB T ER
R A AR SRS TR0 R BR A R

SRS R 45 R 58 R B S 4 SR S
@Jo

ZEH BN =F —RBA G ENR
E?&‘TX:Q% e I — XA
TG ABII—E—RET=A
=+—B ERE®}MEFS

14.2% 1 H 4 miﬁaﬁéﬂéﬂﬁ AT
B EMEEETRE T —RF
TZA=tT—HHORERE - %A
B — T FHHFKFE

Br EXXBASN - REBHER [HERAL
LA w2 FE B B A T SF 5% /9 [
o BAZAETNERRAREBFET
(%#tﬂ*ﬁ?ﬁﬂ:JrEfﬂfﬂEﬁl
FEZTENER) - ZFT—RF

+tA—HBE=Z— titﬁ =t
A BERENERARREEES

9,665,000 7T ' WK T —+
FLFFEL -
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39. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 39. EERNKERN @
(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (continued) (a) EXERFRINETE (@)
(i) Plan assets consist of the following: (i) ErEIBEEEFWT :
2016 2015
= e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
Equities or Unit Funds %N =Sk v 14,902 2,103
Interest bearing securities T ERHES 37,947 53,023
Bank deposit, cash and other RITER - BekHM 174,185 154,526
227,034 209,652

All of the bonds have quoted prices in active markets.

(iii)  Movements in the present value of the defined benefit

obligation

At 1 January:
Remeasurements:

— Actuarial losses arising from
changes in demographic
assumptions

— Actuarial (gain)/losses arising
from changes in financial
assumptions

— Actuarial losses arising from
experience adjustments

Benefits paid by the plans
Current service cost
Interest cost

Participants’ contributions

At 31 December

FBBEHFNERTISERE -

(ii) E&EEFIE FRERE

2016 2015
—E—xF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FaxT Fi#T
R—A—H 295,693 271,671
BIEE
- AAFEHBRREBEELE
BEEE
39 18,786
- IS EREREEEL Y
BE (W) B8
(25,341) 3,650
- BAARELEZREER
3,757 9,634
274,148 303,741
sTEIE R (11,409) (27,664)
N B AR 75 A AN 13,237 11,900
NN %N 3,399 3,569
SEEMHR 3,823 4,147
R+=-—A=+—H” 283,198 295,693

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit
obligation is 5.6 years (2015: 6.3 years).

Fubon Bank & R1T
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39. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 39. BEERHKEN @)
(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (continued) (a) EEEFEMNGTE @)
(iv) Movements in plan assets (iv) Er&&EEE)
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
At 1 January: »w—HA—H 209,652 210,710
Group’s contributions paid to the plans 48 £= [ % 5+ 2| &9 3¢ 27,130 27,189
Benefits paid by the plans EIE2AER (11,409) (27,664)
Interest income FEUY A 2,520 2,889
Administrative expenses paid EREIEESTEGE G
from plan assets (2,142) (2,069)
Return/(losses) on plan assets FTEIBERR (EE) 1,283 (1,403)
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 227,034 209,652
(v)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (v) REETEWNZRFEHERZ
comprehensive income are as follows: SEELIT -
2016 2015
—B-RF —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Current service cost (Note 7) ANEARR AR AN (B 77 ) 13,237 11,900
Net interest on net defined benefit liability & 7848 K| & (&5 58 2 7% 7 & 879 680
Administrative expenses and taxes 1TECZ R 18 2,142 2,069
Total amounts recognised in RIEEPERZ B
profit or loss 16,258 14,649
Actuarial (gain)/losses BE (), BE (21,545) 32,070
(Return)/losses on plan assets, FElEEZ (BHR), B8 -
excluding interest income NEIER SHA (1,283) 1,403
Total amounts recognised in other REMEERERT
comprehensive income (Note 12) R (MzE12) (22,828) 33,473
Total defined benefit cost TERRAE MIBC AN B FE (6,570) 48,122

The actual return on the Scheme’s assets for the year BE-_ZE—XRFEt+-_A=+—H
ended 31 December 2016 amounted to approximately IEEE  FEHEEERO®RE
HK$1,661,000(gain) (2015: HK$583,000(loss)). 1,661,000 7T (=) (ZFE—H
£ : 583,000 T (&18)) °
(vi) Significant actuarial assumptions (expressed as (i) EABERZ (XA BINEFSE
weighted averages) and sensitivity analysis are as B) REBZ TR -
follows:
2016 2015
—E—REF —T—A1F
Discount rate YrIR = 1.7% p.a. 1.2% p.a.
FRE1.7% FHE1.2%
Salary increase rate Ha =R 3.0% p.a. 4.5% p.a.

FRE3.0% FRIELE5%
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39. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 39. EERMKER ()
(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (continued) (a) EFEBFEMAKGE @)

(Vi) EAEERR (KB IEFY
B REERESWTLOT ()

(vi) Significant actuarial assumptions (expressed as
weighted averages) and sensitivity analysis are as
follows: (continued)

The analysis below shows how the defined benefit obligation
as at 31 December 2016 would have increased/(decreased)
as a result of 50 basis points change in the significant actuarial

IATHAmBERAEREERRED
S0EEEREERNECR -2
—NE+-A=+—8%m 0O

132

assumptions:

D)

Increase in 50

Decrease in 50

As at 31 December 2016 basis points basis points
R=-ZB—RE+=A=+—H EHAS0EE S T E50E & 2
HK$’000 HK$°000

FE T FE T

Discount rate IR K (7,646) 7,930
Salary increase rate eI 4,531 (3,965)

Increase in 50

Decrease in 50

As at 31 December 2015 basis points basis points
RZE—RF+-RA=+—8H EFFBOMEE S, TS0 fEE 2,
HK$'000 HK$’000

FAET FHET

Discount rate I =x (8,871) 9,462
Salary increase rate e =R 8,279 (7,097)

The sensitivity analysis presented above has been determined
based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period assuming that all
other assumptions are held constant.

(b) Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”)

The Group also operates an MPF scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance and not previously covered by the Scheme. The Group
participates in an approved MPF scheme with the Bank Consortium
Trust Company Limited to provide a scheme choice to both existing
and new employees. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement scheme administered by an independent trustee.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make mandatory contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately.

In addition to the mandatory contribution, employees will have
an one-off election to make a voluntary contribution of 5% of
employee’s relevant income. At the same time, the employer will
make a matching voluntary contribution accordingly.

Fubon Bank & R1T

(b)

B 2 SR BT AT I B R Ty
KRB HARBR T AT E
(BEFTA M BRERETE) o

BEE LB E((REEETE )

AEBETRBEFE GBI RTRES 58 15k
PIRREEEREGIEEEENZRE
MARBHIAZFENNESHETT —H
wiEEstE o AEESERHETLER
RE—RERANBREBESFE - AR
BE T ABUE BIZHEATEIEE - BES
T &I Ty I8 X FEAPTE A E B
RIKEHE -

RERESS BEMERRASRAR
ST R {E SRR A IE 5% 2 58 i1t
- MEAXRNES ARBEAZ LR
30,0008 7T - —&EHEHBERHK -
FENTF AR -

Brag bl RsN - BERER —R—IR
Mz - SHEARERAERS% 2 BB
K - A - BEEHBAELIERNER
B FEMEHK -
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40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 40. FAREBBRAEE
(a) Credit related commitments and contingencies (a) EREEEBZRERIAEE
Credit related commitments and contingencies include HEERBAERKATER BEAH
acceptances, letters of credit, guarantees and commitments to BE - EHF - BERAANRIE - Y
extend credit. The risk involved is essentially the same as the PZRBEA FEERPREERZE
credit risk involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The EREEAER - RSB EREEEHET
contractual amounts represent the amounts at risk should the E2ROEBPELNEAERR ZH
contract be fully drawn upon and the credit default. As the facilities o ARNZEHERER A AR LIRE
may expire without being drawn upon, the contractual amounts do AIEIER - AN BI TRERIEFT KRR
not represent expected future cash flows. REME ©
The following is a summary of the contractual and credit risk- NTAESEENEEERME&ERS
weighted amounts of each significant class of credit related AREBERIZAEHNSEREENESRE
commitments and contingencies: ZHE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E-hF
Credit risk Credit risk
Contractual weighted Contractual weighted
amounts amounts amounts amounts
EERK BEL
EHNLE mELE BHIETE MESHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FTHERT TERT FTHAT FHET
Direct credit substitutes HEEEENIER 101,117 101,117 65,066 65,066
Transaction-related contingencies AT AR 2 S RTEH 25,580 12,790 27,852 13,926
Trade-related contingencies BB Z AR RIER 267,169 53,434 273,089 54,695
Undrawn loan facilities KM HRAER
— which are unconditionally - Hh Al &G EUE
cancellable 24,751,255 - 25,824,266 -
- with an original maturity of - RETRIHER A
up to one year BEE—F 87,740 17,548 139,516 27,903
- with an original maturity of - RETRIHER A
more than one year —FA E 1,155,142 573,554 1,561,712 777,992
26,388,003 758,443 27,891,501 939,582
The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted AR EEE R IS 58 2 2k nfkE
amounts range from 0% to 100%. LERANF0%ZE100% ©
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40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Lease commitments

At 31 December, the total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Properties: L/E
— Within one year - —FR
— After 1 year but within 5 years -—EZhFMH
— More than 5 years - AFLAE

The Group leases a number of properties and items of equipment
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 1 to 10 years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms
are renegotiated. Lease payments are renegotiated on renewal
upon expiration of lease term and adjusted to reflect market rentals.
None of the leases include contingent rentals.

Capital commitments

Capital commitments for purchase of equipment and available-for-
sale financial assets outstanding at 31 December not provided for in
the financial statements were as follows:

Contracted for EHESED)

Litigation

The Group is involved in a lawsuit where judgment was issued
against the Group during the year ended 31 December 2016.
Related compensation and legal costs of HK$100 million were
recognized in the year ended 31 December 2015. The Group has
filed a Notice of Appeal while the Plaintiff also filed a Respondent’s
Notice regarding the compensation amount. Additional
compensation of HK$73 million and interest, which cannot be
reasonably estimated, may be incurred should the final judgment
be in favour of the Plaintiff. Based on legal advice, the Directors
do not believe it is probable that any further compensation will be
incurred by the Group and therefore no additional provision has
been recognized for this lawsuit.

Fubon Bank & #BiR1T

40. FREBBREAE @)
(b) HMEFEE

(c)

(d)

R+ZRA=+—H TABESERESE
TZARKEENESLRNT

2016 2015
= i —T0F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FAT
24,792 28,998
38,248 26,439
17,204 11,560
80,244 66,997

AEERBLELHEHEEAE TYELR
BER - BEHEHENTRFHR—F5
T WA R E IR P A GRS
HE - MEFRA R EERRE RN
BHRERERRHEARRTSHE
T - HIEEEeEXAES -

BAESE

RTZ A=+ —BRRUBRE NIRE
ZEHBERBRARHESREEL

RABEREEMT :
2016 2015
S —T-5%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
248,014 266,977
AR

AEBFPR—RHFD  RBEE-_FT—RX
FH_A=+t—RILFEHRASEE
HIRER - MR ENRERERIEET
ERBE_ZT-—RAFT_HA=+—HIt
FEBR - AXEERI LFBME
MREATRBESRERER AR
& o MERKHIRRE AR - AIAT8E
2 HBUE INEE {8 € 73,000,000 7T & &
ERBMFZNE c REBEZARER &
ETRRAEEE S BBUEME T
18 - b LA R A RE RSN A



O TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. TRUST ACTIVITIES

42,

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions. These assets and
the income arising thereon are excluded from these financial statements,
as the Group has no beneficial interest in the assets.

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Financial instruments carried at fair value

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made as of a specific point in time based on the characteristics
of the financial instruments and relevant market information. The
Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for
an identical instrument.

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable either directly (i.e., as prices)
or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category
includes instruments valued using: quoted market
prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in markets
that are considered less than active; or other valuation
techniques where all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly observable from market data.

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
category includes all instruments where the valuation
technique includes inputs not based on observable data
and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect
on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes
instruments that are valued based on quoted prices
for similar instruments where significant unobservable
adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect
differences between the instruments.

41.

42.

B RS Y RE

ERERE

REE—RATEE AREMZEANTHREK
BA 575 - BRNEFG B R E MBI E K
FEEE - ARNAEBUENZSEETHER
EmEn 0 AUtREEEREMEE ZWAT
SNEUBIHRERIIRR

g f

EMITAZAFEE
(a) ARFEESRz2ERIA

APEEZG—RFEETENE - X
NEFERHMHENZERTAZFER
HETSERMELRE - AREERT
IR RRGTEMAZB AR ERNE
ZAFEESFEHEFEATFER

— A HRATARERTSZT%

WECREHR) -
. B — A% P R ¥R {8 DA SN AT R
FE & (BIER) E & (AR
BERBMAZE 22 8E
EER T RETREZ
ITE: BUTARERMS
ZTSRE  TEERTS
ZHERAHBEUT R ZRE
B ERBIBH A ER X
HERTZBEEBEEMER
Z E A E R -
=R I IR AR B2 T 45 8% (N A
BERBARR) RERNEE
FEENBABE - 298
BREGEXMEIFERAE
RYEATEBREHIEST
B MEBEAREZHRE
TA - HEATABRAE
RERAAANRRTAZHE
MERE  Z0 BERRER
UTABEMGENTE -
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42. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. T AZAVFEE®
UAFEBEIERZEMTA®

TRIIARFBESRHZ(RFEER
D 2R) D AT A IR E IR A R FHEER

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued) (a)

The table below analyses financial instruments, measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period, by the level in the fair value

hierarchy into which the fair value treatment is categorised: EZEBIA :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—#& =& =& k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2016 —E-REF FET FHET FHET FET
Assets EE
Trading assets BIEX SRR EE 2,310,246 - - 2,310,246
Financial assets designated at 16 AR IE A Rl
fair value through profit or loss NEEBEZEMEE - 39,226 - 39,226
Derivative financial instruments TESRTE - 753,244 - 753,244
Available-for-sale financial assets A[{tHHE S B EE 13,632,633 17,257,363 234,549 31,124,545
15,942,879 18,049,833 234,549 34,227,261
Liabilities =L
Trading liabilities REGBEHE N2 AE 2,010,295 - - 2,010,295
Financial liabilities designated at 5 7F /3% i@ 18 25 LA [ it
fair value through profit or loss RIEEEZEHEE - 406,185 - 406,185
Derivative financial instruments PTEeRITA - 443,714 - 443,714
2,010,295 849,899 - 2,860,194
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
— % =& HaTE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2015 —T—RF FHET FHT FHET FHET
Assets BE
Trading assets RIERGRABEAE 2,311,007 15,403 - 2,326,410
Financial assets designated at Y& AR e e A R
fair value through profit or loss ATEEEzZEREE 40,502 = = 40,502
Derivative financial instruments PTEemIT A - 966,857 - 966,857
Available-for-sale financial assets A[{ft HE S B EE 16,128,588 10,135,035 248,859 26,512,482
18,480,097 11,117,295 248,859 29,846,251
Liabilities =L
Trading liabilities REBEE TN EE 2,271,493 = - 2,271,498
Financial liabilities designated at 5 7F /3@ 8 18 25 LA = it
fair value through profit or loss AREEEZZ/RAE - 399,334 - 399,334
Derivative financial instruments MTEEBMIE - 963,656 - 963,656
2,271,493 1,362,990 = 3,634,483
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42. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

During the year 2016 and 2015, there were transfers of financial
instruments from Level 1 to Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy as
active markets cannot be identified for identical instruments.

(1)

Valuation of financial instruments with significant
unobservable inputs

The following methods have been applied in determining the
fair values of financial instruments under Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy:

()  the fair value of unquoted equity investments is
estimated using the net asset value as reported by
management of the investee companies; and

(i) the fair value of unlisted investment funds is estimated
using the net asset value as reported by the managers of
such funds.

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning
balances to the ending balances for fair value measurements
in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

B RS Y RE

42. SRTEZAFEE®
(@ UXAFEBEYEZEHMIA @

RZE—RNER_T—HF  ARKEE
MR TESHHERTYE  ZET&R
TERATBESHRHES —REBE
FR o

() EAEXTABEEEETZ
EHMITAGE
INTHEERREEATFEBESR

HE=RATZeRMIAZRAFE

B :

() REMEBzZBRAREZAF
BEDLERZFRKRERT
I G W B E R EETT
st « &

(i) EEMREEZZAFEE
ENZEEE Z KB RBH
BEFEETHE -

TREIAFEESRIE=RA

RFHEEEZFVRERFLR

BBk :

Available-for-sale financial assets

Assets BE
At 1 January R—H—H
Purchases EE
Sales &
Settlements e
Changes in fair value recognised FIEEEAERZ
in profit or loss: AEEEED :
— Impairment losses on — A HE S E
available-for-sale financial assets B EZRERE
Changes in fair value recognised in other £ E fh 2 E A
comprehensive income R AT EEE
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8

RIEMRIFTE ZEEA

Total gains or losses for the year included

in other comprehensive income for assets ~ Hfth 2 EWes 2 ANEE
held at the end of the reporting period W sk B iE 4258

R EMRIFTE ZEEA
BaRZ AFRE SR
BB

Total gains or losses for the year included
in profit or loss for assets held at the end
of the reporting period

AHEESMEE
2016 2015
—B-AEF —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FET
248,859 268,312
9,960 7,928
(15,995) (30,702)
(6,685) (12,254)
(1,591) 15,575
234,548 248,859
(1,591) 15,575
10,085 6,572
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42. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERMIAZAFEE®

(@) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

() UAFEESRz2EMT A

(i) Effects of changes in significant unobservable (i)  FEAXT A BER (AR 1 B S B ¢
assumptions to reasonably possible alternative A7TERAERR ZE

assumptions

Although the Group believes that its estimates of fair value are
appropriate, the use of different methodology or assumptions
could lead to different measurements of fair value. For fair
value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, a

ERAREEREE R FEEMETE
HE  ERERTRTAHMBRA
BEEHAFEEZTRFGE - gt
FRESAHIE=RT2AFEE

AEME  SXZHTFHRBEE
FEREETREE10%A EEL
TIRE :

10% change in either direction in the net asset value reported
by respective counterparties would have the following effects:

Effect on other

Effect on profit or loss comprehensive income

HERRNXE HEMREKRNTE
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable
B2 T2 BHEs THIZE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
As at 31 December 2016 R-ZB-RF+=-A=t+-H TER TR TER TERT
Asset gE
Available-for-sale financial assets FJ{tHHEERIEE - (1,200) 23,455 (22,255)

Effect on other

Effect on profit or loss comprehensive income

HHRRRNTE HHEMEEBRNTE
Favourable  Unfavourable Favourable  Unfavourable
BHE®  THE® AR R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December 2015 RZZE-—RFE+=-A=+—H FHT FAL FAT FAT
Asset BE
Available-for-sale financial assets At ES R EE - (1,963) 24,886 (22,923)

(b) FUAFEENERZSHIA
AFEE
THTERERBRRERBNEER T
RINRzE@MT A2 XFEE :

(b) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

The following methods and significant assumptions have been
applied in determining the fair values of financial instruments
presented in the table below:

BREBERNES TR ZFHE
REZAFEERNBREHRTE

(i)  the fair value of demand deposits and savings accounts with (i)
no specific maturity is assumed to be the amount payable on

demand at the end of the reporting period; KBRS
(i)  the fair value of variable rate financial instruments and loans iy BREELMIANRERZAFE

BEROEERSHE - EEQFEE
ERRITTHEZEEMTARE
REEEEZE{  WHEAREE
Rz 85 BERASEIQF
BEMRREBRREFSET N
R K

is assumed to be approximated by their carrying amounts.
Changes in the credit quality of these financial instruments
and loans are not taken into account in determining gross fair
values, as the impact of credit risk is recognised separately by
deducting the amount of the impairment loss and allowances
from both the carrying amount and fair value; and
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42. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value (continued)

(ii)

the fair value of fixed rate loans and mortgages carried at
amortised cost is estimated by comparing market interest
rates when the loans were granted with current market rates
offered on similar loans. Changes in the credit quality of loans
within the portfolio are not taken into account in determining
gross fair values, as the impact of credit risk is recognised
separately by deducting the amount of the impairment loss
and allowances from both the carrying amount and fair value.

the fair value of held-to-maturity debt securities is determined
with reference to the available market value. If quoted market
prices are not available, then the fair value is estimated on the
basis of pricing models (see Note 2(g)(iii)).

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial instruments carried at
cost or amortised cost are not significantly different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 except as follows:

B RS Y RE

42, EMITEZAFEE#®

(b) FUAFEEIRZEMIAZ
NEEE@E

(i)

(iv)

BT R ERRIRBHRKATIR 2
RIBH R FEEREBLBRERE
ZEHREREERZRE TS
MEMEHE - ARNEERRZZE
FRBRESRRAFEENRR
EBEERBEESETAEBER
REEAAFEERITAREEAS
AEERZEELER(E -

BEIRERFS 2 A FEBETIL
LEABEMEET © MEEERT
BIRE - AR FEEREFTEER
( B MFE2(g)ii)) fAET °

REBRRAIBREUATIRZ /BT
BEvREERER -_Z-—RFE-Z%
—hAF+-A=+—-BZAVEELE
BERER - MLATHFIBRS -

2016
—E-RF
Carrying
amount  Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RESHE AFEE —& =t =&
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTExT THExT TEx TERT TERT
Financial assets THEE
Advances to customers REER 2,237,643 2,208,895 - 2,208,895 -
Held-to-maturity investments R HIEE 1,549,884 1,615,642 - 1,615,642 -
Financial liability ZHEE
Deposits from customers RPN 43,469,715 43,480,594 - 43,480,594 -
2015
—ZT-hF
Carrying
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RESE REEE —#&% % =
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FHT THT FHET
Financial assets CHEE
Advances to customers BEER 1,586,525 1,525,620 - 1,525,620 -
Held-to-maturity investments BRIHRE 1,548,781 1,634,458 - 1,643,458 -
Financial liability EREE
Deposits from customers BEER 40,851,221 40,815,699 - 40,815,699 -
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43. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. ERBEZRIRS
During the year, the Group entered into a number of transactions with its FRN - AEBEESGKRIEBRARILBESHE]
ultimate holding company and other related parties. These transactions NVEBERG c RERGEAEERITEB A
were entered into in the ordinary course of the Group’s banking business EERBREDIY - BE(TIRER)EE -« R1T
and included, inter alia, lending, placement of interbank deposits, RIZIFREEFR - HEABRTI I RINERS -
correspondent banking transactions and foreign exchange transactions. ZERGUNETER BT ZHBEATHEERTE
The transactions were priced at the relevant market rates at the time B WHREARERMREETFEMZSIHFIR
of each transaction, and were on the same terms as those available to BEZHREIERETTT - EERE  ZEX5T)
other counterparties and customers of the Group. In the opinion of the BRI ©
directors, these transactions were conducted on normal commercial
terms.
Information relating to income and expenses from related party BERFEFANBESHLGRELS 2 W RRHRE
transactions during the year and balances outstanding as at the end of HiR M AEESBE 2 ERHNNET -

the reporting period is set out below:

(a) Income/(expenses) (@ WA (ZH)
The Group
REH
2016 2015
B —g—5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Fellow subsidiary 5] Z K1 /B 2~ A]
Fee and commission income ZHRAS A 22,665 -
(b) Placement of deposits (b) FHF
2016 2015
—B-AEF —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Fax FHBT
Fellow subsidiary IGES NG
Cash and short-term funds BehEHEe 23,818 43,081
Fellow subsidiary Bl Z K1 /B 2~ Al
Accrued interest and other assets FEET AR R E A& E 610 -
There was no impairment allowance made against the above b it B B 58 R R N A R (B A o

placement of deposits with related parties.
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43. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Acceptance of deposits

Ultimate holding company
Deposits from customers

Fellow subsidiaries
Deposits and balances of banks

and other financial institutions

Fellow subsidiaries
Deposits from customers

Other related parties
Deposits from customers

Financial instruments

Fellow subsidiary
Derivative contracts (notional principal)

OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REBER A A]
BEFEEH

(GES G|
RITFRE LA BIEEZ
Tkl Bk

R ZE AT
BPEH

BT
B

(5] /8 2 &]
MTETRAN(BEAESE)

Loans to directors and entities connected with directors

Loans to directors of the Bank and entities connected with
directors disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong
companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Aggregate amount of relevant loans
at 31 December by the Bank

Maximum aggregate amount of
relevant loans outstanding
during the year by the Bank

ATHEBEEFR Tt —A=1+—H~

R

AITERRAREEREERZ

REAEE

There was no interest due but unpaid nor any impairment allowance
made against these loans at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Comparative figures have been restated to conform with current

year’s presentation.

B A R 5 BT 5
43. EXBESHR G @)
(c) EEMEFR
2016 2015
—B-AE —F-EHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FHT
1,907 1,906
20,608 21,009
244,699 12,381
213,925 -
(d £mIE
2016 2015
—E-RE —Z—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
438,129 437,892
(e) EEREZHEERER

RIBEBCR BHEDIDE383(1)(d) ERLA
AI(RBEEENRERN)RP) FIBHE
RETEEREEFWERRERWNT ¢

2016 2015
—E—XREF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Restated)

(&31))

421,043 71
425,086 145

RZE-—RE+-_A=+—BXEIH
1B R & A B 3k 7% 55 B SR A R (B

W —E—hF: E)-

EBILBBFUTEARFEZZ2INE

# o
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B ER A MR

43. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(f)

(9)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts
paid to the Bank’s Directors as disclosed in Note 8 is as follows:

FrelEiEERN
RIKAER

Salaries and short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note 7).

Credit facilities to key management personnel

During the year, the Bank provided loans and credit facilities to
key management personnel of the Group and their close family
members and companies controlled or significantly influenced by
them. The credit facilities were provided in the ordinary course of
business and on substantially the same terms as for comparable
transactions with other employees. The amounts involved, other
than transactions with the ultimate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries, are set out below.

RT-ZA=+—HEX
S A

Loans, at 31 December
Interest income

Credit facilities, at 31 December

No impairment losses have been recorded against balances
outstanding during the year with key management personnel, and
no individually assessed impairment allowance been made on the
above balances at the year end.

The Bank’s policies for lending to related parties take into account
the requirements under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and the
guidelines of the HKMA. The Group sets internal limits (individual
and aggregate group limits for individual, group, secured and
unsecured exposures) and carefully monitors exposure to related
parties, whether individual or corporate, and takes the necessary
measures to control the risk of connected lending. Approvals are
made by the Credit Committee, the Chief Executive Officer and
Managing Director and/or the Executive Credit Committee.

Fubon Bank & #BiR1T

43. ERBEEZERIRS @)

(f)

(9)

FRER

R+ A=+—HEER%

TEEEASHE

TREBABZME (BEKESMKE
MNFPATEEZRBOWT

2016 2015
—g-xE —Z-n%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Tt Tis
51,147 55,255
2,803 2,873
53,950 58,128

e mmRat A B BRA I (RIEET)
FTEEBAEEERY
FRATAREEZIEZEERBASR
BE 2 BRBBIAR R ZE AL PES
ZRAERFEALTEBERZENZRA
ARHERREER - REEERB IR
EBEBBIETRM - MARBGRER
MEEMAIZZ A BB 5 KR
[ o fR B R AR AR X B K B 2P BB 2 A

KR PN+ H R EEIIAT o
2016 2015
—E—XE —F-IF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
3,542 5,944
48 142
4,160 4,570

WHESLFATZEEA BN RERERE
AEORERE - ARFRIL S Ltk
R E R A FHRE R -

AOTRABESTEFNBRE A REL
CRITRGD)D R EREIIZHRE - &
S ERE RBPIR AR (A E A A R A IR K
EEAERAEAREERFAE) - I
FREBEHEST 2AR(BAREE)
MR E B ERBHRARESBEREZ
Rk - EREES  THAESRESS
BEE/SBITEREESE THUE
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45,

OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N
S 11344 i1

ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY 44. EFRERERRZEE
The following assets have been pledged as collateral for own liabilities at THBECRREHREAESEBEEHART
the end of the reporting period: LA -
2016 2015
ZE—RF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Secured liabilities EERaE 11,719,234 10,872,381
Assets pledged: EEHEE :
Trading assets RIERSRABEE 1,361,802 2,237,486
Available-for-sale financial assets At EcmEE 10,784,252 8,856,973
Held-to-maturity investments SRR E - 116,403
12,146,054 11,210,862
The following balances with banks have been pledged as collateral for THRITRABE R RERRIEAITETERE
margin deposits of derivatives at the end of the reporting period: S F AR T LA
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—RHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THExT FHT
Margin accounts for derivative contracts PTETASHNRESRE A 192,870 667,497
These transactions are conducted under usual and customary terms. ZER G TR B — M K8 R FRHETT ©
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45. BRI ER

This section presents information about the Group’s exposure to and
its management and control of risks, in particular, the primary risks
associated with its use of financial instruments:

= Credit risk: losses resulting from customer or counterparty default
and arising from credit exposures in all forms, including settlement
risk.

- Market risk: exposures to market variables such as interest rates,
exchange rates and equity markets.

- Liquidity and funding risk: risk that the Group is unable to meet its
payment obligations when due, or that it is unable, on an ongoing
basis, to borrow funds in the market on an unsecured, or even
secured basis at an acceptable price to fund actual or proposed
commitments.

- Operational risk: risk arising from matters such as non-adherence
to systems and procedures or from frauds resulting in financial or
reputation loss.

RE2 A RSB PR 2 E R M
B2 B RIS 2 ER - R Rl R EER
BMTAARZEEZRR

%%
RE

-  [FERR: EPERZHFERFKIAM
BEBERNER  URSHESER
B BEEERR -

-  mERRE: mSEHRERRE - flmRx -
EXRRRME

- RDESRBERR : AEBEREEN
REER S BEITNREE - HEER
BETS EABERIEEAGEAN
AREBEAERZBRENES  #BHR
ERSREBZARRAMFOESHR

B -
- BEAR ARKETHERERFZE

R 5| Bz kR sk i ERRF BUE B T s
BEEMIBZEAR
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group has established policies and procedures to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor the risks and limits continually by means of reliable and up-
to-date management and information systems. The Group continually
modifies and enhances its risk management policies and systems to
reflect changes in markets, products and best practice risk management
processes. Internal auditors also perform regular audits to ensure
compliance with the policies and procedures.

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each
of the above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing risks, and the Group’s management of capital.

(a)

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of suffering financial loss in the event that the
Group’s customers or counterparties fail to fulfil their obligations to
the Group. It arises mainly from loans and advances, debt securities
held and counterparty credit risk arising from derivative contracts
entered into with customers or counterparties. It can also arise from
trading and treasury activities.

The Group manages credit risk through a framework of controls to
ensure credit risk taking activities are based on sound principles
and in line with the overall business objectives of the Group. It has
established a set of credit policies and procedures which define
credit risk taking criteria, credit approval authorities delegated
from the Board of Directors (“Board”), credit monitoring processes,
credit rating and scoring systems and loan impairment criteria.

The Board has delegated credit approval authorities to the following
committees in descending order of authority: the Executive Credit
Committee, the Credit Committee and the Wholesale Credit
Committee.

The Executive Credit Committee serves as the credit committee of
the Board to review and approve credits that require the approval
of the Board. In addition, it approves the Group’s credit policies
and credit risk profile, taking into consideration relevant law and
regulations.

The Credit Committee is a management level committee that
provides management oversight of the Group’s credit risk
management. It ensures that the Group has in place an effective
credit risk management framework and that its credit risks are
within the credit policies and credit risk profile as specified by the
Board or its delegated committees. The Credit Committee reviews
and endorses credit policies and credit risk profile for the Executive
Credit Committee’s approval, and reviews and approves credit
related guidelines. It also conducts on-going review of the market
environment and makes necessary policy recommendations to the
Executive Credit Committee to ensure that the credit risk profile
of the Group is within its risk appetite. The Credit Committee
also reviews and approves credits that are within its authority as
delegated by the Board.
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(@) FEERER

EERBRERASEREFPARZE TR
BB 1T HL T AR R (B 7 A i B X B B 7S
B8 - TERNEREBR - AFES
BFLEAREPHARZEUFIILITES

HMEENRZHTFEERR - HAURR
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O TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

The Wholesale Credit Committee reviews and approves corporate
credits that are within its authority as delegated by the Board.

The credit risk departments, Enterprise Credit Risk Management
and Retail Credit Risk Oversight, provide centralised management
of credit risk for corporate credits and retail credits respectively.
They are responsible for:

- independent evaluation of corporate credit applications;
- monitoring loan portfolio and conducting regular analysis;

- managing problem corporate credits to achieve the highest
recovery;

- recommending loan classification, individual impairment and
charge-off; and

- reporting to the Credit Committee and Executive Credit
Committee regularly on aspects of the loan portfolio.

Specific policies and measures to address different kinds of credit
related activities are set out below:

(i) Institutional Banking

Credit risk from Institutional Banking is managed by
conducting thorough credit evaluation, credit mitigation
through collateral and guarantee, internal credit rating system
and post-approval monitoring system. Subject to the size of
the credit, value of collateral and the internal credit rating of
the customer, different levels of credit approval authority are
required. Credit decisions take into account facility structure,
tenor, repayment ability of the obligor and credit mitigation
through collateral and guarantee.

The Group has established limits for credit exposure to
individual industry and customer groups, regardless of
whether the credit exposure is funded or non-funded. The
Group also undertakes ongoing credit review and monitoring
at several levels. The relevant policies and procedures
take into account the rules under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance, regulatory requirements of the HKMA and best
market practices.

The credit risk management procedures are designed to
promote early detection of customer, industry or product
exposures that require special monitoring. Overall portfolio
risk is monitored on an on-going basis. Regular management
reports are submitted to the Credit Committee for review. The
loan portfolio reports cover information on large exposures,
country exposures, industry exposures, loan quality and loan
impairment level.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v)

Retail Banking

Credit risk from Retail Banking is product driven, arising from
retail loan products such as credit cards, unsecured personal
loans, merchant receivable financing, mortgage loans and
loans secured by wealth management products. Because
of the homogeneous nature of these products, credit risk
management is primarily based on statistical analyses of
risks with respect to different types of product, collateral and
customer. The Group determines product terms and desired
customer profiles on a regular basis by developing, validating
and fine-tuning internal scorecards and stress testing models.

Counterparty credit risk

Unlike on-balance sheet instruments, where the credit risk
is generally represented by the principal value of loans or
other financial instruments, credit risk for counterparties of
derivatives is the positive replacement cost together with
an estimate for the potential future exposure from changes
in market value. These credit exposures are managed as
part of the overall credit limits to the counterparties. The
credit risk exposure on derivatives is disclosed in Note 18(b)
to these financial statements. The Group uses the current
exposure method for the purpose of providing capital for such
counterparty exposures.

Wrong way risk occurs when the credit exposure to a
counterparty is adversely correlated with the credit quality of
that counterparty. Credit exposures and potential losses may
increase as a result of adverse change in market conditions.
The Group has set up policies and procedures to control
wrong-way risk.

Credit-related commitments

The risks involved in credit-related commitments and
contingencies are essentially the same as the credit risk
involved in extending loans to customers. These transactions
are, therefore, subject to the same credit application,
portfolio management and collateral requirements as for loan
transactions.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in
geographic, economic or industry factors similarly affect
groups of customers or counterparties whose aggregate
credit exposure is material in relation to the Group’s total
exposures. The Group’s financial risk exposure is diversified
by customer group, industry and product, but is concentrated
in Hong Kong.

Analysis of credit risk concentration of respective financial
assets is disclosed in Notes 14 to 21.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 45. BB EAKRER &)
FERRERE &)

(vi) JBiE1Z B

(@) Credit risk management (continued) (a)

(vi) Credit risk mitigation

The Group’s credit evaluation focuses primarily on the
obligor’s repayment ability from its cash flow and financial
condition. In addition, the Group employs various credit
risk mitigation techniques such as appropriate facility
structuring, posting of collateral and/or third party support as
well as transfer of risk to other third parties, which form an
integral part of the credit risk management process. There
is immaterial credit and market risk concentration within the
credit risk mitigations used by the Group. The most commonly
used credit risk mitigation measures are provided below:

Collateral

The Group holds collateral against loans and advances to
customers mainly in the form of cash deposits, marketable
securities, mortgage interests over properties and guarantees.
The Group also has in place policies and procedures that
govern the assessment, acceptance and the periodic
valuation of the collateral. Collateral taken to secure credit
exposures is revalued periodically ranging from daily to
annually depending on the type of collateral. For treasury
operations, collateral management is based on daily marked-
to-market positions.

Master netting agreements

Collateral generally is not held over credit exposures to banks,
except for securities held as part of reverse repurchase and
securities borrowing activities. However, where applicable,
the Group manages its credit exposures to banks by entering
into master netting arrangements whenever it is appropriate
and feasible to do so. The netting arrangement results in the
settlement of counterparty exposure on a net basis in the
event a default occurs.

The Group’s preferred agreement for documenting derivative
activity is the ISDA Master Agreement which covers the
contractual framework within which dealing activity across
a full range of over-the-counter derivative products is
conducted and contractually binds both parties to apply
close-out netting across all outstanding transactions covered
by such agreement if either party defaults or upon the
occurrence of other pre-agreed termination events.

It is also common for the Group to execute a Credit Support
Annex with counterparties in conjunction with the ISDA Master
Agreement to mitigate the market risk inherent in derivative
transactions.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 45. BIKEREE )
(@) Credit risk management (continued) (@) FERBERE®
(vi) Credit risk mitigation (continued) (vi) JBIEIEE R (&)
The following table sets out the carrying amounts of recognised TREHNZER Ll ZHEH B #ER
financial instruments that are subject to the above agreements. BT AMNRMEE -
Gross amount
of recognised
Gross amounts financial Net amounts
of financial instruments of financial Related
instruments in off-setinthe instruments in financial
the statement statement  the statement instruments
of financial of financial of financial that are
position position position not offset Net amount

$HMIE CEHEHSRIA $RIE
REUBRRZN  REBRRR  RUBRRR REHH

an BANEE WEE  EBERIA it
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December 2016 RZZ-~E+ZR=1-H TR TR TR TER TR
Financial assets PBEE
- Exchange rate derivatives - ERfTETA 67,823 - 67,823 27,250 40,573
- Interest rate derivatives - Fl=fTAET A 156,075 - 156,075 71,351 84,724
223,898 - 223,898 98,601 125,297
Financial liabilties 2REE
~ Exchange rate derivatives -EX{TATE 124,514 - 124,514 27,250 97,264
- Interest rate derivatives - FIEFTETR 256,231 - 256,231 71,351 184,880
~ Equity derivatives -RETETE 116 - 116 - 116
380,861 - 380,861 98,601 282,260
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)

(vi) Credit risk mitigation (continued)

As at 31 December 2015

Financial assets
- Exchange rate derivatives
- Interest rate derivatives

Financial liabilities

- Exchange rate derivatives
- Interest rate derivatives

- Equity derivatives

RZZ-RE+-A=1-H

LREE
-EXfIATA

- FIEfTAT A

FHEE

-EXfETE
- FlEfATA
-RETETA

Other credit risk mitigation measures
The Group may also employ other types of credit mitigation,
such as guarantees and letters of credit, mainly for corporate
exposures. As the value of these types of collateral is
conditional upon other credit related factors, their financial
effect has not been quantified.

OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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45. BB EAKRER &)

(@ FEERBEERE@®
Vi) s E R &)

BAREERE ML

Gross amount
of recognised
Gross amounts financial Net amounts

of financial instruments of financial Related

instruments in off-set in the instruments in financial

the statement statement the statement instruments

of financial of financial of financial that are
position position position not offset Net amount

$RTIA BHEHESHEIA SRIA

REBRRRS  REBRAR  REBRRR AR
a8 ERREE WFE  EHERIA FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL Tt TAL AL TAT
2,449 - 2,449 1,685 764
21,147 - 21,147 2,886 18,261
23,596 - 23,596 4,571 19,025
582,808 - 582,808 1,685 581,128
378,895 - 378,895 2,886 376,009
314 - 314 - 314
962,017 - 962,017 4,571 957,446

HAH RS B R R8I

AEETMEBEREER
BRMEERETR - TEARR
R o AR FRGIRHER
mEEDURNEMEERREEE
M B EEMBTE
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B ERE MR
45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 45. B EBERE @)
(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) EERRERE®)
(vii) Maximum exposure to credit risk i) =iz B R
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the RmEBPREENEERR (T
reporting period without taking into consideration any A 2 AMERREMEE
collateral held or other credit enhancements is represented by IR AT ERARAZES
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of BMEENREMREEER 2E®T
financial position after deducting any impairment allowance. B - ISR - A BB NEAE
A summary of the maximum exposure to credit risk for the NEBrEERBRNREERBEE
various components of the statement of financial position, m

contingencies and commitments is as follows:

2016 2015
ZE—REF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Credit risk exposures relating to HEEBREAANEERBZ
on-balance sheet assets: 1EEEE
Cash and short-term funds ReENEHES 6,019,614 8,678,184
Balances with banks and 17 [F 2 R H A & RS
other financial institutions Fo S 3,264,233 885,449
Trading assets RERSRABEAE 2,310,246 2,326,410
Financial assets designated Y6 TE AR B IE S LA AR
at fair value through profit or loss AREEBEZCREE 39,226 40,502
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTA 753,244 966,857
Advances to customers less BPEEFRBEEE
impairment allowances 43,318,839 42,494,918
Trade bills BEZE 230,137 254,331
Accrued interest and other assets FEEtFI B R EMEE 1,086,407 1,442,515
Available-for-sale financial assets At EcMEE 30,891,937 26,265,565
Held-to-maturity investments HEF|HIEE 1,549,884 1,548,781
Credit risk exposures relating to HEEBEXRINEE BB
off-balance sheet items: 1EEEE
Financial guarantees and other S EREEMEERRB 2
credit related contingent liabilities BEAS=RE 393,866 366,007
Loan commitments and other BERAENHEMEERBZ
credit related commitments HAHE 25,994,137 27,525,494
115,851,770 112,795,013
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 45. BIKEREE )
(@) Credit risk management (continued) (a) EEERRERE®)
(viii) Credit quality of loans and advances (vii) BHREH < lEEEE
At 31 December 2016 and 2015, no loans and advances R-E—RNER-_FT—HF+-A
to banks were impaired. The credit quality of advances to =+—H  mETRERE ZEXR
customers can be analysed as follows: FERVERE AREEHZE

RZERERAAMAT :

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT TFHET
Neither past due nor impaired 37 4% 360 HA SR E 42,711,650 42,022,642
Past due but not impaired B HE I &R (E 531,665 325,568
Impaired ERE 334,282 222,108
43,577,597 42,570,318
Of which: Hep -
Gross loans and advances to customers A& P #% H i 3 42 60 £
that are neither past due nor impaired SUREZ BN E KRB
— Grade 1: Pass - B RmA 42,310,564 42,013,828
— Grade 2: Special mention -FH HBEBEE 401,086 8,814
42,711,650 42,022,642
The Group classifies advances to customers in accordance AEBRBEAREE R RM AR
with the loan classification system required to be adopted for W2 ERDBEERBEEEHET
reporting to the HKMA. par Ik
The ageing analysis of advances to customers that are past AR mE e ERE 2
due but not impaired is as follows: EXRRSTOT ¢
2016 2015
—E—XEF —E—AF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHExT T
Gross loans and advances to MR mE aH
customers that are past B ERE
due but not impaired BERRERERE
— Overdue 3 months or less - @EI=E AT 525,936 324,974
— Overdue 6 months or less but - mHANEA AT
over 3 months ME=EANE - 594
— Overdue 1 year or less but - BE—FH AT
over 6 months MESELA A £ 5,729 -
531,665 325,568
Loans and advances that would be past due or impaired had RZTE—RE+-_A=1+—H  HERTTE
the terms not been renegotiated amounted to HK$10,872,000 HERE AR AR RECETRERESE
as at 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$8,707,000). 410,872,000 7C( —Z— R 8,707,000/
JL) °
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 45. B EBERE @)
(@) Credit risk management (continued) (@) FERBERE®
(ix) Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and (ix) BEAREXAINZ TR EEZ
advances E=0-E3
Credit risk that arises from investments in financial assets or AEBIZEBEENREERRIER
debt securities is managed in the same way as the Group ZHAEESRMEENBEHELER
manages its credit risk under corporate lending, with the BELEZEERME - BT ABERE
exposure to the issuer controlled under the overall lending MEFEHEREMNEEEERE
limit to the customer group. Analysis of debt securities by ZEHRER o IBEEER ZFRIZ
credit rating designation at 31 December, based on Standard K EEZ FRIZESEEREE
& Poor’s ratings or their equivalents, is as follows: AR EEREENT_A=1+—H
HEITZHMAT :
2016
ZE-RE
Financial
assets
designated Available-
at fair value for-sale Held-to-
Trading through financial maturity
assets  profit or loss assets  investments Total
BEXS URBRALEE AfRLE
RBERE ZEREE SREE HEIORE ot
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TER TER
AAA AAA - - 3,115,903 - 3,115,903
AA- to AA+ AA-ZEAA+ 2,310,246 - 9,327,794 659,133 12,297,173
A-to A+ A-ZEA+ - - 13,233,673 735,661 13,969,334
Lower than A- AR - 39,226 4,597,349 155,090 4,791,665
Unrated EE - - 617,218 - 617,218
2,310,246 39,226 30,891,937 1,549,884 34,791,293
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)

OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N
S 11344 i1

45.

(ix) Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and

)

advances (continued)

AAA AAA

AA- to AA+ AA-EAA+
A-to A+ A- A+
Lower than A- A- AR
Unrated mR

BEREEE )
(@ FEERBEERE@®
(ix) BEAREZANZ EHEEZ

EEEEm®)
2015
—Z-1F
Financial
assets
designated Available-
at fair value for-sale Held-to-
Trading through financial maturity

assets  profit or loss assets investments Total

HERBBER

FERS URBATERE AHHE

AREE  2eREE CHEE HEIHRE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR TAL TEL TEL
- - 1,592,219 - 1,592,219
2,279,980 - 8,441,125 658,776 11,379,881
46,430 - 11,307,554 734,999 12,088,983
- 40,502 4,598,003 155,006 4,793,511
= - 326,664 - 326,664
2,326,410 40,502 26,265,565 1,548,781 30,181,258

There were no overdue debt securities of the Group as at 31

December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Collateral and other credit enhancements
An estimate of the fair value of collateral and other credit
enhancements held against financial assets is as follows:

Fair value of collateral and other credit
enhancements held against financial
assets that are:

— Neither past due nor impaired
— Past due but not impaired
— Impaired

NI EBMEEMRAZ

ERmEEMER
R AT EE
- B HORE

- E@HELERE
- ERE

AEER-_Z—A"E+-_A=+—
AYARBECBHERESR(=Z
—hF:E) -

x) HBHFmREMEREAE
B BAEMGA 2 E M R E A
EERTEEZ G5 AFEEN

T~
2016 2015
—E—xF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FHT
102,080,134 93,573,352
1,518,187 945,541
185,122 188,601
103,783,443 94,707,494
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk management (continued)

(xi) Collateral and other credit enhancements obtained

During the years 2016 and 2015, the Group did not obtain any
assets by taking possession of collateral held as security.

As at 31 December 2016, total repossessed assets and
assets acquired under lending agreements of the Group
amounted to HK$8,700,000 (2015: HK$8,400,000).

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable with
the proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.
Repossessed property is classified in the statement of
financial position within other assets.

Market risk management

Market risk arises on all market risk sensitive financial instruments,
including securities, foreign exchange contracts, equity and other
derivative instruments, as well as from the statement of financial
position or structural positions. The Group transacts in the money
market, foreign exchange market, equity market and capital market
giving rise to market risk exposures. Positions are taken as a result
of the execution of customers’ orders, and market making activities,
and offsetting transactions taken in order to hedge the Group’s
open position. The Group does not engage in significant proprietary
trading.

The objective of market risk management is to avoid excessive
exposure of earnings and equity to loss and to reduce the Group’s
exposure to the volatility inherent in financial instruments.

The Board reviews and approves policies for the management of
market risks including dealing authorities and limits. The Board
has delegated the responsibility for ongoing general market risk
management to the Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO”). This
committee articulates the interest rate view of the Group and
decides on future business strategy with respect to interest rates. It
also reviews and sets funding policy and ensures adherence to risk
management objectives.

The Group has also established clear market risk policies, including
limits, reporting lines and control procedures, which are reviewed
regularly and approved by the Board. Market risk is managed within
various limits approved by the Board. These limits are determined
for each financial instrument and include limits on product volume,
gross and net positions, position concentrations, mark to market
limits, stop loss limits and risk position limits.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Market risk management (continued)

The sale of derivatives to customers as risk management products
and the subsequent use of derivatives to manage the resulting
position is an integral part of the Group’s business activities. These
instruments are also used to manage the Group’s own exposures
to market risk as part of its asset and liability management process.
The principal derivative instruments used by the Group are interest
and foreign exchange rate related contracts, which are primarily
over-the-counter derivatives. The Group also purchases exchange
traded derivatives. Most of the Group’s derivatives positions have
been entered into to meet customer demand and to hedge these
and other positions.

One of the tools used by the Group to monitor and limit market risk
exposure is Value-at-risk (VAR). VAR is a technique that estimates
the potential losses that could occur on risk positions as a result
of movements in market rates and prices over a specified time
horizon and to a given level of confidence. The calculation uses the
historical simulation method as the means to estimate the statistical
confidence level.

The VAR technique is only effective for potential loss events which
are not correlated. The Group therefore augments its VAR limits
with other positions and sensitivity limit structures. Additionally, the
Group applies a wide range of sensitivity analysis, both on individual
portfolios and on the Group’s consolidated positions to assess the
potential impact on the Group’s earnings as a result of extreme
movements in market prices.

(i) Sensitivity analysis of market risk exposures
Trading market risk
Currency risk
At 31 December 2016, if Hong Kong Dollar had strengthened
by 0.5% against other currencies, with all other variables held
constant, the profit before tax for the year would have been
HK$560,000 lower (2015: HK$850,000 lower).

Conversely, if Hong Kong Dollar had weakened by 0.5%
against other currencies, with all other variables held
constant, the profit before tax for the year would have been
HK$560,000 higher (2015: HK$850,000 higher).

Interest rate risk

The Group measures trading book interest rate risks through
Present Value of Basis Point (PVBP). PVBP is a sensitivity test
to measure the potential profit or loss fluctuation on interest
rate positions upon a basis point movement.

The Group adopts a sensitivity test of a 100 basis points
movement. At 31 December 2016 and 2015, 100 basis points
upward or downward movement in interest rate would not
result in a material profit movement.
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45. FINANCI

AL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)

(1)

Sensitivity analysis of market risks exposures (continued)
Trading market risk (continued)

Equity risk

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group has no equity
position in its trading portfolio. As such, any movement in the
Hang Seng Index would have no impact on the Group.

Non-trading market risk

Currency risk

All of the Group’s foreign currency position arises from the
Group’s non-trading activities (e.g. investments, lending
and deposit taking) are captured and transferred to the
Financial Markets Division. The Financial Markets Division
monitors these foreign currency exposures and minimizes
foreign currency asset and liability mismatch by entering into
foreign currency spot and forward transactions. Market Risk
Management Department monitors those outstanding foreign
currency positions on a daily basis and report to the ALCO
regularly.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk primarily results from timing differences
in the repricing of interest-bearing assets, liabilities and
commitments. Interest rate risk is managed by the Financial
Markets Division within limits approved by the Board,
including interest rate gap limits. The Group also uses interest
rate swaps and other derivatives to manage interest rate risk.

Structural interest rate risk arises primarily from the
deployment of non-interest bearing liabilities, including
shareholders’ funds and current accounts, as well as from
certain fixed rate loans and liabilities. Structural interest rate
risk is monitored by the ALCO.

At 31 December 2016, if other market variables including
prime rate were held constant, an increase in HKD market
interest rates of 100 basis points would result in an increase
in earnings over the next 12 months of HK$62.5 million
(2015: HK$54.5 million increase), and decrease in economic
value of HK$2.0 million (2015: HK$11.5 million increase);
while an increase in USD market interest rates of 100 basis
points would result in a decrease in earnings over the next 12
months of HK$45.5 million (2015: HK$47.5 million decrease),
or an increase in economic value of HK$63.0 million (2015:
HK$77.5 million increase).
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)

(1)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis of market risks exposures (continued)
Non-trading market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Conversely, if other market variables including prime rate
were held constant, a decrease in HKD market interest rates
of 100 basis points would result in a decrease in earnings
over the next 12 months of HK$62.5 million (2015: HK$54.5
million decrease), and increase in economic value of HK$2.0
million (2015: HK$11.5 million increase); while a decrease in
USD market interest rates of 100 basis points would result in
an increase in earnings over the next 12 months of HK$45.5
million respectively (2015: HK$47.5 million increase), or
a decrease in economic value of HK$63.0 million (2015:
HK$77.5 million decrease).

Equity risk

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group does not hold
non-trading listed equity securities. As such, any movement in
the Hang Seng Index would have no impact on the Group.

The Group holds non-trading unlisted equity investments
and uses the net asset value reported by the management
of the investee companies to determine the fair value of the
investment. A sensitivity analysis on the fair value of these
unlisted equity investments is disclosed in Note 42(a)(ii).

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity
analysis on interest rate risk, currency risk and equity risk are
performed on the same basis for both 2016 and 2015.

Analysis of currency risk exposures

The Group’s foreign currency positions arise from foreign
exchange dealing, commercial banking operations and
structural foreign currency exposures. All foreign currency
positions are managed by Financial Markets Division within
limits approved by the Board. Structural foreign currency
positions represent foreign currency investments in an
associate of HK$1,399.4 million as of 31 December 2016
(2015: HK$1,399.4 million). The Group seeks to match closely
its foreign currency denominated assets with corresponding
liabilities in the same currencies.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) B 7% [ B B 2 ()

158

(b) Market risk management (continued) (b) MBEMRERE®)
(i) Analysis of currency risk exposures (continued) (i) BRI )
The following table indicates the concentration of currency TRINTNBERR 2 E R R E
risk at the end of the reporting period: RE
2016
—E-RE
us Chinese Other foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies
(Equivalent in HK$000) (FRTEE) EY ARH Hitn o
ASSETS &E
Cash and short-term funds ReRhEHEs 3,767,128 171,428 286,379
Balances with banks and other RITRERE M
financial institutions SRBBEES 2,462,054 367,650 164,529
Financial assets designated at HEERBBER AR
fair value through profit or loss NFEEZEHEE 39,226 - -
Advances to customers less EPEFRREREE
impairment allowances 6,127,819 733,980 141,022
Trade bills BERE 76,681 130,978 22,478
Accrued interest and other assets A FIE R EMEE 674,648 20,814 73,592
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESRHEE 17,045,729 1,350,049 9,982,265
Held-to-maturity investments i?:?‘]ﬁ)ﬁﬁ;ﬁ 1,549,884 - -
Interests in associates REEE AR 2 s - 2,129,493 -
Spot assets HEEE 31,743,169 4,904,392 10,670,265
LIABILITIES =L
Deposits and balances of banks and RITAE R Rl iE
other financial institutions ZER KA 3,633,965 - 7,006,225
Deposits from customers BEER 14,686,464 2,762,194 3,597,205
Certificates of deposit issued BB RE 155,090 - -
Debt securities issued BEITERE 421,847 - -
Other liabilities HEEE 273,325 19,896 84,105
Subordinated notes issued BEETRERE 1,544,304 - -
Spot liabilities BHEAE 20,714,995 2,782,090 10,687,535
Net on-balance sheet position EEABERABERE 11,028,174 2,122,302 (17,270)
Off-balance sheet position BEABRIEE
Foreign exchange derivative contracts INELTE B L (10,804,614) (20,950) 8,769
Net aggregate position HERRE 223,560 2,101,352 (8,501)
Credit commitments and other contingent LUNNSZEZEE
liabilities in foreign currencies BREREMHIAEE 214,822 62,144 68,890
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)

45. BB EAKRER &)
(b) MIZREEERE#)

(i) Analysis of currency risk exposures (continued) (i) BRI ()
2015
—Z-AF
us Chinese  Other foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies
(Equivalent in HK$’000) (FATEE) eI AR H oM
ASSETS &E
Cash and short-term funds HeREHEs 6,953,387 281,615 142,810
Balances with banks and other BITREREM
financial institutions T R IE A R 565,772 250,703 68,974
Trading assets RER SRS EE 46,430 - -
Financial assets designated at ETEABBER
fair value through profit or loss WREATEEZ SREE 40,502 = =
Advances to customers less EPEFRREREE
impairment allowances 6,242,172 1,094,777 146,428
Trade bills BEZE 245,374 - 8,957
Accrued interest and other assets RS R EMEE 993,161 27,282 67,501
Available-for-sale financial assets AtEESREE 13,287,855 2,015,447 9,339,462
Held-to-maturity investments REIEHRE 1,548,781 = =
Interests in associates REFE AR 2% - 2,080,585 -
Spot assets HEEE 29,923,434 5,750,409 9,774,132
LIABILITIES =L
Deposits and balances of banks and RITAEREM SRS
other financial institutions 2R RS 4,919,998 45,053 5,911,790
Deposits from customers EEER 13,490,209 3,698,498 3,414,452
Debt securities issued BERTEBES 424,464 = -
Other liabilities HitaE 262,540 86,051 87,884
Subordinated notes issued BEETRERE 1,542,024 = =
Spot liabilities BEEE 20,629,235 3,729,602 9,414,126
Net on-balance sheet position BEEEBRANEARE 9,294,199 2,020,807 360,006
Off-balance sheet position BERBRIER
Foreign exchange derivative contracts INESTHEA L (8,810,417) (69,023) (356,122
Net aggregate position BERTE 483,782 1,951,784 3,884
Credit commitments and other contingent UNEEE £
liabilities in foreign currencies AREREMSREE 416,616 41,187 11,075
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Market risk management (continued) (b)

45. BB EAKRER &)
miSEMRERE @)

(iii) - 7Y% 2 2 77T
TRITHRBRE M S BEELAE
AR R B 2 BER AR KR B A
SERIER BB ZEBE - ARTER
RiTEME - BRETER AR
BETRRAHBEH -

(i) Analysis of interest rate risk exposures
The following tables indicate the effective interest rates for the
relevant periods and the mismatches of the expected interest
repricing dates for interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the
end of the reporting period. Actual repricing dates may differ
from the contractual dates owing to prepayments and the

exercise of options.

2016
ZE-RE
3 months
Average or less Over Over Non-
effective (include ~ 3months  1yearto Over interest
interest rate Total  overdue)  to1year 5years 5years bearing
=EED
4 TeE ZEANE  -Fut
BB ag  AEds) E-F ZRE  RENE RS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH7R THT TR T#R TH7R THT
ASSETS £
Cash and short-term funds BEREHES 14% 6,019,614 4,341,746 - - - 1,677,868
Balances with banks and FOREREL
other financial institutions SRELR 203% 3,264,233 2,347,655 916,578 - - -
Trading assets BIERGRREE 0.35% 2,310,246 2,210,517 99,729 - - -
Financial assets designated at REABBERNRE
fair value through profit or loss NTEE EREE 7.99% 30,206 39,206 - - - -
Derivative financial instruments fiEeBIE NATER 753,244 - - - - 753244
Advances to customers less RFENRRERRE
imparment allowances 289% 43,318,839 41,390,118 1,126,971 647,045 4,844 149,861
Trade bills BEEE 2.74% 230,137 230,137 - - - -
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESHAE 2571% 31124545 12,184,495 4,203,803 0583193 4898444 234,610
Held-to-maturity investments REEEHRE 413% 1,549,884 - 77545 1,472,339 - -
Other assets EAE 3.40% 7,037,700 33,518 1,127 - - 1,008,055
95647668 62TTTHM2  6A5T53 11702577 4903288 9818638
LIABILITIES a8f
Deposits and halances of banks FRERENEREEL
and other financial institutions PR 1.69% 10,976,404 10,944,768 - - - 31,636
Deposits from customers REREH 0.86% 63,563,861 56,080,848 7,004,044 22,882 - 456,087
Trading liabilities RGBETER 0.30% 2,010,295 1,910,598 99,697 - - -
Financial liabilities designated at EEARBRHENRY
fair value through profit or loss AYEEZSRAR 1.28% 406,185 - 406,185 - - -
Oertificates of deposit issued BETERE 146% 2,834,800 1185006 990374 659,510 - -
Debt securities issued BRIREER; 145% 821,482 399,635 421,847 - - -
Derivative financial instruments fiEeBIE NATER 443,714 - - - - 34
Subordinated notes issued EETKESE 6.25% 1,544,304 - - 1,544,304 - -
Other liabilities -0l NATER 1,673,899 - - - - 1,673,899
84,275,034 70,520,855 8,922,147 2,226,696 - 2,605,336
Interest rate sensitivity gap HEgREEE (1,743,443)  (2476,394) 9,475,881 4,003,288

Derivative financial instruments are carried at mark-to-
market values. Note 18(d) includes further information on
the remaining maturity of derivatives, including interest rate
swaps, by notional amount.
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I

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 45.

(b) Market risk management (continued)

(i) Analysis of interest rate risk exposures (continued)

BAREERE ML

BEREEE )
(b) MIZREEERE#)
(i) FEE 2 47 (48)

2015
“E-nf
3 months
Average or less QOver QOver Non-
effective (include 3 months 1yearto QOver interest
interest rate Total overdue)  to1year 5 years 5 years bearing
=R
) TeE Z@EANE  —ENE
BRI gg 2935 3 ERE  RENE T8
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
T ThL T T T ThL
ASSETS BE
Cash and short-term funds ReREHES 046% 8,678,184 7,535,160 = - - 1,143,024
Balances with banks and ROREREL
other financial nstitutions SRBRELR 208% 885449 414992 470457 - - -
Trading assets HERSRREE 005% 2326410 2,258,302 44,093 23115 - -
Financial assets designated at REABRRENRE
fair value through proft or loss NFEBEHAE 7.99% 40,502 = = 40,502 - =
Derivative financial instruments fTHERIA N/A A 966,857 - - - - 966,857
Advances to customers less EFENAERRE
impairment allowances 2.75% 42,494,918 40,563,775 1,003,994 740,037 6,504 180,558
Trade bills FEEdE 182% 254331 215,887 38,444 - - -
Available-for-sale financial assets IRIEEBEE 2.52% 26512482 9912229 2,861,825 10,830,005 2,659,456 248,917
Held-to-maturity investments BEIERE 413% 1,548,781 - 77503 1471278 - -
Other assets EfEE 317% 7,284,724 51,284 - - - 7283440
90,992,638 60,951,629 4,497,216 13,104,987 2,666,010 9,772,796
LIABILITIES -
Deposits and balances of banks FRERENEREEL
and other financial institutions FRREH 150% 11,967,879 10518041 1,330,036 - - 119,802
Deposits from customers RPER 0.78% 58,385,080 52,185,698 5,770,460 45,032 - 383899
Trading liabiltes RBFETZERE 001% 2271493 2271493 = - - =
Financial iabilties designated at REABBEENRE
fair value through proft or loss NYEEZERAR 1.04% 399,334 = - 399334 = =
Certificates of deposit issued BETRHE 1.30% 1,540,518 1,029,778 210,000 300,740 - -
Debt securities issued BEAGHES 070% 1383814 1014365 369,449 = - -
Derivative financial ingtruments fESBIA NA MEE 963,656 - - - - 063,65
Suborinated notes issued BETKERE 6.25% 1,542,024 - - 154204 - -
Other liabities EftRE NATER 1732949 - - - - 1732949
80,186,756 67,019,375 7,679,945 2,287,130 - 3,200,306
Interest rate sensitivity gap HEHREER (6,067,746) (3,182,729) 10,817,857 2,666,010

Derivative financial instruments are carried at mark-to-
market values. Note 18(d) includes further information on
the remaining maturity of derivatives, including interest rate

swaps, by notional amount.

TESBTAZEMEETIR o K

A8 EREEEESROMITE

T A(B4EF =) FA RS
—HEH -

Annual Report 2016 fEF %

161



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
BT 3R 5 Y 5

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) B %5 o B B 3R ()
(c) Liquidity risk management (c) REBEZRMRER

162

The purpose of liquidity management is to ensure sufficient
cash flows to meet all financial commitment and to capitalise
on opportunities for business expansion. This includes the
Group’s ability to meet deposit withdrawals either on demand or
at contractual maturity, to repay borrowings as they mature, to
comply with the statutory liquidity ratio, and to make new loans and
investments as opportunities arise. The Group maintains a stable
and diversified funding base of core retail and corporate customer
deposits as well as portfolios of highly liquid assets.

It is the responsibility of the Group’s management to ensure
compliance with local regulatory requirements and limits set by
Risk Committee of the Board (“RC”). Liquidity is managed on a
daily basis by the Bank’s Funding Desk Department. The Funding
Desk Department is responsible for ensuring that the Group has
adequate liquidity for all operations, ensuring that the funding mix
is appropriate so as to avoid maturity mismatches and to minimise
price and reinvestment rate risk in the case of a maturity gap,
and monitoring relevant markets for the adequacy of funding and
liquidity.

Compliance with liquidity and funding requirements is monitored by
the ALCO and is reported to the RC on a regular basis. This process
includes:

- maintaining balances within relevant regulatory requirements;
- projecting cash flows under various stress scenarios and
considering the level of liquid assets necessary in relation

thereto;

- monitoring balance sheet liquidity and loan—-to—-deposit ratios
against internal requirements;
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I

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

maintaining a diverse range of funding sources with adequate
back-up facilities;

managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities;

managing lending commitment to customers within pre-
determined management alert triggers;

managing debt financing plans;

monitoring of depositor concentration in order to avoid
undue reliance on large individual depositors and ensuring a
satisfactory overall funding mix;

maintaining funding contingency plans, which identify early
indicators of stress conditions and describe actions to be
taken in the event of difficulties arising from systematic or
other crises, while minimising adverse long-term implications
for the business; and

managing liquidity on a legal entity and on a group basis.
Intragroup funding transactions are carried out at arm’s
length and treated in the same way as transactions with non-
related third parties and controlled within pre-determined
management alert triggers.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 45. BIKEREE )
(c) Liquidity risk management (continued) (c) "BESRAMERE )

164

Primary sources of funding

Customer deposits form a significant part of the Group’s overall
funding. The Group places considerable importance on the stability
of these deposits, which is achieved through the Group’s retail
and corporate banking activities and by maintaining depositor
confidence in the Group’s capital strength. In order to lengthen the
duration of the funding, the Group issues certificates of deposit
with different maturities from time to time. Interbank markets are
also accessed for the purposes of providing additional funding,
maintaining a regular presence in local money markets and
optimising asset and liability maturities.

The management of funding and liquidity risk

As part of its liquidity risk management, the Group focuses on
a number of components, including maintaining sufficient liquid
assets, maintaining diversified sources of liquidity, reserving
necessary funding capacity and contingency planning. The Group
manages liquidity risk by holding sufficient liquid assets (e.g. cash
and short term funds and securities) of appropriate quality to ensure
that short term funding requirements are covered within prudential
limits. Debt securities held are marked to the market on daily basis
to ensure their market liquidity. The Group also adopts a funding
strategy that is to achieve diversification of funding by controlling
the concentration of top depositors, wholesale funding and reliance
on foreign exchange swap markets. Moreover, adequate standby
facilities are maintained to provide strategic liquidity to meet
unexpected and material cash outflows in the ordinary course of
business.

In addition to observing the statutory liquidity ratio, the Group has
established different liquidity risk metrics, including but not limited
to the liquidity ratio, loan-to-deposit ratio, cumulative cash flow
gap, concentration of funding sources and medium-term funding
ratio to measure and analyse its liquidity risks. Financial Control
Division is responsible for measurement and monitoring of these
liquidity metrics and reporting to the ALCO regularly.
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O TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R B
45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) B 75 [ B B B ()
(c) Liquidity risk management (continued) (c) "BESRAMERE )
The management of funding and liquidity risk (continued) Be RTEETRBRIEE (&)

Core deposits

The Group monitors the stability of customer deposits by means of
the core deposit ratio, which is the ratio of core deposits to total
customer deposits. The Group categorizes customer deposits into
core deposits after taking into consideration of nature of deposits,
relationship history with customers and stability of customer’s total
balance. An alert trigger level is set on the core deposits ratio which
is monitored by the ALCO.

Loan-to-deposit ratio
The Group emphasises the importance of customer deposits as
a source of funds to finance lending to customers, and mitigate
against reliance on short-term interbank funding. A limit on the
loan—-to—deposit ratio is established and approved by the RC and
monitored by the ALCO.

Cash flow projection and stress testing

The Group conducts cash flow analysis and cash flow projection
arising from on- and off-balance sheet items over a set of time
horizons on a regular basis to identify funding needs in specific
time buckets. The Group also regularly performs stress tests on
its liquidity position. In the stress test, both on- and off-balance
sheet items with a cash flow impact are considered, with applicable
hypothetical and historical assumptions. Three stressed scenarios,
namely an institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market crisis
scenario, and a combined scenario are adopted with minimum
survival period defined pursuant to HKMA’s Supervisory Policy
Manual guideline “Sound Systems and Controls for Liquidity
Risk Management”. Stress testing assumptions are reviewed
and approved by the ALCO regularly to ensure their continued
appropriateness.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 45. MBEBEE @)

166

The Group maintains a stock of high-quality readily liquefiable
assets as a liquidity cushion against a range of stressed scenarios.
The eligible assets are unencumbered, low credit risk and low
market risk. The liquidity cushion is segregated from debt securities
held for trading purposes. A certain portion of the liquidity cushion
is made up of the most liquid and readily marketable assets
(such as debt securities issued by government or multinational
development banks) that can be easily liquidated to meet funding
needs in the initial phase of liquidity stress.

The size of the liquidity cushion shall be adequate to meet the
Group’s day-to-day liquidity needs and also emergency funding
needs under both normal and stress market conditions. The
minimum required size of the liquidity cushion is determined
with reference to the funding gap generated from the Group’s
regular liquidity stress testing results. Management alert triggers
are established by the ALCO to ensure sufficient size of liquidity
cushion is maintained and appropriate diversification among the
liquidity cushion is achieved. The size and mix of the liquidity
cushion is reviewed by the ALCO regularly.

Contingent liquidity risk

The Group provides customers with committed and standby
facilities. These facilities increase the funding requirements of the
Group when customers drawdown. The liquidity risk associated
with the potential drawdown on committed facilities is factored into
our stressed scenarios and a management alert trigger is set for
these facilities.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

The management of funding and liquidity risk (continued)
Contingency funding plan

The Group has formulated a Contingency Funding Plan (“CFP”)
that describes the Group’s strategy for dealing with any liquidity
problem and the procedures for making up cash flow deficits in
emergency situations. The CFP is designed to be pro-active and
pre-emptive. The Group utilises early warning indicators, which
cover both qualitative and quantitative measures, monitoring
both internal and external factors. Should there be any early
signs of significant impact on the Group’s liquidity position the
management would be informed for their consideration. Once
the CFP is triggered, a Crisis Management Team, which is led by
senior management, is formed to handle the crisis. Strategy and
procedures in obtaining contingency funding, as well as roles and
responsibilities of parties concerned are clearly stated. The CFP
also includes the analysis of cash flow projections to estimate
potential liquidity needs under stress scenarios

The CFP is subject to regular testing to ensure its effectiveness
and operational feasibility, particularly in respect of the availability
of the contingency sources of funding listed in it. The CFP is also
subject to review and update on a regular basis to ensure it remains
robust over time. Any changes to the CFP would be approved by
the Board.

Moreover, in accordance with the HKMA’s Supervisory Policy
Manual guideline “Recovery Planning”, the Group has established
a Recovery Plan, which has been approved by the Board. The
Recovery Plan helps ensure that the Group is able to recover
quickly from period of severe stress and preserve or restore its
liquidity level. The Recovery Plan is subject to regular, at least
annual, review and update.

Liquidity gaps based on remaining maturity

Detailed analysis of the Group’s liquidity gaps for different time
bands based on the remaining maturity as of 31 December 2016 is
set out in the Note 45(c)(i).
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 45. BIKEREE )
(c) Liquidity risk management (continued) (c) "BESRMEE )
() Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity ()  EFBRBR T EEREE
The following maturity profile is based on the remaining period THERAR DENFERRES
at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity #9RTRAZIER B 2 FIEREARR -
date.
2016
ZE-5E
Over Over Over
{month 3 months 1 year

Repayable Within ~ butwithin ~ butwithin  but within Over  Undated

Total ondemand ~ 1month  3months 1 year 5years 5years  oroverdue

-fANE  ZERNE ML Fidid]

8 URER  -EAR ZERMR  -EMR IENMR EEMNLE L]

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T T TEn TEn T TEn TEn Tn

ASSETS EE
(Cash and short-term funds ReREsEs 6,019614 1,757,546 4,262,068 - - - - -
Balances with banks and other RARZREM

financialinstitutions SREESS 3,264,233 - 94 2331305  926,8%4 - - -
Trading assets HERGEREE 2,310,246 - 400885 1710632 99729 - - -
Financial assets designated at EEARABRNRY

fair vlue through profitor loss ATEEzSREE 39,206 - - %% - - - -
Derivative financialinstruments fTEeBIE 753,244 - - - - - - TR3M4
Advances to customers less RFEFEAERR

impairment allowances 43,318,839 055478 8,386,469 2914708 3,559,413 13,731,150 13,535,659 235,962
Trade bills EEE 200,137 - 129,624 100,313 - - - -
Avallable-for-sale financial assets TRHESRAE 31,124,545 - 153473 2193794 4587144 1T057,081 4898444 234600
Held-to-maturty investments RRIRE 1,549,884 - - - - 1,540,884 - -
Other asssts ArEE 7,037,700 - 552,405 314,287 25,981 16,058 - 6129013

95,647,668 2,713,024 15084218 9,610,215 9,199,107 33,254,173 18,434,103 7,352,828

LIABILITIES gf
Deposits and balances of banks and FIRERApERERE

other financial nstitutions LET RS 10,976,404 31638 2434503 8510173 - - - -
Deposits from customers ZFRR 63,563,861 20,004,144 19,753,671 16,689,119 7,004,044 22,883 - -
Trading liabilties REEETL AR 2,010,295 - 199,966 1,710,632 99,697 - - -
Financial liabities designated at EEARABRNRY

fair value through profit or loss AYEEzERBER 406,185 - - - - - 406,185 -
Certficates of depost issued BETRRE 2,834,890 - - 300000 1520319 1,0145M - -
Debt securites issued BETERES 821,482 - - 06% 42847 - - -
Derivative financialinstruments fiEEBIE 43714 - - - - - - M3
Subordinated notes issued BEKESE 1,544,304 - - - - 1,544,304 - -
Other liabilties ik 1,673,899 - 362,380 574,260 134,426 10 - 602,723

84,275,084 20,125,782 22,750,610 28,183,819 9,180,333 2,561,868 406,185 1,046,437

Net iquidity gap FEESHNTE (17412758 (166699 (18573604 18774 30672305 18027018
Derivative financial instruments are carried at mark-to- TSI AEERMETEYIER o M
market values. Note 18(d) includes further information on H18)BEIEREZESELMITE
the remaining maturity of derivatives, including interest rate T E (@I XEE)F 64 HIPR 1
swaps, by notional amount. — BB o
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued) (c) REBEZRMEE @)
(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity () EBFBHRSTEERAE
(continued) (%)
2016
“E-7E
Over Over Over
1monthbut 3 months 1 year
Repayable Within -~ within3  but within  but within Over  Undated
Total ondemand 1 month months 1 year 5 years 5years oroverdue
-fANE  ZERME  -EHNE Fidd]
F ABER  -EARm ZEAMA -EMR EEMR BENE il
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR TR TR TEn TEn TEn TEn T#n
Of which: 2
Debt securities held * HRERRS
- Included in trading assets -BABERGRGERE 2,310,246 - 499885 1,710,632 99,729 - - -
- Included in financial assets designated -MAEE AR
at far value through profit or loss BRNRBAT
EEzeREE 39,206 - - 39,226 - - - -
- Included in available-for-sale financial assets - MARRHESBEE 30,891,937 - 1,253473 2193794 4587144 17,957,081 4,898,444 2,001
- Included in held-to-maturity investments - AR ZHHEE 1,549,884 - - - - 1,549,884 - -
34,791,293 - 1753358 3943652 4,686,873 19,506,965 4,898,444 2,001
Of which: Hr:
Certificate of deposits held BEERE
- Included in available-for-sale financial assets - AT HES BEE 1,878,880 - - - 601,861 1,277,019 - -
- Included in held-to-maturity investments - AR ZHBEE 155,090 - - - - 155,000 - -
2033970 - - - onge 1432109 - -
Certificates of deposit issued BRHNE
- Stated at amortsed cost - RESRAIR 2,834,890 - - 300000 1520319  10145M - -
* The amount of debt securities held included certificate of * B B w2 B E T A BT

deposits held.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 45. MR ERE @)
(c) Liquidity risk management (continued) (c) REBEZRMEE @)
(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity () EBFBHRSTEERAE
(continued) (%)
2015
“5-RF
QOver QOver QOver
Imonth 3 months 1 year
Repayable Within -~ butwithin -~ butwithin -~ but within Over ~ Undated
Total o demand Tmonth 3 months 1 year 5 years Syears o overdue
-fANE =EANME  —ENE ]

g8 ARER  -EAR ZEAMA  -ENm BENR BENE Pk
HK§000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
T TR TR Th Th Th ThL TR

ASSETS EE
Cash and short-term funds ReRiegae 8,678,184 1202701 7475483 - - - - -
Balances with banks and other financial RAIRZREM

institutions PRERES 885,449 - - 414,992 470,457 - - -
Trading assets HERARGAE 236410 - 1970000 264987 44993 46430 - -
Financial assets designated at far value EEARABRNRY

through profit or loss AYEEZSBEE 40502 = = = - 4o = =
Derivative financial instruments fiEeRIA 966,857 - - - - - - 966,857
Advances to customers less RFEFEAERR

impairment allowances 42494918 1262518 6,697,333 3550757 3,733,898 13,739,678 13,337,144 183,600
Trade bills EEE 264,331 - 154,733 61,154 38,444 - - -
Available-for-sale financial assets TEHELHEE 26,512,482 - 44778 1586941 3,688,123 18,060,661 2,693,072 48917
Held-to-maturity investments BRIMRE 1,548,781 - - - - 1,548,781 - -
Other asssts EEE 7,284,724 - 392,365 14973 5,543 - - 6,871,843

90,992,638 2455219 16,934,692 5893804 7,981,453 33426037 16,030,216 8,271,217

LIABILITIES gf
Deposits and balances of banks and other ~ H{TRZ REMS Bk

financial institutions LEIRES 11,967,879 119,802 5,710,330 6,087,747 50,000 - - -
Deposits from customers ZFRR 58,385,089 17,533,868 19,588,149 15,447,579 5,770,460 45,083 - -
Trading iebilties RFEATLER 2971493 - O1OTE0 299993 - - - -
Financial liabiities designated at farvalue R ARBER MMM

through profit or loss AYEEZSRER 309,334 - - - - - 30933 -
Certficates of deposit issued BRERE 1,540,518 - 199,981 - 410000 930597 - -
Debt securities issued BEAERES 1,383,814 - 2904 64422 369451 - - -
Derivative financial instruments fEeBIA 963,656 - - - - - - 96365
Subordinated notes issued BERERE 1,542,024 - - - - 154004 - -
QOther liabilties ik 1,732,949 - 130,740 62,434 83,952 269 - 1,465,554

80,186,766 17,663,670 27,860,641 22,662,176 6,683,803 2,617,863 399,334 2,419,210

Net liquidty gap FHE4RORE (15198451 (10915049 (16766371 1297500 30908174 15630882
Derivative financial instruments are carried at mark-to- TESBMITREEMEFESR o W
market values. Note 18(d) includes further information on F180)RIEREESEAMITAE
the remaining maturity of derivatives, including interest rate T A (B EFI = 8 ek R A
swaps, by notional amount. — AR o
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 45. MR ERE @)
(c) Liquidity risk management (continued) (c) REBEZRMEE @)
(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity () EBFBHRSTEERAE
(continued) (%)
2015
“E-Tf
QOver QOver QOver
Imonth 3 months 1 year
Repayable Within -~ butwithin -~ butwithin -~ but within Over ~ Undated
Total o demand Tmonth 3 months 1 year 5 years Syears o overdue
-fANE =EANME  —ENE o]

g8 OEEX  -EAR ZEANR PR IRNm BEME 4EH
HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKSODO  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKS000
TEL  TAL  TEn  TET  TEm  TER TR TER

Of which: 2
Debt securities held* HRERRS
- Included in trading assets - BABER SRREE 2,326,410 - 1,970,000 264,987 44,998 46,430 - -
- Included in financial assets designated at fair - 4 A% &8
value through profit or loss BANRBAT
BEvehiz 20502 - - - - - -
- Included in available-for-sale financial assets - MA AL ELREE 26,265,566 - MATIB 1586041 3688123 18,050,651 2,693,072 2,001
- Included in held-to-maturity investments - AR ZEHEE 1,548,781 - - - - 1,548,781 - -
30,181,269 - 2214718 1861928 3,783,116 19,686,364 2,693,072 2,001
0f which: 2
Certificate of deposits held BEERE
~ Included in avaiable-for-sale financiel assets - ATt ELBEZE 2,783,095 - - 4092 55512 1764601 - -
- Included in held-to-maturity ivestments - AR ZHGHE 155,006 - - = - 155006 = =
2,938,101 - - 492,922 526,572 1,919,607 - -
Certificates of deposit issued EEGEE G
- Stated at amortised cost - RERH AT 1,540,518 - 199,981 - 40000 930,597 - -
* The amount of debt securities held included certificate of & i B2 882 5T A BT
deposits held. FETFEE o

Annual Report 2016 fEF % 171



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT HR o Bl o

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 45. BIKEREE )
(c) Liquidity risk management (continued) (c) "BESRAMERE )

(i) Analysis of non-derivative liabilities by contractual (i) BEEAZIEIEELHZIEITLEER
maturities BT
The following table sets out contractual cash flow projections TRBIIEFRERRZALHEHA
of the Group’s financial liabilities, and off-balance sheet ZRIGHRIMz RSB EREE
exposures analysed by the remaining period as at the end of REEABERINEAB ZELHIRETR
the reporting period to the contractual maturity dates. The TEH - TREKETEERZRRN
balances in the tables below will not agree directly to the REMBRRAR & BATE
balances in the consolidated statement of financial position SHEPPAREEMNAZEAE R
as the table incorporates all cash flows, on an undiscounted HEREEBZAERES R (BE
basis, related to both principal as well as those associated RITIRELE) o

with all future interest and coupon payments.

2016
Z8-RE
Over Over Over
{month 3 months 1 year
Repayable Within ~ but within ~ but within  but within
Total ondemand  1month 3 months 1 year 5years Over 5 years
-fANE  ZERAML  -ENE
8 URERX  -EAM ZERMR  -EMR ZENR EEMNLE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
T T T T TEn TEn Tn

Financial liabiliies SHAE
Deposits and balances of banks and FIRERApERER

other financial nstitutions LE RS 11,020,772 31638 2441107 8,547,937 - - -
Deposits from customers ZFRR 63,756,527 20,094,147 19,793,222 16,752,123 7,094,152 22,883 -
Trading liabilties REEETLBRE 2,012,000 - 200,000 1,712,000 100,000 - -
Financial liabiites designated at fai value EEARARRNRY

through profit or loss ATEEzSREE 540,937 - 120 - 2,966 15,874 521,917
Certificates of deposit issued BETfE 2,900,274 - 1,363 307,844 1,546,408 1,044,574 -
Debt securites issued BE1ERESR 826,498 - - 400000 426,498 - -
Subordinated notes issued BETKERE 1,932,186 - - - 96,048 1,836,138 -
Other liabilties AR 987,053 - 840,202 80,920 65,821 110 -

83,976,247 20,125,785 23,276,104 27,800,824 9,331,978 2,919,579 521,977

Off-balance sheet exposures EERERER

- Contingent liabiltes -3REE 393,866 - 393,866 - - - -

- Commitments -HE 25,994,137 25,994,137 - - - - -

26,388,008 25,994,137 393,866 - - - -
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 45. B EBERE @)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued) (c) RBELEREE®)
(i) Analysis of non-derivative liabilities by contractual (i) BEEAZIEIEELHZIEITLEER
maturities (continued) B 4%)
2015
Z3-1f
Over Over Over
Imonth 3 months 1 year
Repayable Within-~ butwithin -~ butwithin -~ but within QOver
Totd ondemand ~ 1month  3months 1 year 5 years 5 years
AL ZEANE  -EE
aE  WEEX -BAm AR -EMR RENR AENE
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$O000  HK§'000  HK$'000
ThL ThL ThL ThL Tin Tin Tin
Financial liabilities SRAE
Deposits and balances of banks and ROREREMERER
other financial institutions LERREHR 12,012,780 19801 5729321 6,113,556 50,102 - -
Deposits from customers RPER 58540527 175533868 19619266 15505281 5,836,430 45,683 -
Trading lbiltes RSEET 246 2,271,500 1971500 300,000 = = =
Financial liabiites designated at fai value EEARARRNRY
through profit or loss AYEEZERBER 538,963 = o1 = 2006 12082 5245%
Certificates of deposit issued BETfE 1,568,220 - 201,02 3,048 422,352 941,19 -
Debt securities issued BEIEERS 1,386,267 - 250,000 765,000 371,261 - -
Subordinated notes issued BEKEZE 2,031,621 - - - 6% 193362 -
Other liabilities Efpaf 1,099,239 - 987,111 91,69 18,032 1,881 -
79449117 17,663,669 28768973 22,779,046 6,796,702 2,936,208 524,624
Off-balance sheet exposures BEARRNER
- Contingent liabiltes -Ufak 366,007 - 366,007 - - - -
- Commitments -HE 27,505,494 27,625,494 - - - - -
27,891,501 2752549 366,007 - - - -
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 45. MBEBEE @)

(d) Operational risk management (d) EERRER

174

Operational risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people or systems, or from external
events. Given that operational risk is inherent in all business
products, activities, processes and systems, the Group has
developed, implemented and maintained a robust operational
risk management framework to facilitate the timely identification,
effective assessment and mitigation of the risk. Internal controls, an
integral part of a sound operational risk management framework,
are maintained by the departmental operational manuals which
provide guidance on the baseline controls to ensure a sound
management of business and operations.

The RC provides oversight of the risk management of the Group.
With assistance from the Internal Control and Compliance
Committee (“ICC”), the RC regularly reviews the operational risk
framework and approves the risk profiles and the risk management
policies. The ICC also plays an active role to assist the RC in
overseeing operational risk related issues and monitoring the
implementation of improvement plan for risk events identified and
rectifications found in the operational risk management tools,
including Control Self Assessment and Key Risk Indicator.

Business and support units are required to review their procedures
regularly to ensure compliance with the internal control standards
and regulatory requirements. They are also required to appoint
an Internal Control Support Officer (“ICSO”), representing the
department to work closely with Operational Risk Management
Department and Compliance Department on internal control,
regulatory compliance and operational risk management related
activities and initiatives.

Each new product or service introduced is subject to a rigorous
review and approval process where all relevant risks are identified
and assessed by departments independent of the risk-taking unit
proposing the product or services. Variations of existing products
or services are also subject to a similar process. In addition, the
Group maintains business continuity plans and tests contingency
facilities regularly to ensure an ability to operate on an ongoing
basis and limit losses in the event of severe business disruption.

Internal Audit Division and Compliance Department play an
essential role in monitoring and limiting operational risk. Their
foci include evaluating the adequacy of all internal controls
independently, ensuring adherence to operating guidelines
(including regulatory and legal requirements) and making
improvement recommendations pro-actively.

Fubon Bank & R1T

LERBERERTREHRZHNEZA
IZF - ABRBERIMEFR - HE
EEBRNEAR  ERMEXEBEM
mE - BREREASAENELSERR
AEECHE  BREESEZNEE
Rl EEER - QRERKEE - BX
A RO DB R o AP EEIE R E
ERREBERZEZHND - SRRA
FIZEF M (A ERZG 255l - R
— (AR ARENEERE) MER -

EREZEeERAEENERER - £
NEEENEREZESNMET - Bk
ZEeEHEMEERRIER  FHE
SRR L ERERRER - AEEERS
REBRNTRESEER  ABBER
ZEeRBLERREMEERERE
Bl E e F IR A 2 E AT & K E AL R
EEANE  BREEHREENEREZER
IR - TEIRMGUIESE -

R N S ik B 78 TE B B AL AR Fr DA
REEAMEEREREERTE - KF
MARE-—RARPEEEIME KR
P ARREE EE SRR EERR
B TR AR B B I A e B 0E R B i TR D
FIkaRHBHEREE -

B EE m Sk RIS E AT EAR IR BT - IEA
R R EE an S AR TS 2 M 57 L B B I AR P
E&E L EmERARRTKE - IR
5l - EERAE MRS IIAZIEE
RRFFRRE] o bEAh - AEBEE B X5
BEERERAREARE - AERE
BN BEEERE R EABREXE
R AER R B IR o

NEEZBRARBIEERRREE
BRREEERREER - REREEH
BB A AR EEN DT
BRETEEES(BREEREER
E ) AR E BT = e o



O TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SR 5 MY EE

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) BEEREE s
(e) Capital management (e) EAER

The HKMA sets and monitors capital requirements for the Group
as a whole. In addition to meeting the regulatory requirements, the
Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services commensurately
with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

The Group’s capital management is overseen by the ALCO and
reviewed regularly by the Board. Key tools adopted include capital
budgeting, monitoring, stress testing. An annual capital budget
is prepared during the annual budgeting process to assess the
adequacy of the Group’s capital to support current and future
business activities taking into account projected business growth
and any new business activities. The annual budget is approved
by the Board. Actual capital adequacy is measured and compared
against the approved budget on a regular basis. In addition, regular
stress testing and scenario analysis of major sources of risk faced
by the Group is performed to assess impact on capital adequacy
ratios. The Group’s Recovery Plan ensures that the Group is able
to preserve or restore its capital level during a severe stress period.
The Recovery Plan is subject to regular, at least annual, review and
update.

The principal forms of capital are included in the following balances
in the consolidated statement of financial position: share capital,
reserves and subordinated notes issued. Capital for regulatory
purposes also includes the collective impairment allowance held
in respect of advances to customers as allowed by the Banking
(Capital) Rules.

CERRIUNEEARE Z ERBERR
EoREFTEERTEIN  AEEEERE
ZJKZIEETEF’%{% EAREE L HEEYE

T A B R bR K AR E 2 E M
Eﬁﬁﬁ%m@é&ﬁ&% € 5 LA A B R AN B
B BRI ML & W H MR
FE ARMAE -

AEEBEEEEHEARERREELRS
- THEAEASEEKRFAEENR
BECRE R - AR R AT E AR PTEE
Z BB EER FREFE - WHEH
A2 BE R E RSB FE -

AEENEAEEHEEARZESE
B UYHESSTHES - RAMEER
TAREEAEE - EE - BAHAR -
ifﬁzﬁﬁ”éﬁb’/‘ifi\#LﬁﬁPfﬁ
' %%ﬁ&TE/E‘J%f%iEE&TETT*ﬁ%ﬁ
iﬁﬁb% SRR ERTRM
M E AR RREREE - if?ﬁ”ﬁ
HESSHE BEREARREIRE
Hﬁﬁﬁﬁi&ﬁiﬁt/&iﬁ ETTELER o It
Hh - HHEASBEEBENRREEZRR
EITEHBR AR RBRSI - AFEE
HEATETHLENTE - NEBHRK
Bt B ER AL BN ERE SRR ES
HRRMERLESKE - IR1ETEIZEE
TEH(&ELBF—RBRETREH -

EAMEZABRENTRES SR
MK KA - FEREETRE
SR -REERNMES  BEANBEGR
TTE(ER)RADFTA TR LR P B
FA 2R B RERE -

Annual Report 2016 fEF %

175



176

PRSP E

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e) Capital management (continued)

The Group adopts the standardised approach for the calculation of
risk-weighted assets for credit risk and market risk, and the basis
indicator approach for the calculation of operational risk.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of its capital adequacy ratio and there have
been no material changes in the Group’s policy on the management
of capital during the year.

The Bank computes its capital adequacy ratios of the Bank and
certain specified subsidiaries in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. Certain non-
banking financial subsidiaries are also subject to the supervision
and capital requirements of local regulatory authorities. The
Group regularly measures and monitors capital adequacy of these
regulated subsidiaries.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied
with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, and were above the
minimum required ratio set by the HKMA.
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O TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(f)

Transfers of financial assets

As of 31 December 2016, the Group had entered into repurchase
agreements with certain banks to sell available-for-sale financial
assets of carrying amounts of HK$10.02 billion (2015: available-
for-sale financial assets: HK$8,821.9 million and held-to-
maturity investments: HK$116.4 million) which are subject to the
simultaneous agreements (“repurchase agreements”) to repurchase
these financial assets at agreed dates and prices. The consideration
received under these repurchase agreement totalling HK$9,708.9
million (2015: HK$8,600.9 million) was reported as “Deposits and
balances of banks” at 31 December 2016 (Note 27).

As stipulated in the repurchase agreements, there was no transfer
of the legal ownership of these financial assets to the counterparty
banks during the covered period. However, the Group was not
allowed to sell or pledge these financial assets during the covered
period unless both parties mutually agree with such arrangement.
Accordingly, these financial assets were not derecognised from the
financial statements but regarded as “collateral” for the secured
lending from these counterparty banks. Normally, the counterparty
banks could only claim from the collateral when there exists an
event of default on the secured lending.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were no outstanding
transferred financial assets in which the Group had a continuing
involvement, that were derecognised in their entirety.

46. IMMEDIATE PARENT AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2016, the directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group is Fubon Financial Holding Co.,
Ltd, which is incorporated in the Republic of China.
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47. BANK-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 47. RITM BRI REEREBHRER

AND STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
+=—A=+—-A8A +=—A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHExT FHET
ASSETS BE
Cash and short-term funds ReREHES 6,019,591 8,678,160
Balances with banks and other financial SRITIRI 3 & E 5 R A48 4 5
institutions 3,264,233 885,449
Trading assets RIERXGRGEE 2,310,246 2,326,410
Financial assets designated at fair value through $&§57& A&# BI85 AR A FEE 2
profit or loss ERMEE 39,226 40,502
Derivative financial instruments TTESRT A 753,244 966,857
Advances to customers less impairment BEEERCRRERE
allowances 43,306,851 42,481,373
Trade bills HERE 230,137 254,331
Accrued interest and other assets 2B R EAMEE 1,112,779 1,444,654
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESHEE 31,124,545 26,512,482
Held-to-maturity investments B ERHRE 1,549,884 1,548,781
Interests in associates AN ol 2 1,399,442 1,399,442
Investments in subsidiaries RITB AR ZIEE 81,162 81,162
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U B B A B IR 9,265 37,260
Fixed assets EFE & E 3,770,394 3,707,895
Assets held for sale RHEREAE 42,700 45,300
95,013,699 90,410,058
LIABILITIES =R
Deposits and balances of banks and other RITEZE R E At 2 RS 2
financial institutions TR M A R 10,976,404 11,967,879
Deposits from customers BEFER 63,563,861 58,385,089
Trading liabilities REFEE N2 EE 2,010,295 2,271,493
Financial liabilities designated at fair value EERRBBRUARMATEEBE Y
through profit or loss RVEE 406,185 399,334
Certificates of deposit issued BETTFRE 2,834,890 1,540,518
Debt securities issued BBITERES 821,482 1,383,814
Derivative financial instruments TESRBTA 443,714 963,656
Other liabilities Hiha &\ 1,194,110 1,243,884
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTBE B A B3k IR 210,962 256,399
Deferred tax liabilities FREFIEE & 477,230 462,161
Subordinated notes issued BETRERE 1,544,304 1,542,024
84,483,437 80,416,251
EQUITY s
Share capital NN 4,830,448 4,830,448
Reserves & 5,699,814 5,163,359
Shareholders’ funds A% 3R 7 10,530,262 9,993,807
95,013,699 90,410,058

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 14 March

KREEGN T —LF=F THEEERRE

2017. B e

Ming-Chung (Daniel) TSAI Robert James KENRICK Raymond Wing Hung LEE
A Higs KR

Director Director Director

EF BF BF
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BANK-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I

BAREERE ML

47. ROTMBRRERRESBBHRE X

AND STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued) (&)
Investment ~ Premises
Share  Regulatory  revaluation  revaluation  Retained
capital resene resere reseve  eamings Total
b n%
RE  iEBE  EREE  ERER Bl &5
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ThL ThL TiEn Tin Tin Tin
At 1 January 2015 R-E-1%-f-H 4,830,448 604,745 145801 2233553 1,934,734 9,749,281
Total comprehensive income for the year FERRENRER . o (13853 6BTI8 201601 2445%
- Profit for the year -RERET = - - - 31981 519,551
- Other comprehensive income, of which: -EfrEE  ERpE:
- Avallable-for-sale financial -MiESRAR
assets: net movement in REEREREY
investment revaluation reserve - - (113859 - - (113859
- Remeasurement of net -BfERTRiaR
defined beneft iabilty i - = = - %0 e
~ Premises: net movement -0% NEERER
in premises revaluation F2Y
reserve - - - 66,778 - 66,778
Transfer romto) retained eamings BRe/(2)RBER - %4 - o) 153u -
At 31 December 2015 RZE-14+-A=1-A 4,830,448 640,162 31,948 2249620 2241639 9,993,807
At 1 January 2016 RZE-AE-A-B 4,830,448 640,152 31,948 2249620 2,241,639 9,993,807
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2ANGAE - - 48,245 4204 447006 536,455
- Proft for the year - REERT - - - - A5 4045
- Other comprehensive income, of which: -EfaElE  ERpE:
- Avallable-for-sale financial -MiHESRAR
assets: net movement in REEREREY
investment revaluation reserve - - 48,245 - - 48,245
- Remeasurement of net - B ERTRiaR
defined benefit liabilty 28 - - - - 19,061 19,061
- Premises: net movement -0% NEERER
in premises revaluation 529
1eserve - - - 41,204 - 41,204
Transfer (to)from retained eamings ER(3)/BRBER - (M12910) - 102 163,032 -
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RE+-A=1-R 4,830,448 521,242 80,193 2,239,802 2,852,577 10,530,262
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48. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In preparing these financial statements, certain assumptions and
estimates have been made by management of the Group. The accuracy
of these assumptions and estimates are continuously reviewed by
management with reference to actual results, historical experience
and other factors, including projection of future cash flows and
possible outcomes from future events. Management believes that the
assumptions and estimates made are reasonable and supportable.

Notes 24 and 42 contain information about the assumptions and risk
factors relating to fair value of bank premises and financial instruments.
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

Impairment losses

Advances to customers

Loan portfolios are reviewed periodically to assess whether
impairment losses exist. Management makes judgements as to
whether there is any objective evidence that a loan portfolio is
impaired, i.e. whether there is a decrease in estimated future cash
flows. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data
that the payment status of borrowers in a group has adversely
changed. It may also include observable data of local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the group.
If management has determined, based on their judgement, that
objective evidence for impairment exists, expected future cash
flows are estimated based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to those of the group.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data.

Management reviews the methodology and assumptions used
in estimating future cash flows regularly to reduce any difference
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

In assessing the need for a collective impairment allowance,
besides factors such as credit quality, portfolio size,
concentrations, management also considers economic factors.
In order to estimate the required adjustment to the collective
impairment allowance from economic factors, the Group makes
assumptions and judgements to determine the relevant economic
indicators and their relevant weighting based on historical
experience and current economic conditions.

Fubon Bank & R1T
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O TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(c)

Impairment losses (continued)

Available-for-sale equity securities

The Group determines that available-for-sale equity securities are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value below cost. The determination of when a decline in fair
value is significant or prolonged is judgmental by nature so profit
and loss could be affected by differences in this judgment.

Fair value determination

The Group determines the fair values of financial assets and
liabilities which are carried at fair value based on quoted market
prices whenever possible. If such quoted market prices are not
available or an active market does not exist, the Group determines
the fair values based on internally developed models which make
use of market parameters, including interest rate yield curves,
historical and/or implied option volatilities, currency rates, prices
of the underlying instruments, and the net assets of the underlying
investments. Model assumptions and correlation among these
parameters can affect the estimates of the fair values of these
financial instruments.

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity which the Group has a
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity as held-to-maturity
investments. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates its
intention and ability to hold such investments till maturity.

If the Group fails to hold these investments to maturity other than in
certain specific circumstances, the Group will have to reclassify the
entire portfolio of held-to-maturity investments as available-for-sale.

This would result in held-to-maturity investments being measured at
fair value instead of at amortised cost.

Other accounting estimates

Judgement has been exercised in determining the amount which
may be payable to customers in respect of complaints or legal
claims arising from the sale of investment products and establishing
a reserve included in other liabilities. A charge has been recognised
in profit or loss representing amounts paid and an estimate of future
amounts which could be payable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

49. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING
PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a few amendments and a new standard which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2016 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group:

49.

EAMERBE-_Z2—AF+=A
=t+-HLESFEZEHHBERER
ZIERT - MEAR BBz TRLE

BENEVBREAMA - EESHAMASE
DfeE TIERT TR © ZEERT RATERIR
BE-Z—RFET-A=+—HIEFERKE
BEWBAUZEH B IRE PR o AT THER
SEEME

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTFI ARz &RR ST HEER

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash
flows: Disclosure Initiative HemEx - HEHE

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes:
Recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses

EFIREE

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

BB IS ERIFE155%
KEEPEHZUA

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based
payment: Classification and measurement of
share-based payment transactions BR17 BEBEIHK S

HKFRS 16, Leases

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments and new standards is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of the
new standards which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts are
discussed below. As the Group has not completed its assessment,
further impacts may be identified in due course and will be taken into
consideration when determining whether to adopt any of these new
requirements before their effective date and which transitional approach
to take, where there are alternative approaches allowed under the new
standards.
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N
S 11344 i1

49. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING
PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for financial
instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for classification
and measurement of financial assets, calculation of impairment of
financial assets and hedge accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS 9
incorporates without substantive changes the requirements of HKAS
39 for recognition and derecognition of financial instruments and
the classification of financial liabilities. Expected impacts of the new
requirements on the Group’s financial statements are as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement
HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for
financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) as follows:

o The classification for debt instruments is determined based on
the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset. If a
debt instrument is classified as FVTOCI then effective interest,
impairments and gains/losses on disposal will be recognised
in profit or loss.

o For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL regardless of
the entity’s business model. The only exception is if the equity
security is not held for trading and the entity irrevocably elects
to designate that security as FVTOCI. If an equity security
is designated as FVTOCI then only dividend income on that
security will be recognised in profit or loss. Gains, losses
and impairments on that security will be recognised in other
comprehensive income without recycling.
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49. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING
PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

@

Classification and measurement (continued)

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group expects that its
financial assets currently measured at amortised cost and FVTPL
will continue with their respective classification and measurements
upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

With respect to the Group’s financial assets currently classified
as available-for-sale, a significant portion of debt securities are
expected to be classified as financial assets measured at amortised
cost as these securities are held to collect contractual cashflows.
For equity securities, the Group may classify them as either FVTPL
or irrevocably elect to designate them as FVTOCI (without recycling)
on transition to HKFRS 9. The Group has not yet decided whether
it will irrevocably designate these investments as FVTOCI or classify
them as FVTPL. Either classification would give rise to a change in
accounting policy as the current accounting policy for available-for-
sale equity investments is to recognise fair value changes in other
comprehensive income until disposal or impairment, when gains or
losses are recycled to profit or loss in accordance with the Group’s
policies set out in notes 2(g) and 2(n).

The classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged from HKAS 39,
except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a financial
liability designated at FVTPL that is attributable to changes of
that financial liability’s own credit risk to be recognised in other
comprehensive income (without reclassification to profit or loss).
The Group currently has certain financial liabilities designated at
FVTPL and therefore adoption of this new requirement would result
in a change of accounting policy but the impact on the Group’s
profit and retained earning is considered to be minimal.
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49. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING
PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the incurred loss
model in HKAS 39 with an expected credit loss model. Under
the expected credit loss model, it will no longer be necessary for
a loss event to occur before an impairment loss is recognised.
Instead, an entity is required to recognise and measure expected
credit losses as either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model may result in earlier
recognition of credit losses on the Group’s trade receivables and
other financial assets. However, a more detailed analysis is required
to determine the extent of the impact.

Hedge accounting

HKFRS 9 does not fundamentally change the requirements relating
to measuring and recognising ineffectiveness under HKAS 39.
However, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting. The Group preliminarily
assesses that its current hedge relationships will qualify as
continuing hedges upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 and therefore it
expects that the accounting for its hedging relationships will not be
significantly impacted.
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